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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Directors”) of Bison Finance Group Limited (the “Company”
together with its subsidiaries, collectively the “Group”), I hereby
present to the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”)
the annual report of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2022.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group reported
revenue of approximately HK$41.0 million, representing a decrease
of approximately 45.8% from the revenue of approximately
HK$75.6 million of the previous year.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group reported a loss
attributable to owners of the Company of approximately HKs§$123.1
million (2021: approximately HK$258.8 million), representing a
decrease of approximately 52.4% as compared to previous year.
Such decrease in loss was mainly attributable to:

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
recorded operating loss of approximately HK$69.9 million
resulting from its provision of media sales, design services
and production of advertisements for transit vehicle
exteriors (“BUS-BODY Advertising Business”) and
interiors (“BUS-INTERIOR Advertising Business’).
Following the cessation of the BUS-BODY Advertising
Business and the BUS-INTERIOR Advertising Business
pursuant to the termination of the agreement for bus
body advertising agency services to Citybus Limited and
New World First Bus Services Limited (as amended and
supplemented) for a term of three years expiring on 30 June
2023 (the “Advertising Agreement”) and the ancillary
documents relating to the Advertising Agreement (as
amended and supplemented) with effect from 1 November
2021, the Group no longer incurred such operating loss for
the year ended 31 December 2022.

The provision for impairment losses on non-current
assets for the year ended 31 December 2022 amounted
to approximately HK$43.9 million (2021: approximately
HK$92.4 million), representing a decrease of approximately
52.5% as compared to the previous year. Such reduction
was mainly because no impairment loss on goodwill was
recognised for the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021:
approximately HK$78.6 million) as goodwill was fully
impaired during the year ended 31 December 2021.
Such reduction is offset by the increase in provision for
impairment losses on intangible assets and property and
equipment and right-of-use assets for the year ended 31
December 2022.
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The provision for impairment losses on financial assets,
net for the year ended 31 December 2022 amounted to
approximately HK$0.6 million (2021: approximately
HK$41.8 million), representing a decrease of approximately
98.5% as compared to the previous year. Such reduction was
mainly due to the significant decrease in overall balances
of financial assets that were subject to the impairment
assessment by valuation under expected credit loss model,
resulting in the decrease in provision for impairment losses
on those assets, including accounts receivable and loans
receivable, recognised in the consolidated statement of

profit of loss for the year ended 31 December 2022.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil).

The Group was principally engaged in the provision of financial
services with the licenses to carry out Type 1 (dealing in securities),
Type 4 (advising on securities), Type 6 (advising on corporate
finance) and Type 9 (asset management) regulated activities under
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”) (collectively, the
“Financial Services Business”) during the reporting period.

As at 31 December 2022, the Financial Services Business of
the Group mainly consists of (i) external asset management
(“EAM”) services; (ii) fund management services; (iii)
securities services; (iv) investment advisory services to fund

management; and (v) corporate finance advisory services.

The Group has been continuously exploring opportunities
for investments to diversify income stream and maximise
returns for the Shareholders. As disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 22 February 2019, the Group subscribed
for limited partner interests in BeiTai Investment LP (the
“Investment Fund”). As at 31 December 2022, the Group
has made investment of HK$72.0 million (2021: HK$77.0
million) in the Investment Fund as a limited partner, which
represented approximately 71.0% (2021: approximately
71.0%) of the total capital commitment of the Investment
Fund. As at 31 December 2022, the fair value of the
Investment Fund was approximately HK$29.5 million (2021:
HK$71.3 million).
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It is expected that the overall business environment in which
the Group operates will remain challenging, especially amid the
geopolitical tensions and high interest rate and global inflationary
pressure. The Group will continue to cautiously monitor the
development to ensure timely response to changes regarding the
market condition in particular in light of the increased market
activities and global traffics with the relaxed precautionary
measures and travel restriction in respect to the COVID-19. The
Group will strategically adjust the allocation of the resources within
the Financial Services Business where appropriate and will continue

to seize investment opportunities with a view to maximise returns

for the Shareholders.

The Board would like to express its gratitude to all the staff for
their hard work and dedication and to thank all our Shareholders,
clients and suppliers for their continuous support.

By Order of the Board

ZHU Dong
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 29 March 2023
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The Group has been engaging in the Financial Services Business
with the licences to carry out Type 1 (dealing in securities), Type
4 (advising on securities) and Type 9 (asset management) regulated
activities under the SFO since December 2018 and throughout the
reporting period. On 16 December 2020, Bison Corporate Finance
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, was granted
a licence to carry out Type 6 (advising on corporate finance)
regulated activity under the SFO by the Securities and Future
Commission (the “SFC”). Since then, the Group commenced the

provision of corporate finance advisory services.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Financial Services
Business contributed revenue of approximately HK$41.0 million
(2021: approximately HK$75.6 million) which represents 100%
of the total revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2022. Such revenue represented a decrease of approximately
45.8% as compared to that of the previous year, which was mainly
attributable to decrease in revenue from EAM services, fund
management services and corporate finance advisory services as

discussed in sections below.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, unfavourable factors
including increased market volatility, macroeconomic downturn,
military conflicts, increased of interest rate, high global inflation
rate and geopolitical tensions leading to events such as drop
in global stock indexes and decline in stocks valuation have
limited the Group’s ability to engage new clients and carry out
business development activities. These events had also reduced
the risk appetite of the investors, lowered velocity of trades
and transactions, decreased the size of asset under management
(“AUM”) of the EAM service business and reduced the business
opportunities of corporate financial advisory services. As a result,
the revenue and profitability of the Financial Services Business has
been adversely impacted in general.

The Group expected that the growth of AUM and revenue for
investment advisory services business and fund management service
business will be limited in coming years due to the adverse impact
and the uncertainties brought about by the economic and political
factors. The management took a conservative approach to adjust the
financial budgets and its key assumptions and assessed that part of
the carrying amounts of certain intangible assets and property and
equipment and right-of-use assets (2021: the carrying amount of the
goodwill and part of the carrying amount of intangible assets) may
not be recoverable through the future cash flows expected to be
generated from operations or from their disposal. As such, provision
for impairment losses on intangible assets of approximately
HK$23.4 million and property and equipment and right-of-use-
assets of approximately HK$20.5 million (2021: provision on
impairment losses on goodwill of approximately HK$78.6 million
and on intangible assets of approximately HK$13.8 million) were
recognised for the year ended 31 December 2022.

SRR AN S a9 X TR e
A I — B S e R S SE S ST GE
R BB TR (BHRL ) e
(s 75 $2 (1L 28 J) M BR ol (2 41 /i A 3 )
ZREWEE R —F _FE+ ZH R H > A
ARARER A RAF] (RN R 2 2 G g A F])
s MM B EFE AT ([EEg)) &%
AT G IR M B R TH R e (i
MR E R A ) 2 RE TR B R e A
A AR T ) i £ 3L P T ) O 5

HE - Z "+ A=+—HILFEE - &
Pl Al 755 2 5 B RK IR A &9 ¥ #5°41,000,0007C (-
T4 #HE75,600,00000) (B #EE &
oY A=t B IR EEAREE Y 2
W BRI ) 5 B 25 AE G D £45.8% 0 FE B A AR
B AR RS ~ 4 B IR R M R
R A AROES AOUSL AR D > BRI Y T S4B R

BWEFZ - FF+A=ZF+—HIFE - ZH
155 U5 5 Jon A ~ 22 B A AR Rk S fly 2 - A K
ETb 2 EE R A R BUR R R IRE S
BRI TR AR > A R R R AR BT B IR AG
(B B > B A SR B0 0B % 5 K B i 260 4R
JEEB A RE 2 IR o bt R IR B A
B9 fim e T~ 5 ~ 52 o T BE K ~ A0 A B AR
BB I AR ([P AR )
R~ A A T AR S 1 P AR D o TR >
fil ke 55 S5 1) R A A R 8 M RE D 2 B B T

IS4
-7 ?E'B °

B i K8 T IR TR 2R A A S R B 2 K e
FE M A S T TE G R RIS S & 4
PR L A R ARE I I AT R AR
FAE () 1R AT PR o 4 B BR U ST Y 7 R
FA S E B M 2 BARGER > N Rl 58 5 R b ] 4
i H 1% TE I 4848wl B T A5 B 4 TR R T Ui
[ 25 F T G - W) 2 KRk s DA B (i
FE R TR MR TR ( 3 4 - R v &
ML EENTREE) - FHEE T - —
A=+ —HILEERERER S E WA
T 48 43 4 40 15 %523,400,0007T DA K W) 2E R ik A
T i R B I M e 48 4 5 40 95 520,500,000
JG (& A P R (s E A AU
78,600,0007C M HE T & 78 9 1 s 48 455 45 40 s U
13,800,0007T ) °

HA&AEmERARAA



The Group provides EAM services to clients who are mostly
high net worth individuals, whose asset sizes under EAM
arrangement decreased to approximately HK$3.8 billion as
at 31 December 2022 (2021: approximately HK$4.9 billion).
Revenue generated from EAM services for the year ended
31 December 2022 amounted to approximately HK$24.7
million (2021: approximately HK$40.0 million) representing
a decrease of approximately 38.4% from the revenue for the
year ended 31 December 2021. Such decrease was mainly
attributable to unfavourable market condition resulted in
reduction in velocity of trades and transactions and decrease
in the size of AUM of clients of EAM services which
eventually reduced the fee income through provision of EAM
services by the Group.

Despite the market volatility brought by geopolitical
tensions, the Group will continue to leverage on (i) the stable
relationship between the Group and the financial institutions
which are able to provide investment products which suit the
needs of the EAM clients; and (ii) the management team with
extensive asset management experience and strong network
with high net worth clients, to broaden the customer base
and support continuous development of the EAM business.

The Group acts as the investment managers or general
partners of certain offshore private equity funds and manages
the assets and investments of the funds on a discretionary
basis in pursuit of the investment objectives and strategies
of the funds, which include achievement of long term
compounded net asset value gain for investors. Revenue
generated from fund management services during the year
ended 31 December 2022 amounted to approximately
HKs$13.6 million (2021: approximately HK$25.6 million),
representing a decrease of approximately 46.8% as compared
to the previous year. Such decrease was mainly attributable
to certain of the funds that are managed by the Group under
the fund management services business faced tightened
liquidity during the COVID-19 pandemic. The liquidity issues
eventually affect their ability to repay our management fees
temporarily, and thus the recognition of management fees
income is delayed until their liquidity problem is resolved.

The Group, through Target Capital Management Limited
(“TCM”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
provides a full range of securities brokerage services,
including securities margin financing, underwriting, placing
services, as well as securities dealing which was commenced
after TCM was admitted as a CCASS participant of the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
in 2019. The securities margin financing services of TCM are
mainly provided to its institutional and retail clients for the
security trading in their securities accounts maintained in
TCM, which form part of the securities brokerage services
provided by TCM. The business remains minimal at this stage
so as to minimise the operating cost during the uncertain
economic condition.

Bison Finance Group Limited
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In order to ensure the compliance with the relevant rules
and regulations and proper risk management for its securities
margin financing services, TCM has in place a written policy
setting out the relevant margin lending policy and internal
control system in compliance with all applicable rules and
regulations including the SFO, the Code of Conduct for
Persons Licensed by or Registered with the Securities and
Futures Commission (including Schedule 5 “Additional
requirements for licensed persons providing margin lending”
of the Code of Conduct) and Guidelines for Securities Margin

Financing Activities. In particular, pursuant to such written

policy:

TCM should assure itself that the clients have the
financial capacity to meet margin loan obligations
by assessing credit risk of each client based on the
objective documentary proof of net income or net
asset worth obtained. Upon receipt of the appropriate
documentary proof, TCM would set the appropriate
credit and margin limits accordingly, and conduct
regular review on the limits to ensure the credit risks

are properly managed.

In addition, TCM sets up a credit control committee
(the “Credit Control Committee”), which is mainly
responsible for, inter alia, overseeing and ensuring the
creditworthiness of clients, the margin and credit limits
and the client’s application for the increase of credit
limits so assessed and approved by the responsible
officers of TCM are supported by the objective proof(s)
of the client’s income and asset.

Normally, TCM charges its client at a designated
interest rate. For certain clients with good creditability
and sound financial background, a lower interest rate
may be charged after officer of TCM are satisfied
with the client’s creditworthiness. The Credit Control
Committee would also review the latest financial and
credit condition of clients from time to time and make
recommendations to increase the interest rate for those
accounts with persistent margin calls.

TCM only accepts securities listed on the Stock
Exchange as underlying collaterals with different margin
ratios based on their liquidity, type (as equity or debt)
and market value etc. The margin ratio for different
types of collateral would be reviewed and revised either
quarterly or at times of significant market movement.
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The sales and trading team are responsible for obtaining
objective proof(s) showing client’s income and net
asset for determining the terms of the margin loan and
submit such results and information to the responsible
officers of TCM for review and approval; whereas the
Credit Control Committee serves as an independent
supervising committee to ensure the decisions made by
the responsible officers of TCM regarding, inter alia, the
creditworthiness of clients, the margin and credit limits
and the client’s application for the increase of credit
limits are supported objectively by the relevant income
and asset proof(s). To ensure appropriate checks and
balances are in place, the Credit Control Committee
reports directly to the board of directors of TCM.

In order to ensure repayment and recovery of the
margin loans and sufficiency of the securities collateral,
the policy sets out the triggering events and steps for
margin calls to make demands for additional funds
or collateral when the value of the equity in client’s
account declines below certain required levels, and a
forced liquidation of collateral if the client fails to meet
the margin call before designated deadlines. The Credit
Control Committee shall monitor the status of the

margin calls.

In case that the proceeds from the forced liquidation is
insufficient to recover the margin loan balance, TCM
shall obtain legal advice from its lawyers and take legal
action to recover the outstanding balance.
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The Group acts as the investment adviser to fund managers or
general partners of several offshore private equity funds and
provides portfolio advisory services to them.
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The Group started to engage in the provision of corporate
finance advisory services through Bison Corporate Finance
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, since
December 2020. Revenue generated from corporate finance
advisory services during the year ended 31 December
2022 amounted to approximately HK$1.2 million (2021:
approximately HKS$2.4 million), representing a decrease of
approximately 50.9% as compared to previous year. Such
decrease was mainly attributable to unfavourable condition
in capital market in Hong Kong which reduced the business

opportunities of corporate financial advisory services.

Although the Group’s Financial Services Business continued to
face challenges due to the local and global economies not fully
recovered, the management of the Group is optimistic that this
business segment would be able to play a more important role in
bringing in revenue to the Group in the foreseeable future in view
of the increasing global trade activities and mobility due to the ease
of social distancing and travel restrictions relating to the COVID-19
pandemic. The Group will continue to develop and enhance the

income stream from this segment.

Apart from the traditional financial services, the Group is exploring
new opportunities from emerging financial markets to further
develop its Financial Services Business. The Group’s Financial
Services Business will continue to utilise the Group’s resources
and network as well as the extensive investment experience of our
senior management, which are considered as major contributing
factors to maintain an ongoing business development in the

Financial Services Business carried out by the Group.

On 22 February 2019, the Group entered into the subscription
agreements with BeiTai Investment Limited (the “General
Partner”) (an independent third party to the Company and its
connected persons), being the general partner of BeiTai Investment
LP (the “Investment Fund”) to subscribe for limited partner
interests in the Investment Fund. The objective of the Investment
Fund is to invest in debt securities or equity securities of both
private and listed companies in Hong Kong or elsewhere or by
investing in such other financial instruments as its General Partner
may determine. Such investment is a passive investment and the
Group, as a limited partner, is entitled to receive distributions
of the Investment Fund in accordance with the Group’s capital
commitment therein, but has no right to participate in the day-to-
day operations of the Investment Fund, nor does it have control
over the management of the Investment Fund. The investment
strategy in the Investment Fund is to capture investment
opportunities and increase the efficiency of its financial resources,
and to generate a reasonable return for the duration of the Group’s
investments in the Investment Fund. For details, please refer to the
Company’s announcement dated 22 February 2019.
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As at 31 December 2022, the Group has made investment of
HK$72.0 million (2021: HK$77.0 million) in the Investment Fund
as a limited partner, which represent approximately 71.0% (2021:
approximately 71.0%) of the total capital contribution of the
Investment Fund. The Group’s capital contribution was reduced by
HK$5.0 million from HK$77.0 million as at 31 December 2021 to
HK$72.0 million as at 31 December 2022 due to the withdrawal of
capital contribution, in accordance with the terms and conditions
of the amended and restated limited partnership agreement for
the Investment Fund dated 20 March 2020, as determined by the
General Partner at its discretion (the “Withdrawal of Capital
Contribution”). As at 31 December 2022, the underlying
investments of the Investment Fund represent equity securities
listed in Hong Kong, a bond issued by a company listed in Hong
Kong and a bond issued by a private limited company. The
investment in the Investment Fund is stated at fair value and is
recorded as “financial assets at fair value through profit or loss” in
the consolidated statement of financial position. As at 31 December
2022, together with the Withdrawal of Capital Contribution and
the overall decline in fair value of the underlying assets of the
Investment Fund during the year ended 31 December 2022, the
fair value of Investment Fund amounted to approximately HK$29.5
million (2021: approximately HK$71.3 million), which represents
approximately 14.2% (2021: approximately 20.8%) of the total
assets of the Group as at 31 December 2022. During the year ended
31 December 2022, as a result of an overall decrease in fair value of
the underlying assets of the Investment Fund, the Group recorded
an unrealised loss on financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss of approximately HK$36.8 million (2021: unrealised gain on
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss of approximately
HK$2.2 million). No dividend was received from the Investment
Fund for the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

As at 31 December 2022, the fair value of the Investment Fund
amounted to approximately HK$29.5 million, which included an
aggregate amount of approximately HK$16.9 million representing
the Group’s share of the carrying values of 2 underlying investments
in two unsecured redeemable bonds issued by Emerge Ventures
Limited (“EV”), a private company, (the “EV Bond”), and A
Metaverse Company (‘AMC”), a company listed on the Stock
Exchange (the “AMC Bond”), (collectively, the “Bonds”). The
Group’s interest in the Investment Fund also included an amount of
approximately HK$8.3 million, representing the Group’s share of
the carrying value of the listed shares of AMC (the “AMC Shares”).
During the year ended 31 December 2022, net unrealised fair value
loss arising from the Investment Fund of approximatcly HK$36.8
million was recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss as set out in note 21(c) to the consolidated financial statements.

Bison Finance Group Limited

AR HFEF A= —H AL (fE
HAMREE N OB EWEH72,000,00070 (
”‘*@ 4%%7700000071: REREE A
WEESEEHFEMNAT.0% ( F . —4:
%’971,0%)02&%@%@5%%@#?:*
+ = H =+ — H ¥ ¥77,000,0007C Il D i
5oooooom§¥?——fﬁ+ A=+—HmMi
#:72,000,0007T > T4 it A AR SE H A
B EBE=H JrEI%&MPI*T&E?iE’J*&
TR A ﬁﬁﬁfn\%%’a ) A R B A A T 17 7R
BEFEE (TREBIEE]) R —F = 4F
H=+—H ﬁﬁ%%ﬁ%ééﬁ’l*ﬁl%ﬁﬁﬁ?aﬁ(‘%%i
M RAE S —KE WA R EITNE
B M — FELEH RN F BT E S5 - EATEEE‘
%iﬁ’)ﬁgu/\ﬁf’fﬁﬂrjﬁﬂﬁé &R G W
R EFR A AREEFTABRGEZ EME
EleohZEFE - FETH =+ —H A
PlEE M bE®E - F - F+_H=1+—H
IEFERERGHBAEEZ AREEHERET
Bk & HE A 1A A AE A £ s ¥29,500,000 70
(4 ZHEH671,300,0007T ) > A G AR
B AR = b G A
14.2% (. F . —4F 1 4)20.8%) -8 £ - F
At H =+ —H IR &R A
E:EE’M}J‘ME‘?TEME@TV’ZIK’EEI%%%?EQME
EEFF AR T 2 &R = 0 ok 5 Bk 18 40 %
‘#f% 800,0007C ( & ——4F {2 N R EEFTA
T Zﬁﬁ'ﬂﬁ?ﬂ’ﬁk 5t B A 4 4995 1592,200,000
WEE R E T —FTH

g’i“ F Lk 4F B 37 28 19 5 6 S <5 M A5 AT T ML

pany

WNoFE - FT A= BERE A
FAEAE A By H529,500,0000C - G145 48 4 8 4
’%‘16900000752%$%I"1£UTW1E%2%‘E’J
E—Eﬁﬁ A AT I [ S i B
AL F A RO A BR A 7 (1A ] ) 5%
ﬁEI’J,.“%'EEWﬁIE%IEI%#(Fﬁﬁ@c“bﬂfﬁ#ﬂ
PRSI BT AR — e FEH A A ([—InF
i) AT R HEAK AT 0T I A R ([ — e &
#1) (ABZEESF]) ALENHERS
2 M £ I35 4 B A 5 8,300 000752?—.'52!-"%[%]
S —IeFEH LR ([—RFEwskael) 2
EHE - #E - F -4+ -HA=+— EIJ}:E
B> e G EE RSB REAEREHE
#15 :36,800,00070 T A 47 & 15 2 R HERR (WN%F
B A B 21 (o) T k)



As also explained in note 21(c) to the consolidated financial
the EV Bond and the AMC Bond were matured in
January 2022 and February 2022 respectively. Up to the date of

statements,

this annual report, the Bonds were still not redeemed by the issuers
and no audited financial information of EV for the year ended
31 December 2021 and 2022 had been provided by EV to the
Investment Fund or to the Group.

The trading of AMC Shares had been suspended on the Stock
Exchange since 1 April 2022. As at the date of this annual report,
AMC has not published its financial information for any financial
period after the six months ended 30 June 2021 and trading of its
shares has not been resumed.

Based on the net assets statements of the Investment Fund, the
quoted prices of AMC’s shares prior to its trading suspension
and the limited available financial information of EV and AMC,
management conducted fair value assessments on the Bonds with
the assistance from an independent valuer as at 31 December 2021
and 2022, and on the AMC Shares as at 31 December 2021 and
2022. Neither the Investment Fund nor the Group were provided
with sufficient and appropriate information about the status of the
operations and financial position of EV and AMC for management
and/or valuer’s assessment of the recoverability and/or the carrying
values of the Group’s interests in the Bonds as at 31 December
2021 and 2022, and the AMC Shares as at 31 December 2022.

Management was unable to provide the external auditor with
other sources of information or other evidence to support the
appropriateness of the key inputs and assumptions adopted by
management in their assessments of the determination of the
carrying values of the Bonds as at 31 December 2021 and 2022,
and the AMC Shares as at 31 December 2022. As a consequence,
the external auditor was unable to assess the fair values of those
underlying investments of the Investment Fund and there were
no other satisfactory procedures that the external auditor could
perform to determine whether any adjustments to the carrying
values of the Investment Fund as at 31 December 2021 and 2022
and the corresponding unrealised fair value gain/loss recognised in
profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2021 and 2022 from

the Investment Fund were necessary.

As the Group is only a limited partner of the Investment Fund
and the Group has limitation in obtaining the necessary evidence
from EV and AMC, hence the Group was unable to provide the
auditor with the sufficient appropriate audit evidence to support
the management’s assessment on the fair value of the Bonds and
the AMC Shares.

the Company expressed a qualified opinion in relation to (i) the

Given such limitation, the external auditor of

carrying value of the Investment Fund as at 31 December 2021 and
2022, and (ii) the net unrealised fair value gain/loss arising from
the Investment Fund attributable to the Group for the years ended
31 December 2021 and 2022 (the “Audit Qualification”).

jﬁnAxﬁmﬁjﬂgﬁ%Bﬁn£21(c)}i)f%ﬁ*¥ G AR
AR I3 B — o F W AE 70 %W—T——E*
AR ZFEZZHF M HRAERH -
BEAT NATIOR T ] 5% 46 0% > H & R g i 4
o] $ B B B R R AL S R B e &
T I % e S g s B H I 4E
Z REH L s Bk

—IOUFH B A & A A - B R
g 52 P A S o AR AR R H s — T T
ARTIEEHEE —F ——FH =1 HURIE
] FoF 85 340 T 09 U 5 ) - L LB A7 il R K AR

=
HE

o

RESE IR & 0 & E W ER A — o Tk
73 17 5 T O R DA R RT A B R
Je— 05 WA BRIV 85 R B AR ) ST
ik (60 RS 1 B N B RZ AR R R —F A
L S S Y L Y S
VA Sl O G S S g |
=t BB REEET TRl S E RS
Lo AR 4R T 2 R AR IR B R o J — T8 T
R UL R B 5 IR L Y TS R R R R
DAL A7 L f K sl Al (D R R A AR R A R S
RN N —F R T+
H =4 — B i ar i K s T DA B R
—IOUT W RS R —F T A A
= B AT g el e K BRI T

B B R RE 1) A 0 R R 4 It E At R AR
R B FC A 78 4 - DA 8 AR LR A ) B T A %
SFHAER _F - FRFF TN
=t —HBREE L — T T HBRAR F
AR A = R RR TR R BR O Y
] o gy A SR L AR M@ o B I > Sh AR
B B8 5 T BRI RZ AR B SR
FofE (E B M AT %Akhﬂzﬁ?=
IRERE R RSN R
SEFCCFET A= B MR AE DR
BE_F _ L _F_"HF+_A=+—
Lk 45 BE A 8 i e wl 1 28 B 30 2 4 1 A
AR B AR AR s AR AL ] a2

HRAAEBEEAREESEZARABE A BHA
£ B AEAE B R RUIN Je— 0 M O IR R
5 T 32 B PR R Ok AR B (B A 1 i) A B R
FEAY A B R > DS R B e
I ] — E%E%%mAﬁﬁﬁm%ﬁ’%ﬂﬁ
BRI B » A 2 ) 22 A/ A BT ) 43¢ L Ak 4
SRR R A= am
WRmEE: RayB e —F - —F R T "

T H = — B kAR AR AL AR
(A 88 BLA A (B (A Uk t5 e R R BB R A B
R (THFFREER])

H A 4 fb 4

AR 2]



Despite the limitation in obtaining all the necessary evidence by
the Group mentioned above, the Group had still obtained the
supporting information and evidence available to it for the fair value
assessments of the Bonds and the AMC Shares. The management had
conducted fair value assessments on the Bonds with the assistance
from an independent valuer as at 31 December 2021 and 2022,
and on the AMC Shares as at 31 December 2022. These valuations
based on key financial data obtained from the net assets statements
of the Investment Fund, the quoted prices of the AMC Shares prior
to its trading suspension, the unaudited management accounts of
EV as at 31 December 2021 and 2022 and the unaudited interim
consolidated financial statements of AMC as at 30 June 2021.
The management considered that relying on the result from these
valuations performed was the most feasible option to the Group to
conduct fair value assessments of the Bonds and the AMC Shares
under the limitation on obtaining all the necessary evidence as
mentioned above. During the review of the Company’s consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022 by the
audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”), the
Audit Committee, after considering the limitation faced by the
Group, agreed to adopt the valuations prepared by the independent
valuer and management for the fair value assessment of the Bonds
and the AMC Shares. The Directors also agreed to adopt those
valuation results for the purpose of preparing of the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2021 and 2022. The Audit Committee and the Directors are in
agreement with the auditor on the Audit Qualification arising from
the limitation of obtaining sufficient appropriate audit evidence
in assessing the fair values of those underlying investments of the
Investment Fund.

On 22 February 2022, the Investment Fund has reached the
end of the investment term. The General Partner has initiated
the liquidation process of the Investment Fund by realising the
underlying investments by sales of the listed equity securities and
redemption of the Bonds. Since then, the Group has been liaising
with the General Partner and monitoring closely the liquidation
process of the Investment Fund, with the view of maximising its
return for the benefit of the Company and the Sharcholders as
a whole. In particular, the Group, through the General Partner,
followed-up with the issuers of the EV Bond and the AMC Bond
on the repayment schedule. Whilst the Group was previously given
to understand that the issuers of the EV Bond and the AMC Bond
had confirmed that they would endeavour to redeem the EV Bond
and the AMC Bond on or around September 2022 pending positive
returns from the equity investments and media production projects,
given the unfavourable market situation and the PRC government
only announced the nationwide loosening of COVID restrictions
in December 2022, there had been a delay for the issuer of the
EV Bond to receive the expected positive returns from its equity
investments and the issuer of the AMC Bond to receive from the
media production projects and therefore the EV Bond and the AMC
Bond have not been redeemed as of 31 December 2022 and the
date of this annual report.
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In light of the above situation, the Group has been exploring various
alternative proposals from the General Partner, which involves,
inter alia, distribution of non-cash assets from liquidation of the
Investment Fund as an alternative. Having taken into account the
interests of the Group and the Sharcholders as a whole, the Group
considered it to be undesirable to accept such proposals due to the
uncertainty of the value and lack of public market for trading and
capitalising on such non-liquid assets (which involves shares that
remained suspended for trading on public markets). In addition,
given that the Group had and has only been a limited partner of
the Investment Fund with no right to participate in the day-to-day
operations nor does it have control over the management of the
Investment Fund, the Group expects that it would face difficulties
in recovering the outstanding indebtedness under the Bonds itself
and considers it would be more appropriate for the General Partner
(whom has the control in the investment and management decisions
for the Investment Fund) to continue to recover these outstanding
indebtedness. The General Partner, having understand the
Company’s concerns, confirmed to the Company that realisation
of the underlying investments is expected to be completed, and
the proceeds from the liquidation of the Investment Fund (after
deducting the handling charges) are expected to be recovered by the
Group, before the end of year 2023. The management is of the view
that save for the modified audit opinion on the carrying amount of
the Investment Fund as at 31 December 2022, the corresponding
unrealised fair value gain/loss recognised for the year ended 31
December 2022 and up to the date of disposal, the impact of
Audit Qualification will no longer exist at the end of 2023 if the
Investment Fund is able to realise its Bonds and the AMC Shares
to distribute the proceeds from the liquidation of the Investment
Fund to the Group as a limited partner of the Investment Fund. To
address the Audit Qualification, the management of the Group are
closely monitoring the process of the liquidation of the Investment
Fund to ensure that the Group can collect the proceeds from the
liquidation which is the interest attributable to the Group.

In view of the above and the fact that the unprecedented COVID-19
situation and the suspension in trading of the AMC Shares on the
Stock Exchange could not have been expected or foreseen despite
the due diligence conducted by the Group shortly prior to its
investment in the Investment Fund, the Directors consider that
it is fair and reasonable and in the interest of the Company and
its Shareholders as a whole for continuing to allow and urge the
General Partner to maximise the distributable returns from the

liquidation of the Investment Fund to the Group on or before the

end of 2023.
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The outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic negatively affected the
global economics and global capital market condition. Such factors
not only (i) resulted in the reduction in revenue over the recent
years, but also (ii) led to a downward adjustment on expectation on
growth of future revenue which resulted in the carrying amounts
of certain assets may not be recoverable, and hence provision for
impairment losses on non-current assets of approximately HK$43.9
million (2021:
during the year ended 31 December 2022. The aforesaid factors

approximatcly HK$92.4 million) were rccogniscd

also imposed higher liquidity risk due to the reduced cash inflow
from the operation of the Group among the business segments of
the Group.

The Group reviewed its cash flow forecast for the 18 months after
the year end date. It disclosed the management’s assessment that,
based on the latest forecast, the Group would have sufficient funds
to satisfy its working capital and capital expenditure requirements
for the 18-month period.

To ensure the sustainability of the Group under the challenging
environment brought by the COVID-19 pandemic, the Group has
implemented various measures to monitor its liquidity position and
working capital sufficiency. These measures include:

(i) adoption of a more proactive approach in collection of
accounts receivable and loans rececivable together with
tightened cost controls to maintain a healthy cash flow
position;

(ii)  further extension of maturity date of a promissory note, and

(iii) exploring different fund raising activities to improve financial
resources of the Group.
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For the year ended 31 December HE+T _HAH=Z1+—HIEFE

Full Year Results (HK$’000) 2022 2021

ZAEEM W T o) RO T T4

Revenue A 40,957 75,573

LBITDA® ) (101,857) (159,382)
A FH AR~ BEIH ~ Pr 85 % i B i i s 1R (k)

Loss before tax from continuing operations S B BT B B W s 1B (126,732) (192,648)
Net loss Jis 15 & # (123,092) (258,760)
Basic loss per share (HK cents) (8.66) (19.97)
B e B Al 48 (WAl

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position Data (HK$’000)

A MBI DR B (W T o)

Cash and cash equivalents HERKEEED 124,139 147,437
Total assets & 7 48 {ff 207,784 341,954
Total liabilities £1 {8 48 i 128,507 139,585
Total equity attributable to owners of the Company 79,277 202,369

A2 v RN RE A RE 25 AR E
Cash Flow Data (HK$’000)

Bl BB (% T o)

Net cash flows used in operating activities (12,447) (19,657)
A% 25 35 B e ) B4 U B O AR

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (23,266) (4,504)

Bl & BB & 5 YA 53

Financial Ratios

W H R

Current ratio ¥t B kb % 1.74 2.16

LBITDA margin®°? (248.7)% (210.9)%

A wt A ~ BEIE ~ 8 B Bk B T A s 4R R (W)

Net loss margin®™? 5 J H & (Hit3) (300.5)% (342.4)%

Debt-to-equity ratio HEE AL R 139.3% 48.3%
Notes: WE .

1. LBITDA = Loss from continuing operations before finance costs, income 1. F il B RERE T YNE %ﬁ T B s =R w1 A (ﬁé\:

tax, depreciation and amortisation FRAR > T AR B ~ P8 B B A R A A S 2 R
2. LBITDA margin = LBITDA divided by revenue 2. RFEPAIE S BUIE - I8 K B RO 1R R =R A

S BUIE - T B T 0 s R R LA

3. Net loss margin = Loss attributable to owners of the Company for the year 3. T 48 R =4 A R A N A s 18 R DA A

divided by revenue
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For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group reported
a revenue of approximately HK$41.0 million, representing a
decrease of approximately 45.8% when compared to revenue of

approximately HK$75.6 million in 2021.

In view of the current economic environment related to the
COVID-19 pandemic and volatile global financial market, the
management of the Company assessed such effect on financial
performance of the Group’s Financial Services Business and the
impact on the recoverable amounts of assets. The recoverable
amounts of the non-financial assets were determined based on
value-in-use calculations. Under Hong Kong Accounting Standard
36 Impairment of Assets (‘HKAS 36”), discounted cash flow
method shall be adopted in the value-in-use calculations.

In assessing value-in-use of the cash-generating unit of the Financial
Services Business, the Company appointed an independent valuer
to conduct a valuation (the “Valuation”). The discounted cash flow
method was adopted in compliance with HKAS 36, and the value-
in-use calculations use cash flow projections based on historical data
and financial budgets approved by the Board cover five-year (2021:
eight-year) period for the year ended 31 December 2022. The
percentage of revenue growth in relation to the investment advisory
services and fund management businesses, being one of the key
assumptions used in the value-in-use calculations, was -4% to 9%
(2021: Nil to 5%) as at 31 December 2022. As the carrying amount
of certain non-financial assets was estimated to be higher than their
recoverable amounts, provision for impairment losses on intangible
assets and property and equipment and right-of-use assets in respect
of the Financial Services Business of approximately HK$23.4
million and HK$20.5 million respectively were recognised for
the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: impairment losses on
goodwill and intangible assets in respect of the Financial Services
Business of approximately HK$78.6 million and HK$13.8 million
respectively). For details of the value-in-use calculations leading to
the impairment losses, please refer to notes 16, 18 and 19 to the

consolidated financial statements.
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As at 31 December 2022, the Group recorded (i) the accounts
receivable amounted to approximately HK$20.2 million (2021:
approximately HK$44.4 million); (ii) prepayments, deposits and
other receivables amounted to approximately HK$6.6 million
(2021:
amounted to approximately HK$21.9 million (2021: approximately

approximately HK$7.4 million); (iii) loans receivable

HK$24.5 million); and (iv) loan to a related company amounted to
approximately 2.7 million (2021: approximately HK$5.7 million).
In accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
9 Financial Instruments, impairment analysis was performed
by considering the credit risk of counterparties to measure the
expected credit loss of balances of receivables of the Group. As
a result of such impairment analysis, (a) reversal of provision for
impairment loss on accounts receivable of approximately HK$2.2
million (2021:

HK$18.9 million), (b) provision for impairment loss on

provision for impairment loss of approximately

prepayments, deposits and other receivables of approximately
HK$1.2 million (2021: reversal of provision for impairment loss
of approximately HK$0.1 million), (c¢) reversal of provision for
impairment loss on loans receivable of approximately HK$1.8
million (2021:

HK$22.7 million), and (d) provision for impairment loss on loan

provision for impairment loss of approximately

to a related company of approximately HK$3.5 million (2021:
approximately HK$0.4 million) were recognised for the year
ended 31 December 2022. For details of the expected credit losses
calculations leading to the impairment loss, please refer to notes
20, 22 and 23 to the consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had loans receivable of

approximately HK$24.6 million (2021: approximately HK$30.2
million) in aggregate. The loans receivable constitute:

(i)  loans receivable in the aggregate amount of approximately
HK$21.9 million (2021:
due from three (2021:
(the “Third Party Loans”) with effective interest rates
ranging from 3% to 12% (2021: 3% to 12%) per annum and
repayable within one year (2021: one to two years). All of the

approximately HK$24.5 million)
three) independent third parties

loans were unsecured. For details, please refer to note 23 to

the consolidated financial statements; and

(ii)  loans receivable of approximately HK$2.7 million (2021:
approximately HK$5.7 million) due from a related company
(the “Loan to a Related Company”) (which is not a
connected person under the Listing Rules) at an interest rate

of 15% (2021:

Such loan was unsecured. For details, please refer to note 24

10%) per annum and was already past due.

to the consolidated financial statements.
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The balance due from the top borrower, which is an independent
third party, accounted for approximately 43.7% (2021:
approximately 35.8%) of the total outstanding loans receivable as at
31 December 2022.

For the two financial years ended 31 December 2018 and 2019,
one of the major business of the Group was the provision of media
sales, design services and production of advertisements for transit
vehicle exteriors and interiors, shelters, outdoor signage advertising
business and the provision of integrated marketing services covering
these advertising platforms in Hong Kong (the “Media Business”)

From mid-2018 to early 2019, the Company, through the business
network of Mr. Xu Peixin (an executive Director) (“Mr. Xu”)
in the film, television and media-related industry, was presented
with opportunities to expand the Group’s business network by
participating in projects related to film and television industry
in China. Prior to the grant of the Third Party Loans, the Group
performed various due diligence and credit assessment work
on each of the borrowers, which include (i) obtaining of the
latest management financial statements, statutory records and
indicative timetable of the underlying investment projects to
assess the background and financial position of the borrowers;
and (ii) considering the key terms by referencing the prevailing
market interest rate and the financial position of the borrowers
“Credit Risk
Assessments”). The Group, having considered that such loan

to compensate the associated credit risk (the

advancement to the borrowers of the Third Party Loans would be
beneficial to the Group by introducing additional source of interest
income having utilise its idle cash and creating synergetic effect
with the Group’s existing Media Business, decided to advance the
Third Party Loans for a loan period ranging from 2 to 2.5 years at
interest rate ranging from 3% p.a. to 12% p.a. based on the results
of the Credit Risk Assessments.

Further, Mr. Xu was approached by one of his business
acquaintances for a short-term loan granted by the Group in early
2021. The Group performed the Credit Risk Assessments on the
borrower of the Loan to a Related Company, and considered it
represented an opportunity for the Group to utilise the idle cash
in the PRC to generate additional interest income for the Group
with a proposed interest rate higher than the applicable annual
interest rate of the People’s Bank of China for fixed bank deposits.
The Group therefore decided to advance the Loan to a Related
Company for a loan period of one year at interest rate of 10% p.a.
and for an overdue period at interest rate of 15% p.a.
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The Company has engaged an independent valuer (the “Loan
Valuer”) to conduct a valuation in relation to impairment
assessment over the loans receivable as at 31 December 2022 (the

“Loan Valuation”).

The Loan Valuer adopted the expected credit loss model under
general approach (the “ECL Model”) to measure the expected
credit losses (“ECL”) of the loans receivable. The ECL Model
was adopted in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards 9. Major inputs of the ECL Model include (i) probability
of default of the borrowers based on internal credit rating guidance
which in turn affecting the credit specific factor by, inter alia,
assessing the loss stages and checking forward-looking assumptions
involved; (ii) loss given default; (iii) exposure at default; and (iv)

discount factor reflecting time value of money.

In applying the ECL Model, the Loan Valuer assumed that the
financial statements of each of the borrowers in relation to the
loans receivable as at 31 December 2022 were able to reasonably

reflect its financial status as at the date of the Loan Valuation.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, a net reversal of
impairment losses of the Third Party Loans of approximately
HKS$1.8 million (2021: net provision for impairment losses
of approximately HK$22.7 million) were recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss due to the net-off effect
of repayment of certain loans receivable of approximately HKS$5.3
million recovered with the efforts of the Company, and the
corresponding increase in allowance of expected credit loss of the

remaining unsettled overdue loan balances.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, a provision of
impairment loss of the Loan to a Related Company of approximately
HKs$3.5 million (2021: approximately HK$0.4 million) was
recognised as such loan was past due and hence there were increase
in probability default and loss given default in measuring ECL for
such loan as at 31 December 2022.
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Based on the above, as at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group
provided the following ECL provision against loans receivable:

ECL rate
R
| ik
2022 A&
Loans receivable ME UL & 3K
— the Third Party Loans =B 49.23%
— the Loan to a Related Company
A Wik > A K 58.38%
50.44%
2021 —F 4
Loans receivable fE UL & #KX
— the Third Party Loans 5= B 48.48%
— the Loan to a Related Company
B W F) B R 6.30%
43.72%

Whilst the ECL rate for the Third Party Loans remains as 49.23%
as at 31 December 2022 (2021: 48.48%), the ECL rate for the
Loan to a Related Company increased significantly to 58.38% as
at 31 December 2022 (2021: 6.30%) due to the fact that the Loan
to a Related Company was not repaid at maturity. As such, the
probability of default and the loss given default of the Loan to a
Related Company increased to 100% (2021: 14.54%) and 61.70%
(2021: 45.00%) respectively as at 31 December 2022.

The Group from time to time maintains internal control system
to migrate credit risk exposures arising from lending transactions.
The Group has performed client due diligence procedures and
credit assessment to obtain the background information and assess
the repayment abilities of the borrowers, obtained proper approval
from senior management before executing lending transactions, and
performed periodic review on existing borrowers to identify the
financial position and assess the recoverability of the borrowers.
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43,147 (21,241) 21,906
6,571 (3,836) 2,735
49,718 (25,077) 24,641
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6,046 (381) 5,665
53,574 (23,423) 30,151
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In particular for the Third Party Loans and the Loan to a Related
Company, the Group has (i) conducted periodical review of the
credit risk of the borrowers, including obtaining the updated
financial statements of the borrowers on semi-annual basis to
review their financial position and assess if there were any increased
credit risk of the borrowers; (ii) maintain ongoing communications
with the borrowers to understand the updated business operations
of the borrowers such as the expected returns and cash flows of
the borrowers so as to assess the recoverability of the outstanding
Loan Receivables; and (iii) request partial repayment of the
Loan Receivables from time to time, leading to certain partial
repayment of approximately HK$5.3 million and resulting in the
aforementioned reversal in impairment loss for the year ended 31
December 2022.

With the due diligence work conducted by the Company in
accordance with its internal control procedures to assess the
credit risks of the borrowers and reviewed the terms of the Loan
Receivables to assess the adequacy of the securities obtained and
carried out the aforementioned measures to mitigate the risks in
order to safeguard the interests of the Company, the Directors
considered that the above arrangement is in the interest of the
Company and its Shareholders as a whole.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group reported a loss
attributable to owners of the Company of approximately HKs$123.1
million (2021: approximately HK$258.8 million), representing
a decrease of approximately 52.4%. The decrease in loss for the
current year was mainly attributable to (i) cease of operating
loss of the Media segment of approximately HK$69.9 million, (ii)
reduction in provision for impairment losses on non-current assets
of approximately HK$48.5 million, and (iii) reduction in provision
for impairment losses on financial assets, net of approximately

HK$41.2 million.

There was no specific plan for material investments or capital assets
as at 31 December 2022. In the event that the Group engages in any
plan for material investments or capital assets, the Company will
make announcement(s) and comply with relevant rules under the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) as and when
appropriate.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil).

In 2022, the net cash flows used in the operating activities of the
Group was approximately HK$12.4 million (2021: approximately
HK$19.7 million). Payment for capital expenditure in 2022
amounted to Nil (2021: approximately HK$2.3 million). The
consolidated statement of cash flows of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2022 is set out on pages 109 to 111 of this
annual report.
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On 18 June 2021,
(the “Subscriber”) entered into a subscription agreement (the

the Company and SunChat Trading Limited

“Share Subscription Agreement”) pursuant to which the
Subscriber conditionally agreed to subscribe for and the Company
conditionally agreed to allot and issue 236,973,066 ordinary
shares of the Company (the “Subscription Shares”) at the
subscription price of HK$0.26 per Subscription Share (the “Share
Subscription”) under general mandate which was granted to
the Directors pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the
Company’s annual general meeting held on 16 June 2020, so as
to broaden the sharcholder base and strengthen the cash position
of the Group without incurring additional finance costs of the
Group. As all the conditions of the Share Subscription have been
fulfilled, the completion of the Share Subscription took place on
25 June 2021, and 236,973,066 Subscription Shares were allotted
and issued to the Subscriber at the subscription price of HK$0.26
per Subscription Share pursuant to the terms and conditions of
the Share Subscription Agreement. The aggregate nominal value
of 236,973,066 Subscription Shares was HK$23,697,306.60. The
market price of the Subscription Shares was HK$0.25 per share on
the date of the Share Subscription Agreement (i.e. 18 June 2021),
and the net issue price per Subscription Share (after deducting
all applicable costs and expenses in connection with the Share
Subscription) was approximately HK$0.26.

The gross proceeds of the Share Subscription were approximately
HK$61.6 million, and the net proceeds of the Share Subscription
(after deducting all applicable costs and expenses in connection
with the Share Subscription) were approximatcly HK$61.6 million.
The intended and the actual use of the net proceeds of the Share
Subscription as at 31 December 2022 are as follows:
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As at 31 December 2022
REZZZ_FEFTZA=Z+—H

Utilised Unutilised  Expected Timeline for Utilisation
Intended Applications of Net Proceeds Net Proceeds  Net Proceeds  Net Proceeds  of Unutilised Net Proceeds
C 8 i i ABM B AR B
i ik JEL 0 281 4 € D 2 i 7k JEL VR 4 HEFE MASKEEE B EMRRE
(HKS$ million) ~ (HKS$'million)  (HKS million)
whREET kW ET  EWOEx
1) Repayment of the indebtedness of the Group 31.5 16.4 15.1  On or before
R A A [ 1 i 7 31 December 2024 (Note)
JFQH 44‘ F a2 Al (B5E)
2) Payment of royalty, licence and management fees of the 30.1 30.1 - -
Group s Media Business
3&1]%’@ PR SR T O BRI B R I
B
Total: 85 : 61.6 46.5 15.1

Note: The proceeds allocated for repayment of the indebtedness of the Group
remained unutilised as the result of the extension(s) granted by respective
creditor(s) of the Group during the reporting period.
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At 31 December 2022, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents
amounted to approximately HK$124.1 million (2021:
approximately HK$147.4 million), denominated in Hong Kong
dollars, United States (“US”) dollars, Euro, Singapore dollars and
Renminbi.

The Group has financed its working capital primarily from its
bank deposits and cash and also cash generated from the operating
activities. To cope with the development of Financial Services
Business and to capture investment opportunities, the Group has
funded its investing activities and operating activities from issuing
promissory notes and the Share Subscription.

The Group has adopted a prudent approach in financial resources
management and closely monitored its liquidity position in order
to maintain a healthy cash flow position with adequate facilities
to meet the potential needs for our business expansion and
development in the future.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s indebtedness comprised
promissory notes and lease liabilities of approximately HK$110.4
million (2021:
indebtedness was denominated in Hong Kong dollar. All the

approximately HK$97.8 million). The Group’s

indebtedness carried interests with fixed rates ranging from 2.8%
to 10.0% per annum. All of the indebtedness shall be repayable
within 1 to 3 years (2021: 1 year). The gearing ratio, representing
the ratio of total indebtedness to the total share capital and reserves

of the Group, was 139.3% as at 31 December 2022 (2021: 48.3%).

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group did not have any
stand-by banking facilities.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had net current assets of
approximately HK$86.9 million (2021:
million) and total assets of approximately HK$207.8 million (2021:
approximately HK$342.0 million).

approximately HKS$157.5

As at 31 December 2022, bank deposits of the Company of
approximately HK$0.8 million (2021: approximately HK$1.2
million) were pledged mainly for the corporate credit cards issued

to the Group.
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The Group’s monetary assets and transactions are principally
denominated in Hong Kong dollars, US dollars, Euro, Singapore
dollar and Renminbi. During the year ended 31 December 2022,
the Company recognised an exchange losses of approximately
HK$2.0 million (2021: approximately HK$2.2 million). During the
year ended 31 December 2022, there was no material fluctuation in
the exchange rates of Hong Kong dollars and US dollars. The Group
did not engage in any derivatives activities and did not commit to
any financial instruments to hedge its financial position and foreign

currency exposure in 2022.

Capital expenditures incurred by the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2022 amounted to Nil (2021: Nil). Capital
commitments contracted for but not provided for in the
consolidated financial statements of the Group at 31 December
2022 amounted to approximately HK$41.2 million (2021:
approximately HK$41.2 million).

The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities at 31
December 2022 and 2021.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group has made investment of
HK$72.0 million (2021: HK$77.0 million) in the Investment
Fund as a limited partner, which represent approximately 71.0%
(2021: approximately 71.0%) of the total capital contribution of
the Investment Fund. As at 31 December 2022, the fair value of
Investment Fund amounted to approximately HK$29.5 million
(2021: approximately HK$71.3 million). During the year ended 31
December 2022, the Group recorded an unrealised loss on financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss of approximately HK$36.8
million (2021:
through profit or loss of approximately HK$2.2 million) from the

unrealised gain on financial assets at fair value

Investment Fund.

For details, please refer to section headed “Opcrational Review —
Other Investments”.

Details of the investment in the Investment Fund are set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 22 February 2019.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, there was no material
acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries, associated companies and
joint ventures by the Group.
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The consolidated financial statements set out on pages 104 to 221
have been prepared in accordance with the applicable disclosure
requirements of the Listing Rules, all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had 31 full-time employees
(2021: 45 full-time employees). The Group offers a comprehensive
and competitive remuneration and benefits package to all of its
employees. For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group
incurred staff costs of approximately HK$23.5 million (2021:
approximately HK$76.3 million). For remuneration payable to key
management personnel, please refer to notes 10, 11 and 35 to the
consolidated financial statements. The remuneration of Directors
was determined with reference to the background, qualifications,
experience of each Director, level of responsibilities undertaken
with the Company and prevailing market conditions. The Group has
adopted provident fund schemes for its employees in Hong Kong as
required under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance.

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) on 8 June 2018, under which the Company may grant
options to, among others, employees of the Group to subscribe
for shares of the Company (the “Shares”) for providing them with
the opportunity to acquire proprietary interests in the Company
as a reward for their contribution and to encourage them to work
towards enhancing the value of the Company and its Shares for
the benefit of the Company and the Sharcholders as a whole. For
details, please refer to the sub-section headed “SHARE OPTION
SCHEME” in the directors’ report of this annual report.

The Company also adopted a share award scheme (the “Share
Award Scheme”) on 24 August 2018 which complements the
Share Option Scheme. Pursuant to the Share Award Scheme, the
Shares may be awarded to employees, directors (including executive
and non-executive directors), officers, agents or consultants of the
Group for providing them with incentives to continuously make
substantial contributions for the long-term growth of the Group in
the future and aligning their interests directly to the Sharcholders
through ownership of Shares. The Share Award Scheme was
terminated on 28 October 2022. For details, please refer to the
subsection headed “SHARE AWARD SCHEME” in the directors’
report of this annual report.
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Dr. MA, aged 74, was appointed as a non-executive director and the
chairman of the Company on 21 November 2017 and 29 May 2018
respectively. He is currently the chairman of National Fund for
Technology Transfer and Commercialisation. He has been appointed
as a first member of the Mainland China Advisory Group of Hong
Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited since July 2021.

Dr. MA is currently an independent director of JE& R B B
By A PR 2 7 (Guangdong Qunxing Toys Joint-Stock Co.
Ltd.*) (a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange with
stock code: 002575) since August 2020 and an independent non-
executive director of China Gas Holdings Limited (a company listed
on the Stock Exchange with stock code: 384) since February 2022,
Haidilao International Holdings Ltd. (a company listed on the Stock
Exchange with stock code: 6862) since August 2021, and Legend
Holdings Corporation (a company listed on the Stock Exchange
with stock code: 3396) since June 2015.

Dr. MA was previously an independent non-executive director
of China World Trade Center Co. Ltd. (a company listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange with stock code: 600007) from August
2014 to June 2020.

In addition, Dr. MA was a deputy to the 10th National People’s
Congress of the People’s Republic of China from 2003 to 2008, a
member of the 11th National Committee of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference (“CPPCC”) from 2008 to 2013
and a member of the 12th National Committee of the CPPCC from
2013 to 2018.

*  For identification purpose only
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Mr. XU, aged 51, was appointed as an executive director of the
Company on 21 November 2017. He has more than 14 years of
corporate executive management and investment experiences. From
June 2005 to June 2012, Mr. XU was a venture partner of New
Enterprise Associates (Beijing), Ltd., one of the group companies
of New Enterprise Associates, Inc. which is a venture capital firm.
He was primarily involved in designing and executing investment
strategies in the retail and healthcare industries. Mr. XU also
served as a director of AirNet Technology Inc. (formerly known
as AirMedia Group Inc.), a company listed on NASDAQ Stock
Market (“NASDAQ”), from January 2014 to December 2016. Mr.
XU founded Bison Capital Holding Company Limited, which is
an investment holding company specialised in investments in the
media and financial industries, and has been an executive director
from December 2013 to March 2022. In May 2010, Mr. XU was
nominated as a chief committee member of the Expert Committee
of the APEC E-Commerce Business Alliance. He is a director of
Bliss Chance Global Limited and Bison Capital Financial Holdings
Limited, which are the controlling shareholders (as defined in the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange)
of the Company.

Mr. SUN, aged 53, was appointed as an executive director and the
chief executive officer of the Company on 24 December 2018.
Mr. SUN is also (i) an executive director and responsible officer
of Target Capital Management Limited (“TCM”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company and a licensed corporation under the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”) to carry out type 1
(dealing in securities), type 4 (advising on securities) and type
9 (asset management) regulated activities; (ii) a non-executive
director of Bison Corporate Finance Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company and a licensed corporation to carry out
type 6 (advising on corporate finance) regulated activities under
the SFO and (iii) a director of a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company. Prior to joining TCM, Mr. SUN had worked at Huatai
Financial Holdings (Hong Kong) Limited as an executive director in
corporate coverage from March 2014 to September 2015 and BOCI
Securities Limited as a director from March 2011 to February 2014.
With experience for over 19 years in the financial industry, he has
extensive experience in various aspects such as corporate finance,
fixed income and bond issuing. Prior to stepping into the financial
industry, Mr. SUN had been working on environmental engineering,
overseas corporate financing, futures and project budgeting. Mr.
SUN obtained a bachelor of engineering from China University of
Mining and Technology in July 1990.
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Mr. ZHU, aged 49, was appointed as an executive director and
the chief financial officer of the Company on 13 December 2017.
He is also a non-executive director and chief financial officer of
Bison Corporate Finance Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company and a licensed corporation under the SFO to carry
out type 6 (advising on corporate finance) regulated activities
commencing from 16 December 2020 and the chief financial officer
of TCM, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, a licensed
corporation under SFO to carry out type 1 (dealing in securities),
type 4 (advising on securities) and type 9 (asset management)
regulated activities and a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company. He has more than 27 years of experience in accounting,
corporate finance and advisory services.

Dr. QI, aged 58, was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of the Company on 21 November 2017. He is the chairman
of the audit committee of the Company and a member of the
Company’s remuneration committee and nomination committee.
He is a professor of accounting and former associate dean of
Cheung Kong Graduate School of Business (“CKGSB”). He began
teaching in CKGSB since 2002 and was the founding director of the
executive master of business association programme. His primary
research interests are in financial accounting and reporting as well
as profit manipulation by management of the listed companies.

Dr. QI received his degree of doctor of philosophy in business
administration from Michigan State University in 1996, master of
business administration degree from the University of Hawaii at
Manoa in 1992 and bachelor of science and arts degrees from Fudan
University, the PRC in 1985 and 1987 respectively.

Dr. QI is currently an independent director of Sohu.com Inc. (a
company listed on NASDAQ (Symbol: SOHU)) since 2005 and
Momo Inc. (a company listed on NASDAQ (Symbol: MOMO) since
2014, and an independent non-executive director of SinoMedia
Holding Limited (a company listed on the Stock Exchange with
stock code: 623) since May 2008, Yunfeng Financial Group Limited
(a company listed on the Stock Exchange with stock code: 376)
since February 2016 and Haidilao International Holding Ltd. (a
company listed on the Stock Exchange with stock code: 6862) since
May 2018. Dr. QI was previously an independent non-executive
director of Jutal Offshore Oil Services Limited (a company listed
on the Stock Exchange with stock code: 3303) from July 2015 to
April 2022.

Bison Finance Group Limited

REAS Wt g R F - EFET A=
HERESA NI RATESE GBS -
BIs i AR E A RN A (AR A2 2 E
WPl - A 3 T AR H N HEE S
G I e B R ) TECT W] AT S e T Ot 1
4RI R ) 2 M O B B R Rk ) 2
R TEELERMBE > MREEEEH (K
NAZEEWE AR B GBS BRI
TEN AT ST (RS20 5 ) ~ R4S (il aB o
Rt R ) M SRoe (FR AL & 4 1) 32 B
BB R R ) 2 E B R DL AR A R
T B 2% Y HE S o QN AE B R A SRl E MO
i) JIR 2655 5 T A A — - A A

R AR S E Bt
B ERERA AR I RATE S
WA N A AT B G2 T A 7] 3
ZEG KRRV TR G ZNA B RILEE R
(MR8 BE ) 2 o a8 B KR ml e =
A —FF AR RV S B A2 B
AR BN B U B B L 2 B AT o AR L
Z BT SIS RS ' o > DU B
0% mLE PG 2 R R A

PR R — JUILOS AR RS 5 P AR O S KB 2
TR A B R — UL AR AR
R B B Bl BT 3 A 2 T A B B A S 0
W — JUNTLAR Je— JUN B4R BUR A AR BLR
B B A e SUEL B

B 2+ 3 T H A S Sohu.com Inc.
(— A a5 BTl A A (RS 2 soHu) )
KA % — DY AR £ Momo Inc. (— [ Al 7 2
vo B A (UHE : MmoMO) ) BY MR 7 g
B E)NAE A H 5 416 B
Jie A BR 2 \] (— MDA B 28 B b i 9 A /) (IR Ay
RoE:623) ) AZE—ANF_HELSEHES
RISEE A RRA R (—HRE ST A s (i
A% 376) ) e B —F— \4F 1 H 51K
5 190 P P AT PR 2N /) (— P B 8 e B i A 2
A (B ACSE - 6862) ) Z M8 7 FE AT E FH o 7
MEwp - F—-hAFELAE -F - 4FNH
AT B R0 A RO A BR A 7 (— iR B 3
B bl B A J (B AR 5E : 3303) ) 2 57 FE L
fTH#E o



Mr. CHEN, aged 52, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company on 21 November 2017. He is
the chairman of the nomination committee of the Company and
a member of audit committee and remuneration committee of
the Company. He is currently a partner in PacGate Law Group,
a law firm in the PRC. Mr. CHEN obtained a bachelor degree in
biochemistry in the Peking University, the PRC in 1992, and he
obtained a degree of juris doctor in the University of lowa, the
United States of America in 1998.

Mr. CHEN is currently an independent director of Ambow
Education Holding Ltd. (a company listed on the New York Stock
Exchange (“NYSE”) (American depositary shares) (Symbol:
AMBO)) since March 2013. He was previously an independent
director, a director and president of Link Motion Inc. (a company
which was delisted from the NYSE (American depositary shares) in
January 2019 (Symbol: LKM)).

Mr. FENG, aged 52, was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of the Company on 21 November 2017. He is the chairman
of the remuneration committee of the Company and a member
of audit committee and nomination committee of the Company.
Mr. FENG currently is a director of Mega-Info Media Co., Ltd. (a
company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange with stock code:
301102) since May 2022. Mr. FENG received an executive master
of business association degree from Peking University, the PRC in
2009.

The changes in information of the Directors since the date of the
2022 Interim Report of the Company which are required to be
disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules are set
out below:

Name of Director

EFREH

Details of the changes

2 ) ¢ A

XU Peixin
LT

Save as disclosed above, there is no other information of the
Directors that is required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule
13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.
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He resigned as a director of TCM, a subsidiary of the Company, with effect from 28 February 2023.
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The directors (the “Directors”) of Bison Finance Group Limited
(the “Company”) are pleased to present the annual report together
with the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended
31 December 2022.

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda and has its registered
office at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11,
Bermuda. The principal place of business of the Company is situated
at 6th Floor, 18 King Wah Road, North Point, Hong Kong.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group was principally
engaged in the provision of financial services with the licenses
to carry out Type 1 (dealing in securities), Type 4 (advising on
securities), Type 6 (advising on corporate finance) and Type 9
(asset management) regulated activities under the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (“SFO”) (collectively the “Financial Services
Business”).

The principal activities and other particulars of the Group are set
out in note 1 to the consolidated financial statements. The analysis
of the principal activities of the operations of the Group during
the financial year are set out in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend

for the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil).

A review of the business of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2022, a discussion on the Group’s future business
development and description of the risks and uncertainties that the
Group may be facing and particulars of important events affecting
the Group have occurred during the year are set out in the Letter
from the Board on pages 2 to 4 and Operational Review on pages
5 to 14 of this Annual Report. This discussion forms part of this
Directors’ Report.

The risk management objectives and policies of the Group are set
out on pages 62 to 66 of this Annual Report.

An analysis of the Group’s performance during the year ended 31
December 2022 taking into account the financial key performance
indicators is set out in Financial Highlights on page 15 and Financial
Review on pages 16 to 25 of this Annual Report.
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On 8 October 2021, the Company was notified by Bliss Chance
Global Limited (“Bliss Chance”), the controlling shareholder
of the Company that WAN Hiu Yeung and JONG Yat Kit of
PricewaterhouseCoopers Limited were appointed as joint and
several receivers (the “Receivers”) over 680,508,005 shares of
the Company (the “Charged Shares”). Based on the information
provided by Bliss Chance, the Receivers were appointed by Fruitful
Worldwide Limited (“Fruitful Worldwide”) in accordance with
the share charge executed by Bliss Chance as the chargor over the
Charged Shares in favour of Fruitful Worldwide as the chargee (the
“Share Charge”). Following such appointment, the offer period
for the purpose of the Takeovers Code (the “Offer Period”)
commenced on 25 October 2021.

Given that:

(i)  the Company is not aware of any development as to the sale
of the Charged Shares, apart from the Receivers’ effort in
soliciting potential buyers for the Charged Shares which
result in the entering into of a memorandum of understanding
between the Receivers and an interested party to commence
due diligence process (which did not materialise and had
been subsequently terminated) and no definitive agreement in
respect of the sale of the Charged Shares being entered into
between the Receivers and any interested party;

(ii) after making appropriate enquires with the Receivers, the
Receivers indicated that they were unable to actively look
for potential purchaser for the Controlling Stake and they
were not in discussion with a potential purchaser over the
Controlling Stake and the Company understood that an offer
on the Charged Shares was unlikely to be imminent,

the Company, after consultation with the SFC pursuant to “Practice
Note 24 (PN24) — Reccivers, liquidators and when to commence
offer period(s)” issued by the SFC on 18 November 2022, published
an announcement to announce the end of the Offer Period on 21
December 2022.

For details, please refer to the Company’s announcements dated
8 October 2021, 25 October 2021, 24 November 2021, 24
December 2021, 30 December 2021, 24 January 2022, 24 February
2022, 24 March 2022, 22 April 2022, 23 May 2022, 23 June 2022,
22 July 2022, 22 August 2022, 22 September 2022, 21 October
2022, 21 November 2022 and 21 December 2022.
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The Group is committed to protecting the environment and
carrying out various measures to ensure the fulfilment of its social
responsibilities towards the preservation of the environment
and natural resources. The Group carries out its business having
recognised the importance of building awareness of environmental
conservation and minimising carbon footprints through utilising
resources efficiently, employing green office initiatives and
promoting environmental awareness among employees and other

key stakeholders. The Group understands the global implications of

climate change and is committed to minimising the potential impact
on the environment by its operation.

The Group realises the importance of environmental protection in
pursuing long-term sustainability. In this connection, the Group
has implemented various measures which include reducing wastage
of resources and implementing environmental practices to reduce
carbon footprints etc. with the aim of mitigating any potential
adverse impacts on the environment brought about by the Group’s
day-to-day operations. Employees are encouraged to conserve
resources and minimise waste.

For details of the Group’s environmental policy and performance
and an account of the relationships with the Group’s key
stakeholders are set out in the Environmental, Social and

Governance Report on pages 70 to 92 of this Annual Report.

The Group constantly reminds employees of and emphasises the
importance of safeguarding the security of personal data. When
collecting and processing such data, the Group complies with the
Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance (“PDPO”) and the guidelines
issued by the Office of the Privacy Commissioner for Personal
Data. The Group will not use or provide personal data to any
person for use in direct marketing unless the data subject’s consent
is obtained in writing. For the business operations of the Group
which involves regulated entities under the SFO, the Group has
formulated internal guidelines and has engaged compliance officers
to ensure compliance with the SFO, Anti-Money Laundering and
Counter-Terrorist Financing Ordinance and all other applicable
laws and regulations.

In relation to human resources, the Group is committed to
complying with the requirements of the PDPO, and ordinances
relating to disability, sex, family status and race discrimination, as
well as the Employment Ordinance, the Minimum Wage Ordinance
and ordinances relating to occupational safety of employees of
the Group, so as to safeguard the interests and well-being of its
employees.

On the corporate level, the Group complies with the requirements
under the Companies Ordinance, the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”) and the SFO for, among other things, the disclosure
of information and corporate governance matters, and the Group
has adopted its own Code for Securities Transactions by Directors on
terms no less exacting than the required standard of the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

Bison Finance Group Limited

AL B IR BR T MR O A > DLREAR
JEAT R AEBR BT M B R E IR AL & T AL - AR
TE KE A8 605 I W 1 A S BROR R Y 2
R~ ST Sk M O 5 HOR M R B
B B2 R 1 TR R Bk ﬂ%ﬁifz&l?ﬂﬁﬁ
b o ZIK%I%(’THHEMW 5 A BRI SLBE I
ﬁUJ{UZ”‘ T BRI T AR R 2

74 B2 18] T A R R 3 R 3 SRR 0 T AR R Y
BT o A B [ O i MG R e 2 TR G - £ A
BRI 2 T AT B R B 9 0 B A2 B % >
S e Y A G R 2 R S A A A AT
?j’%“?’éfiﬁjﬂ%% ZIK%@I&J%ME 3 B 40 R B
PiRE

A B A S T B BR B IR B 3R E DA S L A 4R [
I%?ﬂ‘%%ﬁ%ﬂ@ﬁ 1 > WA A 0%
9 E M EREE 4L & NE R A -

Ay

=

SE

13 1)

5l o BRIF AT E B E B AFmF &
S (A ol 4R At 1EIA%§*+?EHA35
ERE i - LA R B AR IR B M &
&&X%EEE%@E’J%%%LW:. N
5 19 H50 48 51 300 JE 5 A& %EIELME%{%
% KB AR - <<3‘T$Q(5E%%& L
G EEMG) KA HAh FH/%@&%

ﬁfﬂgmﬂi%ﬁ&"ﬁﬁ%ﬂ%ﬂ
w%$Vﬁ@
ﬁ'*{m

HHNAEBRTHREE D

)

AN IR 5 T A AR B O Ry AN
B RLER ) W 1)~ A7 Bl B0 ~ 1 il ~ SR i 3
T A i IS A ) A 1) DL R R ARG A 1)~ ik
TR A B A G R B A
> DL b HC AR B A HE 2 S AR Ak

%ﬁ@m

TE Jg T b AN AR [H Y <<"74N§J>> €
\%Fﬁﬁﬁﬁ/\? s B READ (T (k
D) e G MR &) T T A
45 > giiiﬁﬂgﬁﬁ%H&ZA%ﬂ i}
RMHBAAN (EFESTHEELS
s 5% ST I A G RS 48 <<LFE%EEIJ>>
(e ESIT NEFEITHELELS
HIY ([ CEEgESpRI) |) Frel Ayt o

\

¥ 2R ERE
™+ @’ED%
4}§vm-ﬂ'v

SEEHar o
i



The Group believes that employees are valuable assets of the Group.
With a view to retaining talents, the Group offers a comprehensive
and competitive remuneration and benefits package to all of its
employees. During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group
has organised certain internal training courses and coordinated with
the third-party consultants to provide external training courses to
our employees to support their career development.

The Group believes that timely feedbacks are crucial to increase
customer satisfaction and improve performance. Therefore, we
actively collect client feedback and if any complaints are received,
they will be handled by the designated department pursuant to the
established procedures, including acknowledgement to relevant
client of receipt of the complaint and that is under consideration,
to send letter to relevant client notifying complaint is still in
investigation if it cannot be resolved within 7 business days, to
use all efforts to resolve complaint within 28 days from its initial
reporting, advising client for available further steps under existing
regulatory system as a part of the final response. We strive to build
a long-term relationship with our clients which is vital to our
business.

Details of the Share Capital of the Company are set out in note
31(a) to the consolidated financial statements. There were no

movements during the year ended 31 December 2022,

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2022 and up to
the date of this Annual Report are as follows:

Dr. MA Weihua (Chairman)

Mr. XU Peixin
Mr. SUN Lei (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. ZHU Dong (Chief Financial Officer)

Dr. QI Daqing
Mr. CHEN Yigong
Mr. FENG Zhonghua

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-Law 87 and the Corporate
Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules,
Dr. MA Weihua, Dr. QI Daqing and Mr. CHEN Yigong will retire
from office by rotation at the Company’s forthcoming annual
general meeting (“AGM”) and, being eligible, have offered
themselves for re-election.
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No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM has
an unexpired service contract which is not determinable by the
Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year without payment
of compensation, other than normal statutory compensation.

Profiles of the Directors of the Company are set out on pages 26 to
29 of this Annual Report.

As at 31 December 2022, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company in shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or
short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO), or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO,
or otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange,
pursuant to the Model Code as adopted by the Company, were as
follows:
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Total
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Name of Directors HENA interests
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MA Weihua 15 Ry ¥ -
XU Peixin (‘Mr. XU TR (TR 4] -
SUN Lei B 11,340,000
ZHU Dong KA 6,500,000
QI Daqing 7K B 3,000,000
CHEN Yigong BRJR T -
FENG Zhonghua R -

Bison Finance Group Limited

equity shares and % of total

Corporate  derivatives  underlying issued

interests (Note 1) shares Shares*

it AT A

THEME B RH B i 2 8

it B3 HE it e hEd: CBITRM

vl B i (KfaE1) K [EFi: A

— 11,000,000 11,000,000 0.77%

680,508,005 1,180,000 681,688,005 47.94%
(Note 2)
(Htit2)

- 4,000,000 15,340,000 1.08%

- 4,000,000 10,500,000 0.74%

- 1,180,000 4,180,000 0.29%

- 1,180,000 1,180,000 0.08%

- 1,180,000 1,180,000 0.08%



Notes:

Name of Directors

Mr.

Note:

These interests in underlying shares under equity derivatives represent the
share options of the Company granted by the Company on 27 March 2020.
Details of the share options are set out in the section headed “Share Option
Scheme” below.

All of these 680,508,005 Shares are held by Bliss Chance, all the ordinary
shares of which are wholly and beneficially owned by Bison Capital
Financial Holdings Limited (“Bison Capital”). Bison Capital is in turn
wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. XU. Mr. XU is deemed to be
interested in Shares held by Bliss Chance for the purpose of Part XV of the
SFO.

On 26 August 2021, the Company was notified by Bliss Chance and Bison
Capital that they ceased to be associated corporations of the Company
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) on 25 June 2021.

Calculation is based on the total number of Shares held and divided by the
total issued Shares as at 31 December 2022.

HEREH

XU e

All of these 680,508,005 Shares held by Bliss Chance have been charged in
favour of Fruitful Worldwide. Fruitful Worldwide is wholly-owned by China
Huarong International Holdings Limited, which is in turn wholly-owned by
China Huarong Asset Management Co., Ltd. All the ordinary shares of Bliss
Chance are wholly and beneficially owned by Bison Capital. Bison Capital
is in turn wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. XU. By virtue of the SFO,
Mr. XU is deemed to be interested in the short positions in the Shares held
by Bliss Chance.

Calculation is based on the total number of Shares held that are subject to
short position divided by the total issued Shares as at 31 December 2022.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors and chief executive

of the Company had any interests or short positions in the shares,

underlying shares and/or debentures of the Company or any of

its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the

SFO), as recorded in the register required to be kept under section
352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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The share option scheme of the Company (the “Share Option
Scheme”) was approved and adopted at the AGM held on 8 June
2018. The scheme mandate limit under the Share Option Scheme
has been refreshed to 118,486,533 share options of the Company
(the “Share Options”), representing approximately 10% of the
Shares in issuc as at the date of the resolution, which was passed at

the AGM held on 16 June 2020.
The major terms of the Share Option Scheme are as follows:

1. The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide
participants with the opportunity to acquire proprietary
interests in the Company as a reward for their contribution
and to encourage participants to work towards enhancing the
value of the Company and its shares for the benefit of the
Company and its sharecholders as a whole. The Share Option
Scheme will provide the Company with a flexible means
of either retaining, incentivising, rewarding, remunerating,

compensating and/or providing benefits to participants.

2. The participants of the Share Option Scheme include any
employees, directors (including independent non-executive
director), sharcholders, suppliers, customers, consultants,
business or joint venture partners, franchisees, contractors,
agents, advisers, lenders or financiers of the Group and

associates of any of the foregoing persons.

3. The total number of Shares available for issue under the
Share Option Scheme was 118,486,533 Shares, representing
approximately 8.3% of the issued Shares as at 29 March 2023
(the date of this Annual Report).

4, The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of Share Options granted to each participant
(including exercised, cancelled and outstanding Share
Options) in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the

Shares in issue.

5. The exercise period of any Share Options granted under the
Share Option Scheme shall be determined by the Board in its
absolute discretion at the time of grant, but such period must
not exceed ten years from the date of grant of the relevant

Share Options.

6. The Board has the authority to determine any minimum
period(s) for which a Share Option must be held before it can
be exercised. However, it is not a mandatory condition for
the participant(s) to hold the Share Options for a minimum

period before exercise of the Share Options granted.

7. The acceptance of an offer of the grant of the Share Options
must be made within 14 days from the date of offer with a
non-refundable payment of HK$1.00 from each participant.

Bison Finance Group Limited
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8. The subscription price of Share Options shall not be less than
the highest of (i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in
the daily quotations sheet issued by the Stock Exchange on
the date of grant; (ii) the average closing prices of the Shares
as stated in the daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock
Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding
the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of a Share on the
date of grant.

9. The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a
period of ten years commencing on the adoption date of the
Share Option Scheme on 8 June 2018.

For further details of the principal terms of the Share Option
Scheme, please refer to the circular of the Company dated 30 April
2018.

Particulars of the outstanding Share Options granted under the
Share Option Scheme and their movements during the year ended
31 December 2022 were as follows:

Exercise price

Grantees Date of grant per Share Exercise period
379N ity 1 BRATEE AT
1. Director
i
MA Weihua 27 March 2020 HK$0.33 From 27 March 2020 to
26 March 2025
BRE “ECEREZACAER #0337 MoFoTEZA ST ERE
CECHEZAZAAH
Mr. XU 27 March 2020 HK$0.33 From 27 March 2020 to
26 March 2025
Rk SECREZA LA ot mZFZFE=AZFLHZE
“EZHEEASHAH
SUN Lei 27 March 2020 HKs$0.33 From 27 March 2020 to
26 March 2025
#HiE CECRESA LA it H0.337C EE 2? FEZAZHERE
ZEZHEZAZTAA
ZHU Dong 27 March 2020 HKs0.33 From 27 March 2020 to
26 March 2025
P “ECEEZASTEHA 0t MoEF-FE=ASFLAE
CECHEZAZAAH
QI Daging 27 March 2020 HK$0.33 From 27 March 2020 to
26 March 2025
VION SECREZA LA ot mZFZFE=AZFLAZE
“EZHEEASHAH
CHEN Yigong 27 March 2020 HK$0.33 From 27 March 2020 to
26 March 2025
B T CECREZACHLH %0337 f = 2? FEZAZHERE
ZEZHEZAZTAA
FENG Zhonghua 27 March 2020 HK$0.33 From 27 March 2020 to
26 Malch 2025
I3 “ECEREZACAER i Ho.337c FHEEZAZTLAE
CECHEZAZAAH
2. Employees of the 27 March 2020 HK$0.33 From 27 March 2020 to
Group 26 March 2025
AL (R 5 “ECEFEZASTEH ot MoEFSEFEZASFLHE
“EZHEEASHAH
3. Consultants of the 27 March 2020 HKs$0.33 From 27 March 2020 to
Group 26 March 2025
S W Y “ERCREZA LA ot M-FSFE=ATLAE
ZEZHEZAZTAA

Total:
it
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1 January Granted on Exercised  Lapsed during 31 December
2022 during the year during the year the year 2022
/eSS SERICHE
—~H—H T4 R | ZHE

mEE  RERRE RERTH Dk kM 1 B

11,000,000 - - - 11,000,000
1,180,000 1,180,000
4,000,000 - - - 4,000,000
4,000,000 - = o 4,000,000
1,180,000 1,180,000
1,180,000 - 4 = 1,180,000
1,180,000 - . L 1,180,000
21,000,000 (3,000,0000) 18,000,000
7,500,000 - = L 7,500,000
52,220,000 - - (3,000,000) 49,220,000
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Notes:

1. The closing price per Share on 26 March 2020, being the date immediately
before the date on which the Share Options were granted, was HK$0.31.

2. Share Options under the Share Option Scheme granted on 27 March 2020

has been vested immediately.

There were no Share Options granted under the Share Option
Scheme during the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil).

As at 31 December 2022, there were 49,220,000 outstanding Share
Options (2021: 52,220,000 Share Options) granted under the Share
Option Scheme.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, there was no expense
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the

Share Options granted under the Share Option Scheme (2021: Nil).

Save as disclosed above, there were no outstanding Share Options
granted under the Share Option Scheme during the year ended 31
December 2022.

The Company adopted the share award scheme on 24 August 2018
(the “Share Award Scheme”), and terminated the Share Award
Scheme on 28 October 2022 (the “Scheme Termination”). A
deed of termination had been entered into between the trustee of
the Share Award Scheme (the “Trustee”) and the Company on 28
October 2022 to terminate the relevant trust deed. All such non-
cash income remaining in the funds and properties held under trust
for the benefits of the participants of the Share Award Scheme had
been sold by the Trustee within 20 business days of receiving notice
of such termination (the “Specified Period”), and Residual Cash,
net proceeds of such sale and such other funds remaining in such
trust (after making appropriate deductions in respect of all disposal
costs, liabilities and expenses in accordance with the relevant trust
deed) had been remitted to the Company in the Specified Period
given the Trustee did not hold any Shares under the Share Award
Scheme (the “Award Share”) as at the day of sending the notice
of termination of the Share Award Scheme to the Trustee by the
Company.
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The major terms of the Share Award Scheme are as follows:

The purpose of the Share Award Scheme is to:
(i)  complement the Share Option Scheme;

(if)  provide incentives for the participants to continuously
make substantial contributions for the long-term

growth of the Group in the future;

(iii) further align the interests of the selected participants
directly to the sharcholders of the Company through

ownership of Shares;

(iv) attract and retain talented participants who may be
beneficial to the growth and development of the Group;

and

(v) encourage or facilitate the holding of Shares by the

participants.

The participants of the Share Award Scheme include
employees, directors (including executive and non-executive
directors), officers, agents or consultants of the Group (the

“Participants”).

During the term of the Share Award Scheme in force and
prior to the Scheme Termination (the “Scheme Term”), the
total number of Shares available for issue under the Share
Award Scheme was not exceeding 10% of the total number
of issued Shares from time to time, which is the general
mandate of the Company on the relevant date on which the
grant of Shares to the selected Participants under the Share
Award Scheme or under a specific mandated approved or
to be approved by the sharcholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”) at such range of subscription price as the

Board may direct.

As at the date of the Scheme Termination, no Share is available
for issue under the Share Award Scheme due to (i) the Trustee
did not hold any Award Shares as at the date of the Scheme
Termination, and (ii) the general mandate that was passed
by an ordinary resolution by Sharcholders at the Company’s
annual general meeting on 13 May 2022 was revoked by an
ordinary resolution by the Sharcholders at the Company’s
special general meeting on 26 September 2022. For details,
please refer to the Company’s circulars dated 13 May 2022, 6
September 2022 and the Company’s announcement dated 26
September 2022.
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4. During the Scheme Term, the maximum entitlement of each
participant under the Share Award Scheme is subject to the
requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the Board and
the Board committee may, from time to time at its absolute
discretion.

5. During the Scheme Term, the Board or the Board committee
may determine the periods for the Award Shares to be vested
to each selected Participant but in any event before the
termination of the Share Award Scheme.

The vesting periods for all Award Shares granted prior to the
Scheme Termination are within 10 business days after the date
of acceptance by the selected Participants.

6. During the Scheme Term, the acceptance of an offer of the
grant of the Award Shares must be made by any selected
Participants within 14 days from the date on which the
relevant award letter is delivered to them. The payment
for the Award Shares granted shall be paid by the selected
Participants to the Company for Award Shares accepted by the
selected Participants within 3 business days from the proposed
date of vesting of the Award Shares, which is equivalent to the
award price (the “Award Price”) multiplied by the number
of Award Shares to be accepted by and vested to the selected

Participants.

7. The Award Price as set in the Share Award Scheme is the price
per Award Share at which the Award Shares are granted to
any selected Participants, which shall be (i) equal to or lower
than the average subscription price per Share of all Shares
subscribed by the Trustee at the date of grant (other than
those Award Shares granted but not yet vested) (in the case
of subscription of new Shares); or (ii) equal to or lower than
the average purchase price per Share of all Shares purchased
by the Trustee as at the date of grant (other than those Award
Shares granted but not yet vested) (in the case of purchase of
existing Shares), at the Board’s absolute discretion from time

to time.

8. Subject to any early termination as may be determined by the
Board or the Board committee, the Share Award Scheme shall
be valid and effective for a period of 10 years commencing on
its adoption date. Accordingly to the Scheme Termination, the
Share Award Scheme terminated on 28 October 2022,

For further details of the principal terms of the Share Award
Scheme and the Scheme Termination, please refer to the Company’s

announcements dated 24 August 2018 and 28 October 2022.

During 2022 up to the date of the Scheme Termination, no Share
has been purchased by the Trustee (2021: Nil).
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There were no Award Shares granted under the Share Award
Scheme during the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021:
43,890,000 Award Shares). There were 73,000,000 Award Shares
granted during the Scheme Term (the “Grants”), details of
which are as follows (for details of the Grants, please refer to the
Company’s announcements dated 1 April 2019, 16 April 2019, 10
June 2020 and 9 April 2021):

BEZ- A=t —HIEFRE
R P53 2 B 51 80 4% SE R A (T ——
1 43,890,000/ 5 B B 43 ) - A FT E I PR A B
5 173,000,000/ 28 B 1 1 ([ M) > 5F
TR (ARZERENFER F2 AL
HW A —Z—JLFEMNA—H - —F—JLFWH
FTARHEZECTEANATH A FE N
AILHBIA)

Award Shares

R 0
Vesting Date
(Within 10
business days
after the date of Accepted &
Categories of Grantees Date of Grant acceptance) Award Price Granted Lapsed Vested
S g 1
(44 0 Wiz CEAR
RENEN Bt A TEEHRN) B e WY &Y 4
HKS$
W
Directors
HRMEH
Mr. SUN Lei 1 April 2019 Yes Nil 8,340,000 0 8,340,000
RESE ZE-JENA—H & I
9 April 2021 Yes Nil 3,000,000 0 3,000,000
ZEZENA LA & i
Mr. ZHU Dong 9 April 2021 Yes Nil 5,500,000 0 5,500,000
AL ZHEZENA LA & i
Dr. Qi Daging 9 April 2021 Yes Nil 3,000,000 0 3,000,000
R B ZEZ WA ILA & i
Consultants of the Group 9 April 2021 Yes Nil 6,890,000 0 6,890,000
745 T B ) ZHEZENAILA & i
Officer of the Group 10 June 2020 Yes Nil 4,000,000 0 4,000,000
AEMEHZNE SECERERATH & i
Employees of the Group 1 April 2019 Yes Nil 4,170,000 0 4,170,000
A5 g B “E-NENA—H & id
16 April 2019 Yes Nil 5,100,000 0 5,100,000
ZHE—JEMA+RH e bid
10 June 2020 Yes Nil 7,500,000 0 7,500,000
SECERERATH e bid
9 April 2021 Yes Nil 25,500,000 0 25,500,000
ZHEZENA LA & bid
Total 73,000,000
st

Further details of the Share Award Scheme are set out in note 31(b)
to the consolidated financial statements.
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The Company has rececived from cach of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Company
considers all the independent non-executive Directors to be

independent.

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in section 469 of the
Companies Ordinance) for the benefit of the Directors is currently
in force and was in force throughout the year ended 31 December
2022.

Details of related party transactions of the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2022 are set out in notes 5, 21, 22, 24, 29 and
35 to the consolidated financial statements of this annual report.
Such transactions were either (i) fully exempted from the reporting,
annual review, announcement and independent shareholders’
approval requirements under Rule 14A.76(1) and Rule 14A.90 of
the Listing Rules or (ii) did not constitute connected transactions
or continuing connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed above, during the year ended 31 December 2022,
the Company did not have any connected transaction or continuing
connected transaction which were subject to the reporting
requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed in the above section headed “CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS”,

significance to which the Company, or any of its holding companies,

no transaction, arrangement or contract of

subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party, and in which a
Director or an entity connected with a Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, was subsisting at the end of

the year or at any time during the year ended 31 December 2022.
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As at 31 December 2022, the interests or short positions of the
persons (not being Directors and chief executives of the Company)
in the Shares and underlying Shares of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) which were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and required

R ZFEFTZA=ZT—H BRAAFES
Fe s i AT BN B AN R AR 2 A Bl AT o]
FHBRE ] (e GEZR KB BRED) SHxVEr)
Y B 3 B A B B 0y ob B A AR B GO O B
A1) 5 XVER 552 S 33 R ZH 8 A 28w K
SEP R WAAS A F AR GE R I B R )

to be entered into the register maintained by the Company pursuant

to section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Name

(178 %4

Bliss Chance (Note 1)

BA (Wit

Bison Capital (Note 2)
ARER (Hit2)

JIANG Feng Yun (Note 3)
HBE (Mit3)

Fruitful Worldwide (Note 4)
Fruitful Worldwide ( #/7#4)

China Huarong International Holdings Limited (Note 4)

v A R A PR R (M)

China Huarong Asset Management Co., Ltd. (Note 4)

o T R A RN (W)
JONG Yat Kit (Note 4)

fER (Hiats)

WAN Hiu Yeung (Note 4)

el (Mfite)

SunChat Trading Limited (Note 5)

WA RAT (M its)

SU Lihong (Note 5)

BRREAL (Wats)

Dongxing Securities (Hong Kong) Financial Holdings

Limited (Note 6)
RS (FE) SMBERARAR (e
Dongxing Securities Co., Ltd (Note 7)
WA RAT (M it7)
China Orient Asset Management Co., Ltd. (Note 7)
b RO A R A RN (W aE)
Cruiser Determined Limited (Note §)
Cruiser Determined Limited ( #/7£8)
TAN Bin (Note 8)
Wit (Hits)
DENG Xianzi (Note 9)
Wi T (M)

55336l ZEME A B B R M A RE a5 SR B U ¢

Total Number of % of total

Capacity Shares held issued Shares*
¥ iz e i

S Jiz 3 48 ey W 2 b
Beneficial owner 680,508,005 47.86%
=gt DN
Interest of controlled corporation 680,508,005 47.86%
XA
Interest of spouse 681,688,005 47.94%
i () 9 B 4
Person having a security interest in Shares 678,259,144 47.70%
T M A b A R M 4 P A L
Person having a security interest in Shares 678,259,144 47.70%
T M A b A R M 4 P A L
Person having a security interest in Shares 678,259,144 47.70%
T M A b A R M 4 P A L
Interest of controlled corporation 680,508,005 47.86%
P B HE £
Interest of controlled corporation 680,508,005 47.86%
P B HE £
Beneficial owner 236,973,066 16.67%
gt DN
Interest of controlled corporation 236,973,066 16.67%
P B HE £
Person having a security interest in Shares 103,624,000 7.29%
T M b A R M 4 P A L
Interest of controlled corporation 103,624,000 7.29%
P B HE £
Interest of controlled corporation 103,624,000 7.29%
P B £
Beneficial owner 103,624,000 7.29%
gt 2 UN
Interest of controlled corporation 103,624,000 7.29%
P B HE 4
Interest of spouse 103,624,000 7.29%
i () 9 4

BUR o m 4 B AR A A



Notes:

Bliss Chance owns 680,508,005 Shares.

As Bliss Chance is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Bison Capital, Bison
Capital is deemed to be interested in the same number of Shares held by

Bliss Chance under the SFO.

JIANG Feng Yun is the spouse of Mr. XU. She is deemed to be interested in
681,688,005 Shares which represents the same interest of Mr. XU for the
purpose of Part XV of the SFO.

All these Shares held by Bliss Chance have been charged in favour of
Fruitful Worldwide. As Fruitful Worldwide is wholly-owned by China
Huarong International Holdings Limited., which in turn is wholly-
owned by China Huarong Asset Management Co., Ltd., China Huarong
International Holdings Limited and China Huarong Assct Management Co.,
Ltd. are deemed to be interested in the security interest in all those Shares
held by Bliss Chance having been charged in favour of Fruitful Worldwide
for the purpose of Part XV of the SFO.

According to the relevant disclosure of interest notices, these Shares
represented approximately 57.24% of the total issued Shares as at the date
of the relevant event. The total issued Shares increased to 1,421,838,398
following the completion of the Share Subscription on 25 June 2021.
Accordingly, these Shares represented approximately 47.70% of the total
1,421,838,398 issued Shares as at 31 December 2022,

On 8 October 2021, the Company was notified by Bliss Chance that WAN
Hiu Yeung and JONG Yat Kit of PricewaterhouseCoopers Limited were
appointed as Receivers over 680,508,005 Shares.

SunChat Trading Limited owns 236,973,066 Shares. As SunChat Trading
Limited is wholly and beneficially owned by SU Lihong, she is deemed
to be interested in the same number of Shares held by SunChat Trading
Limited under the SFO.

Dongxing Securities (Hong Kong) Financial Holdings Limited (“Dongxing
Securities (Hong Kong)”) is interested in the security interest in
103,624,000 Shares.

As Dongxing Securities (Hong Kong) is wholly-owned by Dongxing
Securities Co., Ltd. which is 52.74% held by China Orient Asset
Management Co., Ltd., Dongxing Securities Co., Ltd. and China Orient
Assct Management Co., Ltd. are deemed to be interested in the same

interests of Dongxing Securities (Hong Kong).

Cruiser Determined Limited owns 103,624,000 Shares. As Cruiser
Determined Limited is wholly and beneficially owned by TAN Bin, he is
deemed to be interested in the same number of Shares held by Cruiser
Determined Limited under the SFO.

DENG Xianzi is the spouse of TAN Bin. She is deemed to be interested in
103,624,000 Shares which represents the same interest of TAN Bin for the
purpose of Part XV of the SFO.

Calculation is based on the total number of Shares held and divided by the
total issued Shares as at 31 December 2022.
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Name

(.78 %z

Capacity
54

Beneficial owner

Ha A A

Bliss Chance (Note 1)
BB (i)

Bison Capital (Note 1)
HRER (Bit1)
JIANG Feng Yun (Note 2)
HERE (B it2)

2V ) % 1 ) RE
Interest of spouse

PiC A8 ) HE 4

Notes:

1. All of these 680,508,005 Shares held by Bliss Chance have been charged in
favour of Fruitful Worldwide. Fruitful Worldwide is wholly-owned by China
Huarong International Holdings Limited, which in turn is wholly-owned by
China Huarong Asset Management Co., Ltd. All the ordinary shares of Bliss
Chance are wholly and beneficially owned by Bison Capital. Bison Capital is
in turn wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. XU. Bison Capital is deemed
to be interested in the short position of Shares held by Bliss Chance for the
purpose of Part XV of the SFO.

2. JIANG Feng Yun is the spouse of Mr. XU. She is deemed to be interested in
the short position of the Shares held by Mr. XU for the purpose of Part XV
of the SFO.

* Calculation is based on the total number of Shares held that are subject to

short position divided by the total issued Shares as at 31 December 2022.

Save as disclosed above, no other interests or short positions were
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange required to be
recorded in the register kept by the Company under section 336 of
the SFO.

Save as disclosed in the section headed “CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS”, there was no contract of significance
between the Company or any of its subsidiaries, and a controlling
Sharcholder or any of its subsidiaries during the year ended 31
December 2022.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, none of the Directors and
their respective close associates (as defined under the Listing Rules)
were interested in any businesses that competed or were likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the
Group.

Interest of controlled corporation

Total Number of

Shares that are
% of total
issued Shares*
(i IS i)
J& 4y A 43 b+

subject to short
position

W B A R I by
By

680,508,005 47.86%
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The information in respect of the Group’s sales and purchases
attributable to the major customers and suppliers respectively

during the financial year is as follows:

The largest customer wRKEF

Five largest customers in aggregate ﬂj( g}ﬁ /El\?l—
The largest supplier e KAt FE P

Five largest suppliers in aggregate FRAHERE P A R

No Director who held office as at 31 December 2022 nor any of
his close associates; nor any shareholder of the Company (which to
the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the number
of issued Shares) had any interest in the five largest customers and

suppliers of the Group.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
listed securities during the year ended 31 December 2022.

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-Laws and the laws of Bermuda.

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to
its shareholders by reason of their holding of the Shares.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company has not
entered into any contract with any individual, firm or body
corporate to manage or administer the whole or any substantial

part of any business of the Company.

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “SHARES ISSUED AND
SHARE CAPITAL”, “SHARE OPTION SCHEME” and “SHARE
AWARD SCHEME” above, no equity-linked agreement was entered
into during the year ended 31 December 2022 or subsisted at the
end of the year ended 31 December 2022.
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A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages 222 to 223
of this Annual Report.

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund scheme under the
Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance and
participates in employee pension schemes organised by the local
governments of the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) under the
regulations of the PRC. All these retirement schemes are defined
contribution plans.

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this
Annual Report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public
float under the Listing Rules.

Messrs. KPMG resigned as auditor of the Company with effect from
30 June 2020. Following the resignation of KPMG, Messrs. Ernst &
Young (“EY”) had been appointed as auditor of the Company with
effect from 8 July 2020. Please refer to the announcements of the
Company dated 30 June 2020 and 8 July 2020 for details.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, EY has resigned as
auditor of the Company with effect from 22 July 2022. Following
the resignation of EY, Messrs. Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited
(“BTHK”) has been appointed as auditor of the Company with
effect from 22 July 2022. Please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 22 July 2022 for details.

BTHK shall retire and offer themselves for re-appointment as
auditor of the Company at the forthcoming AGM. A resolution for
the re-appointment of BTHK as auditor of the Company shall be
proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

By Order of the Board

ZHU Dong

Executive Director

Hong Kong, 29 March 2023
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The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of Bison

Finance Group Limited (the “Company”, together with its
subsidiaries, the “Group”) is committed to endeavor in maintaining
high standards of corporate governance to achieve the purpose of

the Group and to enhance corporate value and accountability.

As of the date of this Annual Report, the Board with the assistance
of the company secretary of the Company (the “Company
Secretary”), continues to review and monitor the corporate
governance (“CG”) practices of the Group to comply with the code
provisions of the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Part
2 of Appendix 14 (the “CG Code”) to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) in force from
time to time. During the financial year ended 31 December 2022,
the Board conducted a review of the CG policies and practices in
accordance with amended CG Code with effect from 1 January
2022 and made necessary changes thereon.

The Company has complied with all applicable code provisions of
the CG Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2022.

The Company is committed to developing a positive culture that is
built on its purpose and values, which serve as a guiding principle
for its operation and decision-making process. The Company
strives to provide a supportive environment for employees across
the Group to excel and reach their full potential, and for the
Company to achieve sustained success and fulfil its duties as a
responsible corporate citizen. The initiatives taken by the Company
in 2022 reinforced and enhanced its positive corporate culture in
compliance and integrity. The Company, among others, adopted
a new Anti-Corruption Policy, and revised the Whistle-blowing
Policy, Code of Conduct and Shareholders Communication Policy,
and conducted relevant trainings to Directors and employees in
2022 to cultivate positive attitude in compliance and integrity
for serving its purpose to be the reliable partner of clients. All
Directors act with integrity, lead by example, and promote the
Company’s corporate culture.
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The Directors are individually and collectively accountable to the
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) for the success
and sustainable development of the Company. The Board provides
direction and approval in relation to matters concerning the
Company’s business strategies, policies and plans, whilst the day-
to-day business operations are delegated to the executive Directors.
The Board is accountable to the Shareholders and in discharging
its corporate accountability, every Director is required to make
decisions in the best interests of the Company and Shareholders as a
whole and fulfill his fiduciary duties by applying the required level
of skills, care and diligence up to a standard in accordance with the
statutory requirements.

The Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives appropriate for the Company’s business. The majority
of the Board members are non-executive Directors who bring
to the Board with a wide range of professional experience in
the management, finance and legal industries, which provide
strong support towards the effective discharge of the duties and
responsibilities of the Board.

The Board composition of the Company as at 31 December 2022
and up to the date of this Annual Report is set out below:

#5/ZHE

Directors/Committees
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Independent Non-Executive Directors
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Audit
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Remuneration Nomination

Committee
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Committee
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QI Daqing (LUN C M M
CHEN Yigong BN T M M C
FENG Zhonghua i 3 M @ M

Chairman and Non-Executive Director
MA Weihua

Executive Directors
XU Peixin

SUN Lei, CEO

ZHU Dong, CFO
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1. C is chairman of the relevant board committees of the Company 1. CHEANFMBAERZE G LN
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Biographical details of all the Directors are set out in the “Profiles
of Directors” section in this Annual Report. An updated list of
Directors identifying their roles and functions is maintained on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

During the year and up to the date of this Annual Report, there
is no change to the composition of the Board and no relationship
(including financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationships) among the members of the Board and the senior
management of the Group (the “Senior Management”).

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company has
complied with the requirements under the Listing Rules regarding
the appointment of at least three independent non-executive
Directors (“INEDs”) with Dr. QI Daqing, who is the chairman
of audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”),
and INED possessing appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
INED of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Company considers all INEDs to be independent in
accordance with the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules.

Under the code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
chairman of the Board (the “Chairman”) and chief executive
officer of the Company (the “CEO”) should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual. The division of
responsibilities between the chairman and chief executive officer
should be clearly established and set out in writing.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, Dr. MA Weihua is the
Chairman and Mr. SUN Lei is the CEO in compliance with the code
provision C.2.1 of the CG Code and their respective responsibilities
are clearly defined and set out in writing,

The Chairman is mainly responsible for and effective running of
the Board, with the support of the executive Directors and the
Company Secretary, to ensure the establishment of good corporate
governance practices and procedures, while the CEO is delegated
with the authorities from the Board with the support of the Senior
Management, to manage the day-to-day business operation of the
Group.
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Each of the Directors (including non-executive Directors) has
entered into service agreement or letter of appointment with the
Company for a term of three years. Such term is subject to the
retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting
(the “AGM”) in accordance with the bye-laws of the Company (the
“Bye-laws”) as follows:

1. cach director who has been longest in office since his last re-
election or appointment shall retire from office by rotation at

least once every three years; and

2. any director appointed by the Board, (i) to fill the causal
vacancy on the Board, shall hold office only until the next
following general meeting of the Company (the “General
Meeting”) or (ii) as an addition to the Board, shall hold
office only until the next following AGM, and they shall then
be eligible for re-election at such ecither of General Meeting

or AGM.

The Board has adopted the board diversity policy since August
2013 which was updated in 2019 and 2022 (the “Board Diversity
Policy”) with an aim to set out the approach to achieve diversity
on the Board. The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of
having a diverse Board that fits its own business model and specific
needs in order to enhance the quality of its performance.

In designing the composition of the Board, the Board shall consider
from a number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age,
ethnicity, cultural and educational background, skill and experience,
knowledge and length of service. All Board appointments will be
based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against
objective criteria, having due regard to the benefits of diversity
within the Board. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the Board
without focusing on only one single diversity aspect.

The Board with the assistance of nomination committee of the
Company (the “Nomination Committee”) shall review the
Board Diversity Policy from time to time to ensure that it remains
appropriate and effective. During the year, the contents of Board
Diversity Policy have been reviewed and revised by the Board under
recommendations from the Nomination Committee, details of the
latest revised Board Diversity Policy are available on the Company’s
website (https://bison.com.hk/corporate-governance/board-
diversity-policy-2/), in which it sets to appoint at least one female
director by 31 December 2024 for achieving gender diversity at
Board level.

The Board under the assistance of the Nomination Committee will
review the Board Diversity Policy on an annual basis to ensure its

continued effectiveness.
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The Company recognises the importance of diversity in workforce
throughout the Group as a matter of corporate governance. During
the year, the Diversity and Inclusion Policy for Senior Management
and Staff has been formulated by the Senior Management as part
of the Groupys human resources policy which was adopted by the
Board and also set as an appendix in the Board Diversity Policy
for and under the Board’s review and update, where applicable or
necessary, annually. In which, the Group is committed to provide
a work environment free of harassment or discrimination for
employees and to promote employee development and promotion.
The Group shall identify suitable career development and training
programs to promote diversity among its employees and to prepare
them for further advancing to the Senior Management and Board
positions so that the Company will have pipeline of potential

successors to the Board.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had 31 full-time employees
in Hong Kong, with 18 male employees and 13 female employees.
The percentage of male and female employees of the Group
was approximately 58% and approximately 42%, respectively.
The Company set to appoint at least one female director by 31
December 2024 as its primary measurable objective in achieving
gender diversity. The Group shall discuss and agree on further
measurable objectives and plans for achieving diversity, as and
when appropriate, and shall review its recruitment and selection
mechanism to ensure recruitment and selection of employees at all
levels would take into account of the Board Diversity policy, and

the Diversity and Inclusion Policy for Senior Management and Staff.

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties set out below. It may delegate the responsibilities to one
or more Board committees, which shall comply with the relevant

terms of reference with regard to their duties.

i. To set business goals and strategic plans and objectives of the
Company in the best interests of the Group and overseeing

their implementation;

ii. To develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements and

monitor operation and financial performance of the Group;

iii.  To review the Company’s policies and practices on corporate

governance and make recommendations to the Board;

iv. To review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and the Senior
Management;

V. To review and monitor the internal control system and risk

management system of the Group;
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vi.

vii.

viii.

To develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and

compliance manual, if any, applicable to the directors and

employees of the Group;

To review the Company’s compliance with the applicable CG

Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report;

and

To provide insights on the Group’s culture and values.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Board has:

@)

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

™)

adopted the Anti-Corruption Policy;

reviewed and monitored the training and continuous

professional development of Directors and Senior

Management;

reviewed the compliance of the Company with the CG Code;

reviewed the effectiveness of the risk management and

internal control system of the Group; and

reviewed, monitored and revised the policies and practices

on corporate governance of the Company for ensuring

compliance with relevant legal and regulatory requirements,

including:

(2)

to continue its existing practices by encouraging

independent views and input, and review the

implementation and effectiveness of such practices

from time to time with the recommendation by

the nomination committee of the Company, when

appropriate, by:

)

(2)

3)

holding regular meetings of the Board and other
Board committees to encourage participation
by all members of the Board and/or committee
members to deliver their independent views and
inputs during such meetings;

allowing INEDs to freely communicate their
own views to the chairman of the Board during
designated meetings without the presence of
other Directors; and

having timely communication with the Directors
via various communication channels such as

teleconference and emails etc.

vi. fﬁ e *ﬁiﬁ&m/ﬁLmﬁAj‘(E@E%&
fié B Y 48 <y M I XA LT (nf)

vii. AR F RS A KSR ST I
K AE A SR O BRI DL

vii.  PRACA B AS G 1 SCAb R AR (EBLAY LA

BE-F-"HFF+A=Z+—HIFE #EF
7

() PR EITER

Giy M G B T R R R A B RO B 3
ET T e YR

iy ARBLAS N FESE (R SEAEESFAD B
oo

(iv)  AmAR AR A T A B R A B R AT Y
ARNE s &

(v) B B R AERT AR 2wl A S IR B
R RCHE R0 DA PR AR T A Bk R B
HLE > B4

) B L BUA Y B £ L R ST R K
B E R IR R R AR S E R
&% B a ik (s ) AR I AR
ORI B M I DL KA s > gy
T

(1 EWIEATE SR kLA
HHERSG m%ﬂ@%%@
é%&a&/ﬁ%a@&a%
B i B b 2 1 S5 R 8 ST 8
o E R

() BSLIERATE AR S E gk
AR B A H A HE S R R DL
THHmMERGEFRERLR
Rk

(3) 55 TE vk I T A A W
AR A - B IR BRLEE ST E

HESmMEHRAFRAA



(b) to allow the nomination committee of the Company
to establish and make recommendation to the Board
on, where appropriate, mechanism(s) to ensure
independent views and input are available to the Board
and to review the implementation and effectiveness of
such mechanism(s) on an annual basis.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance coverage in
respect of legal action against the Directors and its officers.

All Directors are provided with an update on the Group’s major
business activities and key financial information on a monthly basis.

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the Group’s
consolidated financial statements for each financial year or period
that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group
and of the results and cash flows position for that year or period. In
preparing the consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2022, the Directors have:

. selected suitable accounting policies and applied them
consistently with appropriate accounting standards;

. made judgments and estimates that are prudent and
reasonable; and

. prepared the consolidated financial statements on a going
concern basis.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the Group’s consolidated financial statements. This responsibility
extends to annual and interim reports, inside information
announcements and other financial disclosures, as well as reports
to regulators and information required to be disclosed in a
timely manner pursuant to the relevant rules and regulations.
The responsibility of the External Auditor for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2022 is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report
on pages 94 to 103 of this Annual Report.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Board held four
meetings to review and approve the overall strategies and policies
of the Group, interim and annual results and the significant issues
and transactions and matters regarding operations of the Group.
The Chairman has held a meeting with INEDs without the presence
of other Directors during the year.
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The attendance records of each Director at the meetings of the

Board, the audit, remuneration and nomination committees of the

Company, AGM and special general meeting (“‘SGM”) for the year

ended 31 December 2022 are set out below:

Name of Directors

Chairman and Non-Executive

EHIEA

ERRERTES

Board

EHE

Audit
Committee

KREHE

Director
MA Weihua ik 44 n/a NEF
Executive Directors IS
XU Peixin fR i Ak 34 n/a MR
SUN Lei %% 44 o AR
ZHU Dong ﬂ%g 4/4 n/a ANl
Independent Non-Executive BukamEs

Directors
QI Daging LON 4/4 5/5
CHEN Yigong BT 4/4 5/5
FENG Zhonghua e 4/4 5/5
Note:

1. MA Weihua and XU Peixin, were unable to attend 2022 SGM due to other
business engagements and strict compliance with COVID-19 prevention

and control measures in effect at that time.

Each newly appointed director, if any, is provided with necessary
induction and information to ensure that he has a proper
understanding of the Group’s operations and businesses as well
as his responsibilities under the relevant statutes, laws, rules and

regulations.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, Directors are provided
with monthly updates on the Company’s performance, position and
prospects to enable the Board as a whole and each Director to fully
discharge their duties. In addition, all Directors are encouraged to
participate in continuous professional development to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills. In order to allow the Directors
to understand the latest development of regulatory and compliance
issues, they are also provided with market news and regulatory
updates.
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2022
Remuneration  Nomination 2022 SGM
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I
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na MR na AEH 11 0/1
na NER na ANEH 11 0/1
na MR na AEH 11 1/1
na MR na AEH 11 1/1
11 1/1 1/1 1/1
11 1/1 1/1 1/1
11 1/1 1/1 1/1
P &

1o H A A 2 5 2 R R T e b TR S S IR AR Y
e R P B By 42 48 i > K5 R 3 R 4R Tl R CR B LW
T AR R I R

T OLH AL (A ) 24948 42 (06 B A it AT
JERN BB > AR PR JHL 36 A 4 1] ) 4 7 0 S5
DA B FG A AR B 35 KR~ 2k 4010~ B R e BT B 3
TR T

BE_FZ - "H+_H=+—HILFEE FF
HEAR A B A m R B~ AR DL SR R B 4 A 3
WER USSR LG EFE R EET
150 568 (Y Hk B LA > A ) SR 4l 5 g 2
Fp 8 BLE 35 i > LASE J Sl B 57 L ik e 151
Ry R T S M R R B I
1 A5 A5 SR A T 8 N R R B AR U T R BT
e

N

AfemERARAA



For the year ended 31 December 2022, a summary of Directors’
records of continuous development training is as below:

wWE_F -t A=t—HILFE EF
F 35 4 % 2 I WO B AL A T

Attending webinars/
reading materials and
updates relevant to
corporate governance

hEms G

B A B AR E R
Name of Directors HEHEEA Bk R 5B & B
Chairman and Non-Executive Director EERIEPITEDSR
MA Weihua TS R 3 v
Executive Directors HiTES
XU Peixin i ik v
SUN Lei #R& v
ZHU Dong R4 N
Independent Non-Executive Directors B JERAITE S
QI Daqing R B v
CHEN Yigong Fﬁﬂ]‘I \/
FENG Zhonghua 185 3 v

During the year ended 31 December 2022, Ms. WU Siu Ling (“Ms.
WU”) was the Company Secretary up to 31 July 2022. Ms. WU was
a full-time employee of the Company prior to her resignation and
took over 15 hours of professional training to update her skills and

knowledge.

Mr. CHAN Ngai Fan (“Mr. CHAN”), who possesses the requisite
qualification and experience of a company secretary as required
under Rule 3.28 of the Listing Rules, has been appointed as the
Company Secretary and the authorised representative of the
Company, with effect from 1 August 2022 for accepting service of
process or notice in Hong Kong on its behalf under the Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong). Mr. CHAN is a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(Practising) and an associate member of the Hong Kong Chartered
Governance Institute. Mr. CHAN has over 16 years of experience in
auditing, accounting, financial management, corporate governance
and regulatory compliance. Under code provision C.6.1 of the
CG Code, the company secretary should be an employee of the
Company and have the day-to-day knowledge of the Company’s
affairs. In view of Mr. CHAN is not an employee of the Company,
Mr. ZHU Dong, an executive director and a chief financial officer
of the Company, has been assigned as the main contact person of
the Company for Mr. CHAN so as to ensure Mr. CHAN can obtain
and access the information of the Group’s major affairs. For the
year ended as at 31 December 2022, Mr. CHAN took over 15 hours
of professional training to update his skills and knowledge.
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The Company has established three Board committees, including

audit, remuneration and nomination committees. The Board has

delegated the authorities and responsibilities to the relevant Board

committees and they shall comply with their terms of reference in
accordance with the CG Code and the Listing Rules. All members
of the Board committees are INEDs.

The Audit Committee was established on 11 April 2001. It
comprises three INEDs and is chaired by Dr. QI Daqing with two
members who are Mr. CHEN Yigong and Mr. FENG Zhonghua.

The principal duties and responsibilities of the Audit Committee are

set out below:

iii.

vi.

to make recommendation to the Board on the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of the external auditor and to
approve the remuneration and the terms of engagement of
the external auditors, and any questions of its resignation or
dismissal;

to review and monitor the independence of the external
auditor and its objectivity and effectiveness of the audit
process in accordance with the applicable standards. The Audit
Committee shall discuss with the external auditor the nature
and scope of the audit and reporting obligation before the
commencement of audit;

to review the engagement of an external auditor to supply
non-audit services;

to monitor integrity of the Company’s consolidated financial
statements and annual/interim reports and accounts and to
review significant financial reporting judgements contained in
them;

to review the Company’s financial controls, risk management
and internal control systems; and

to review the financial and accounting policies and practices

of the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, five meetings of the

Audit Committee were held and a summary of works is set out

below:

reviewed the Directors’ Report, Independent Auditor’s
Report and Consolidated Financial Statements of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2021 and the 2021
Annual Report and made a recommendation to the Board for

approval;

reviewed the Companyys interim consolidated financial
statements for the six months ended 30 June 2022 and the
2022 Interim Report and made a recommendation to the
Board for approval;
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. reviewed the Company’s accounting policies and its
compliance with the prevailing accounting standards of Hong
Kong and the results of the external audits;

. reviewed and assessed the effectiveness of risk management
system, internal control system and internal audit functions,
taking into account the 2021 Enterprise Risk Assessment
Report, 2021 Internal Control Review Report and 2021
Control Remediation Follow-up Report as issued by an
independent professional firm which performed internal
audit function (the “Internal Auditor”) to assist the Senior
Management to review the risk management and internal
control system, and the letter of confirmation on the
effectiveness of risk management and internal control systems
issued by the Senior Management;

. reviewed and monitored the compliance of the Group with
all applicable laws, regulations, standards and best practice
guidelines; and

. made a recommendation to the Board on the appointment
of the external auditor of the Company (the “External
Auditor”) and approved the remuneration and the terms of
engagement of the External Auditor.

The Audit Committee also met in separate private sessions with the

External Auditor twice during the year.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the fee payable to Baker
Tilly Hong Kong Limited (“BTHK”), being the external auditor
of the Company, as any entity under common control, ownership
or management with the external auditor or any entity that a
reasonable and informed third party having knowledge of all
relevant information would reasonably conclude as part of the audit
firm nationally or internationally, in relation to audit and non-audit
services is set out below together with the relevant comparative fee
paid to Messrs. Ernst & Young, the former external auditor of the
Company, in 2021:

R %5

Services

A 5

Audit services
Non-audit services (Note 1)

Note:
1. Non-audit services for both years mainly consisted of the reviews of the
Group’s interim financial reports and the performance of certain agreed-

upon procedures, including taxation services and issuance of turnover

certificates.
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An independence confirmation has been obtained from BTHK
confirming that BTHK is independent of the Group in accordance
with the independence requirements of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants for the year ended 31 December 2022
and up to the date of this Annual Report.

The remuneration committee of the Company (the
“Remuneration Committee”) was established on 23 March
2004. It comprises three INEDs and is chaired by Mr. FENG
Zhonghua with two members who are Dr. QI Daqing and
Mr. CHEN Yigong.

The principal duties and responsibilities of the Remuneration
Committee are set out below:

i. to consult the Chairman and/or chief executive about their

remuneration proposals for other executive directors;

ii.  to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure of remuneration of all Directors and
Senior Management and establish a formal and transparent
procedures to determine the remuneration policy;

iii. to review and approve the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and
objectives;

iv.  to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and Senior
Management;

v. to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
of non-executive directors;

vi. to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the group;

vii. to review and approve compensation payable to executive
Directors and Senior Management for any loss or termination
of office or appointment to ensure that it is consistent with
contractual terms and are otherwise fair and not excessive;

viii. to review and approve the compensation arrangements
relating to dismissal or removal of directors for misconduct
to ensure that they are consistent with contractual terms and

are otherwise reasonable and appropriate;

ix.  to ensure that no Director or any of his associates is involved

in deciding his own remuneration;

AN A B S R A S 0 8 S M R > D
AR 7 s B w2 & B B S PE R E > R U
PEEF - HF T A=t HIEFEER
HEARFR ISR A G -

RAFHMEZEE G ([HFMEREG]) N %
WE=ZH +=ZHWM 7 -FMEEGH =48
SEIE AT EE AL B A B h S A HiAl
T 44 BBy 75 K B T R B R T2k -

% B &0 R KRR T

o A HA AT S S R e R e
AT AR

i, A R R B AR R
P B SFE S A - Rl s 57 I L T L 9
BE 1 A2 I ] 6T BOR - 1 A
ek

i, PR EEE e T ET A 7 B & H R A
T A 45 LR 17 387 I 5 98

iv. I 3 S R AT AR
NIRRT o

v ORCIE AT HE S I 1 B S kR

vi. % JE RV A S AT I TN~ ZE AT i
] e Bk 2 DA S 4 T oA Al 8K 7 %) R R e
4

vii. A et B A ME 1 AT S K A R
o R Bl A& 1 BB BR 2 A T ZE S A Y G
8> DAREAR 5% S5 IE B BL A A Ik — 30 &
KAEE G Ak — 80 BEIR AN T &
o ABURZ

vii, A AT e A v RS AT 2 O T AR R B R
G A B S B K 4 1 PR o DL £R
ZAE R P S K B0 A KRR &
Ak — 20 A B IS IR E & BB

ix.  BEORAT 7 3 SCHAL (T B AR 152 5
JifE S A B ) B 5

HA&AEmERARAA



X to review and/or approve matters relating to share schemes
under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules; and

xi. to ensure the Company shall disclose the directors’
remuneration policy, details of any remuneration payable
to members of Senior Management by band and other
remuneration related matters in the Company’s annual
reports.

The Remuneration Committee has adopted the model that it
will review the proposals made by the senior management on the
remuneration packages of the executive Directors and the Senior
Management, and make recommendations to the Board. The Board
will have final authority to approve the recommendations made by

the Remuneration Committee.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, one meeting of the

Remuneration Committee was held and a summary of works is set

out below:
. reviewed the policy for remuneration of executive Directors;
. reviewed and approved the proposals regarding (i)

remuneration packages of executive Directors who are also
the Senior Management with reference to their background,
qualifications, experience, level of responsibilities undertook
with the Company and prevailing market conditions; and (ii)
directors’ fee of the Board members for recommendation to

the Board for approval.

The Nomination Committee was established on 8 March 2006.
It comprises with three INEDs and is chaired by Mr. CHEN
Yigong, with two members who are Dr. QI Daqing and Mr. FENG
Zhonghua.

The principal duties and responsibilities of the Nomination
Committee are set out below:

i. to review the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at least
annually and make recommendations on any proposed changes
to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy;

ii. to review the implementation and effectiveness of the
Board Diversity Policy on an annual basis and make
recommendations on any proposed changes of the Board
Diversity Policy and its implementation to the Board that may
be required;

iii. to establish and make recommendation to the Board on,
where appropriate, mechanism(s) to ensure independent
views and input are available to the Board and to review the
implementation and effectiveness of such mechanism(s) on an

annual basis.
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iv.

vi.

to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board
on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships.
In assessing the suitability of a proposed candidate, the
Nomination Committee shall consider the criteria that
include but not limited to gender, age, cultural, educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service as set forth in the Board
Diversity Policy, and whether such candidate contributes to
diversity to the Board and can bring perspectives, skills and
experience with independent views and inputs to the Board
that would facilitate or assist the development of the existing
or future business at the operating scale of the Group, and
whether such candidate would be able to devote sufficient
time to Board;

to assess the independence of INEDs; and

to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of the Directors and succession planning

for Directors, in particular the chairman and the chief

executive.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, one meeting of the

Nomination Committee was held and a summary of works is set out

below:

reviewed the structure, size, composition and diversity of the
Board and noted compliance of various measurable objectives
set out in the Board Diversity Policy except the single gender
of the Board;

proposed to the Board the appointment of at least one female
Director on or before 31 December 2024 for complying with
the relevant amended CG Code;

reviewed and discussed regarding analysis of gender ratio in
the workforce of the Group for year ended 31 December
2021 and considered the Group’s workforce gender ratio
composed of 60% of male and 40% of female in 2021 as even
distribution among workforce and adopted such ratio as the

measurable objectives of diversity of workforce of the Group;

reviewed and discussed the proposal regarding the retirement
and re-appointment of the Directors by rotation at 2022 AGM
and the letters of consent for re-election received from the
retiring Directors for recommendation to the Board approval;

and

reviewed and assessed the independence of INEDs for the
year ended 31 December 2021 and considered that all INEDs
were independent and recommended the assessment to the

Board for review.

vi.
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The Company has formulated risk management and internal
control systems to provide standard guidelines for identification,
assessment, management, monitoring and reporting of all materials
risks of the Company, which shall be reported to the Senior

Management, the Audit Committee and the Board when necessary.

The Company has established appropriate internal control
procedures to ensure a comprehensive, accurate and timely record
of accounting and management information. It also conducts a
regular review to ensure the consolidated financial statement is
prepared in accordance with the relevant accounting standards and

applicable laws and regulations.

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for regulating and
maintaining sound and effective risk management and internal
control systems of the Group and review their efficiency through
the Audit Committee with the assistance of the Senior Management
and the Internal Auditor, and the extent of the risks it is willing
to take. Such systems aim to manage, rather than eliminate, risk
arising from the failure in achieving the business objectives, and
they can only provide reasonable, but not absolute assurance against

material misstatement or loss.

The Group’s risk management framework is based on a “Three
Lines of Defence” model with a systematic approach and clearly
defined roles and responsibilities of relevant parties:

1st Line of Defence

L Dk

Risk ownership Risk Owners
J, Bt B .

and evaluating the adequacy of the control;

. designing risk responses (i.e. actions to improve or optimise .
controls or mitigate risks identified during the risk assessment

process) for risks without adequate control to mitigate risks to

the target tolerance level;

identifying existing controls relating to the risks in their areas
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J implementing the risk responses for which they are responsible RN N ES
for;
. reviewing and monitoring the effectiveness of risk responses for Rt B B 2 HL B 5 JaL B T

which they are responsible for updating the Risk Management
Task Force at least semi-annually on the status of their risk

responses implementation.
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2nd Line of Defence

5B I8 B 4

Risk management

o B A B

Risk reporting

o B

Risk oversight

o B B

3rd Line of Defence

5= b B

Risk Management Task Force

. providing support to the senior management during the
process of design, implementation and monitoring of the risk

management and internal control systems, and ensuring that it is

consistently applied across the Group;

. maintaining and updating the risk register;

. providing the risk owners with the methodology for conducting
the risk and control monitoring activities, providing direction
and training on how to complete the risk response plans and

other risk reports; and

. overseeing activities performed by risk owners, obtaining and
reviewing work prepared by the risk owners.

Senior Management

. monitoring risk management process and developing relevant

responses to risks;

. certifying that they operate an effective system of risk
management and have undertaken an exercise to identify and
assess significant risks faced by the Group;

. reporting to the Audit Committee on the progress and status of

the risk management process; and

. reviewing the risk register and reporting the effectiveness of
risk management systems to the Audit Committee and the Board

annually.

Audit Committee

. overseeing the Group’s overall risk management framework and
to advise the Board on the Group's risk-related matters;

. approving the Group’s risk policies and risk tolerances;

. reviewing risk reports and breaches of risk tolerances and

policies; and

. reviewing and assessing the effectiveness of the Group’s
risk control/mitigation tools including the enterprise risk
management programme, the risk management systems, the

internal audit function relating to risk management and the

) .
Group s contingency plans annually.

Independent assurance Internal Audit Function

L AT

. outsourced to the Internal Auditor;

. carrying out the audit plan, assessing and analysing if the
controls stated in the risk register is sufficient and effective; and
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. supporting the Board through the Audit Committec in reviewing *

the effectiveness and efficiency of the Group’s risk management

system.
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The 5-Step risk management process is the defined set of activities

that delivers effective risk management within the Group:

04

Risk Responses

Risk
Management

Process

B A B )

JEN 5 WO 3B 45

Steps
5

1. Risk Identification

L E

2. Risk Assessment
and Prioritisation

Ja B A e
51 B DO e

3. Risk Owner Appointment

ZIEEMB AR

4. Risk Responses

J B 3 4

5. Upward Reporting
and Monitoring

I b 2 4 I B 4
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Actions to be taken

Risks identified should include all risks whether or not they are under
the direct control of the business. They can be identified from a number
of sources including a review of the strategic plans to identify new risks
and existing and standard risk areas. Risks to be identified includes

external risks, strategic risks and preventable risks.

To prioritize the risks identified in Step 1 in a logical manner based on

the impact and likelihood of the occurrence of the identified risks.

Risk owners will be appointed to all identified risks. The risk owners
are responsible for ensuring that an analysis over the causes and
consequences of the risk is conducted and an appropriate risk response

is in place to manage the main causes and consequences.

Risk owners design the cost-effective and efficient risk response plans
based on the Group’s risks appetite and nature of each risk category
which can enable the Group to prevent, adapt and anticipate risks that

would impact the business strategy.

Risk owners shall report timely the identified risks and relevant risk
responses to the Senior Management, the Audit Committee and the

Board, if necessary.
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The Company has conducted an enterprise risk management
(“ERM”) assessment for the year ended 31 December 2022 through
the Internal Auditor, based on the Group’s risk management

framework to assess the risks relevant to the business of the Group.

2021 Enterprise Risk Assessment Report, 2021 Internal Control
Review Report, 2021 Control Remediations Follow-up Report and
an report regarding audit of internal control and risk management
for the year ended 31 December 2021 were issued by the Internal
Auditors, to the Board (i) addressing the enterprise risk assessment
results; and (ii) current status of action plans of remediation
addressing the findings after they were reviewed by the Audit

Committee.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Board and the Audit
Committee have decided to outsource the review of the internal
control system to the Internal Auditor in considering the structure,
complexity and size of the Group. The Board has delegated to Senior
Management with the authority to the design, implementation and
monitoring of the internal control system as well as the review of
relevant financial, operational and compliance controls procedures.
The Board shall review the need for establishing an internal audit
function within the Group annually.

The expectations of the Company regarding duty and integrity
are clearly stated in the Company’s Code of Conduct (as defined
below) and staff handbook, as well as the policies and procedures
manuals which set out the rules and policies, for the Directors
and employees of the Group to follow. These cover all aspects of
administrative and operational activities, including relationships
with customers, suppliers, competitors and fellow staffs. The
internal control system covers every activity and transaction of the
Group. The system is based on clear stewardship responsibilities,
authorities and accountability. Our employees are an important
part of our internal control system and the Group expects them
to contribute to that system. In addition to setting our guidelines,
principles and values, the Group recognises that an environment
where employees feel free to report problems to the management
is also necessary to make our internal control system successful.

The Internal Auditor has issued Internal Control Review Report
to the Board (i) to address identification of internal control
deficiencies and weaknesses and propose recommendations for
remediation within the timeframe; (ii) to discuss the findings and
control deficiencies with the Senior Management or the responsible
staff member, who is responsible to rectify the deficiencies within
the responsible period; and (iii) to perform a review of the follow-
up actions to ensure the implementation of the action plan.
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The Board has conducted an annual review of the effectiveness
of the risk management and internal control systems of the
Group through the Audit Committee, Senior Management, and
Internal Auditor. During the year ended 31 December 2022, the
Company has reviewed and/or revised and/or adopted policies
and procedures, including (i) Risk Management Manual, (ii) Code
of Conduct, (iii) Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
and Code for Securities Transactions by Relevant Employees,
(iv) Reporting Policy on Connected/Continuing Connected
Transactions and Notifiable Transactions, (v) Whistleblowing Policy,
(vi) Anti-Corruption Policy, (vii) Board Diversity Policy, (viii)
Diversity and Inclusion Policy for Senior Management and Staff,
(ix) Shareholders Communication Policy, (x) Terms of Reference of
Remuneration Committee, (xi) Terms of Reference of Nomination
Committee and all these policies are applicable to the members of
the Group.

The Board has received a letter of confirmation from the
management on the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems and is satisfied that such systems were
still effective and adequate for the year ended 31 December 2022.

No significant areas of concern that might affect the Shareholders
were identified.

The Company has adopted its own Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors (the “Securities Code”) on terms no less exacting
than the required standard of the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of the Listed Issuers set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules. In response to specific enquiries made by
the Company to all Directors and they confirmed that they have
complied with the Securities Code throughout the year ended
31 December 2022.

With a view to identifying, handling and disseminating inside
information in compliance with the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Cap. 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong), the Group
has been implementing the proper internal control procedures
including written pre-clearance from the designated director prior
to any dealing in the Company’s securities by the Director in
accordance with the Security Code, the Directors and the relevant
employees being subject to the blackout period prior to the release
of the Company’s financial results, identification of project by code
name and dissemination of information to stated purpose and on
a need-to-know basis to guard against the possible mishandling of
inside information which may constitute inside dealing or breach of
any other statutory obligations.

Bison Finance Group Limited
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The Company considers effective communication with Shareholders
is essential to enable them to have a clear assessment of the Group’s
performance as well as accountability of the Board. Sharcholders
and investment community may, at any time, direct enquiries in

respect of the Company to the Board by sending to:

Address: 6th Floor, 18 King Wah Road, North Point, Hong Kong
Telephone: (852) 2165 3000
Email: cosec(@bison.com.hk

The Company endeavours to disclose all material information
about the Group to all interested parties on a timely basis. The
Company maintains a corporate website (www.bison.com.hk)
where important corporate information and other relevant
financial and non-financial information such as annual reports and
interim reports, notices and announcements, circulars and other
information are available for review by Sharcholders and other

stakeholders.

The Company7s AGM and SGM provide a useful platform for direct
communication between the Board and Sharcholders. Separate
resolutions are proposed on each substantially separate issue at the

General Meeting.

In accordance with the Listing Rules, the Company would arrange
for the notice to Sharecholders to be sent in the case of AGMs not
less than 21 days before the date of the meeting and to be sent not
less than 14 days before the date of other General Meetings.

Under the Bye-laws of the Company, all Sharcholders have 21
clear days’ notice of the AGM and SGM for the passing of a special
resolution, and 14 clear days’ notice of all other General Meetings
at which the Directors and Board committee chairmen or members
are available to answer their questions. A representative (usually the
engagement partner) of the External Auditor also attends the AGM
and will take questions from Sharcholders relating to their audit of
the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

The 2022 AGM was held on 27 June 2022 and the 2022 SGM was
held on 26 September 2022. Each of the poll results of the 2022
AGM and the 2022 SGM were published on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange on the same day of the relevant

meetings.
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During the year ended 31 December 2022, all Directors and the
External Auditors attended 2022 AGM, and all Directors (except
MA Weihua and XU Peixin due to other business commitments)
attended the 2022 SGM, to understand the views of the
Sharcholders and answered enquiries therein.

The Board is of the view that the implementation and effectiveness
of the Shareholders’ Communication Policy are affirmed and
reflected by the active participation of Directors and Shareholders
to the Company’s General Meetings and corporate events.

Resolutions put to vote at the General Meeting (other than on
procedural and administrative matters) are taken by poll. The
results of any voting by poll are announced and published as soon
as possible, but in any event no later than 30 minutes before the
carlier of the commencement of the morning trading session or any
pre-opening session on the business day following the meeting, on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

A summary of certain rights of the Sharcholders as required to be
disclosed pursuant to the mandatory disclosure requirement under
Paragraph K of the revised CG Code set out in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules with effect from 1 January 2022 is set out below:

Pursuant to the Bye-laws of the Company, Sharcholders holding
at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of
the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting
at General Meetings shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board to convene a SGM for the transaction of
any business specified in such requisition. The request must be
in written form with the purpose of the meeting stated therein,
duly signed by the Sharcholders concerned and deposited at our
principal place of business in Hong Kong for the attention of the
Company Secretary. Upon receipt of the confirmation by the
Company’s share registrars that the request is valid, the Company
Secretary will arrange to convene a SGM by serving sufficient
notice in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws and the statutory

requirements to all the registered Shareholders.

Shareholders holding not less than one-tenth of the total voting
rights of those Sharcholders having the right to vote at the General
Meeting may submit a written request to move a resolution at the
General Meetings. The procedures for putting forward proposals at

General Meetings is available on the website of the Company.

Bison Finance Group Limited
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Enquires may be put to the Board by contacting either the Company
Secretary through (852) 2165 3000 or e-mail at cosec@bison.com.hk
or directly by questions at AGM or a SGM. Questions on the procedure
for convening or putting forward proposals at an AGM or a SGM may

also be put to the Company Secretary through the same means.

Subject to the laws of Bermuda and the Bye-laws of the Company,
the Board may from time to time declare dividends as appear to the
Board to be justified by the profits of the Company in any currency
and amount to be paid to the Shareholders. Any dividend for a
financial year shall be subject to Sharcholders’ approval.

The Board may from time to time pay to the Shareholders interim
dividends or special dividends as appear to the Board to be justified
by the profits of the Company.

In addition to cash, dividends may be satisfied wholly or in part by
the distribution of specific assets of any kind and in particular of
paid-up shares credited as fully paid up, debentures or warrants to
subscribe securities of the Company or any other company, or in
any one or more of such ways, with or without offering any rights
to the Sharcholders to elect to receive such dividend in cash. In
case of dividends to be satisfied wholly or in part in the form of
an allotment of shares credited as fully paid up, the Shareholders
entitled thereto will be entitled to elect to receive such dividend (or
part thereof) in cash in lieu of such allotment.

In deciding whether to propose a dividend and in determining
amount and form of any dividend in any financial year/period, the
Board shall take into account the following factors:

. financial results of the Group

. Shareholders’ interests

. the current and future operations and future prospect of the
Group

. the current and future capital and investment requirements of
the Group

. any other factors that the Board may deem relevant

There can be no assurance that a dividend will be proposed or

declared in any given financial year.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, there is no change in

the memorandum of association and bye-laws of the Company.
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Bison Finance Group Limited (the “Company” together with

its subsidiaries, the “Group” or “we”) is pleased to present
this Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”) report (the

“Report”).

This Report is prepared in accordance with the ESG Reporting
Guide set out in Appendix 27 to the Rules of Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) and cover the period from 1 January 2022 to
31 December 2022 (the “Reporting Period” or “2022”) unless

otherwise specified.

During the Reporting Period, the Group is principally engaged in
provision of financial services with the licences to carry out Type
1 (dealing in securities), Type 4 (advising on securities), Type 6
(advising on corporate finance) and Type 9 (asset management)
regulated activities under the Securities and Futures Ordinance

(“SFO”) (collectively the “Financial Services Business”).

This Report sets out the ESG management approach and strategy
of the board of directors (the “Directors”) of the Company (the
“Board”) and the ESG policies, initiatives and performance of
the Group covering our major business operations in Hong Kong,
namely the Financial Services Business, which is the same as the
scope of the Annual Report. During the year ended 31 December
2021 (“20217), the Group had discontinued the media business,
therefore, the scope of this Report does not cover the media

business.

This Report has been reviewed and approved by the Board and
the preparation of this Report is strictly adhered to the following
reporting principles of “Materiality”, “Quantitative”, “Balance” and
Consistency”. We have appointed ROMA Risk Advisory Limited,
being an independent ESG consultant (the “ESG Consultant”), to
facilitate our ESG data collection and analysis, as well as provision
of strategic advices on the development of our ESG practices in the

future:

Bison Finance Group Limited
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Materiality HEY

During the Reporting Period, the Group carried out the
stakeholders engagement activities through a survey on
the review of material ESG topics to the stakeholders
of the Group. The results of this survey is summarised
under subsections headed “Stakeholder Engagcmcnt" and
Matcrlallty Assessment” on pages 74 to 76.
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Consistency — M

This Report has been prepared in accordance with the
consistent methodologies for calculation of KPIs and
standards as compared to 2021, unless otherwise specified
with the explanations for the change of calculation
methodologies. Compared to 2021, the reporting scope of
this Report has changed due to the discontinuation of the
media business since November 2021.
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Donation made to Greeners Action for Mooncake Boxes *

Rccycling Programmc 2022

Donation made to Greeners Action for Red Packet Reusing ¢

Programmc 2022

Donation made to The Community Chest of Hong Kong for ¢

Mooncakes for Charity 2022

Participation in Earth Hour 2022 organised by World Wildlife ¢

Fund Hong Kong

Participation in No Air Con Night 2022 organised by Green  *® 2 Bl

Sense

Organisation of one day meat free lunch in office by
provision of vegetarian lunch box for employees to promote

vegetarianism

Quantitative #1Mt

We disclose in this Report, the standards and
methodologies used in the calculation of relevant data, as
well as the applicable assumptions. The key performance
indicators (“KPIs”) are supplemented by explanatory notes

to establish benchmarks where feasible.
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Balance F#

This Report provides an unbiased overview of ESG
performance of the Group with our achievement and areas
of improvements in material ESG aspects.
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. Awarded the 20 Years Plus Caring Company Logo by The
Hong Kong Council of Social Service in The Caring Company
Scheme 2022/23

. Donation made to KELY Support Group for KELY's
Mooncake Charity Sale 2022

. Participation in The 2022 Community Chest Dress Casual
Day organised by The Community Chest of Hong Kong

The Board has the overall responsibility of the ESG management
of the Group including the identification of ESG-related goals,
targets and risks, review of the ESG performance with the
support from the ESG working group of the Company (the “ESG
Working Group”), the designated members of the Group
(including human resources team, IT team, compliance team
and other business teams) and the ESG Consultant. The Board is
diverse in its composition and is considered to have a balance of
skills and experience in overseeing the ESG matters of the Group,
with the support from the ESG Consultant on advices relating to
compliance and strategies formulation, and from ESG Working
Group on implementation, monitoring and reporting of matters
relating to ESG and its policies. The ESG Working Group comprises
three members and is chaired by one executive director of the
Company with two members including the company secretary of
the Company (the “Company Secretary®) and personnel manager
of the Group.

The ESG Working Group shall meet at least once a year to evaluate
the effectiveness of current policies and procedures, and formulate
appropriate solutions to improve the overall performance of ESG
policies. The findings, decisions and recommendations of the ESG
Working Group should be reported to the Board in the next Board
meeting following the holding of the meeting of ESG Working
Group. With the support from the ESG Working Group, the
Board discusses ESG-related issues, approves the implementation
and reporting of ESG initiatives, goals and targets of the Group,
and reviews the progress against the targets sct at least annually.
During the Reporting Period, the Board has reviewed the progress
made against all ESG-related targets set in 2021 by the Group and
approved its new targets set in 2022, the details of which are set
out in the section headed “Our Environment”.

Bison Finance Group Limited
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To facilitate the decision-making process, the ESG Working Group
is delegated with the following major duties and responsibilities by
the Board to support the fulfilment of the ESG objectives:

1. To make recommendations to the Board on the process
to identify the material ESG-related issues of the Group
including the risks to the Group’s business, to set the ESG-
related goals and targets in order to align with the goals of
long-term business development of the Group and to allow
its stakeholders to have a clear understanding of its ESG

performance;

2. To develop and implement the ESG-related strategies,
frameworks and policies of the Group and report to the
Board on the progress and effectiveness of the development

and implementation; and

3. To review and make recommendations to the Board on
the preparation and disclosures of the ESG reports of the
Company in accordance with the internal policies and
guidelines of the Group, and all applicable laws, rules and

regulations.

The structure of our ESG governance is set out below:
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The Group’s stakeholders include among others, the Board and AREMPY RN E B ES T RAER&RE
senior management of the Group, our shareholders and investors, HMANE - BREKEE -KF-RE - HLRERF-
clients, employees, suppliers, government authorities and regulators B RT B B B B 7 B DA R AL I IR BORT 20 4%

as well as community, non-governmental organisations (“NGOs”) (TIEBORF AL AR | ) M IR 55 -

and media.

Stakeholders

it &

The Board and senior management

ERGNERERANE

Shareholders and investors

JBe R R 4% e

Clients

9

Employees

(=

Suppliers
A

Government authorities and regulators

ST 6 B % B A

Community, NGOs and media

M1~ IR BUR AR S B

Bison Finance Group Limited

Communication Channels

i P 0E

. Training and seminars
B9l K wiE e

. Regular meetings
JE W

. General meetings
R K&

. Annual and interim reports
A S

. Announcements and circulars
o5 KO K

. Company website

NGIEED

. Company website
s v HE

. Feedback and complaints
J A8 B AR

M Face to face meetings

[ESNEREEA

. Training and seminars
B @l K Bt
. Daily communications and regular meetings
H & il Joe e ek
. Employee activities
B iS58
. Communications prior to and during the engagements

7 W i B 2 1 403 [ ) s 2

. Emails or phone calls
I A S
. Forums and workshops

iy S WS

. Emails or phone calls
B RS
. ESG reports
IREE AL R R
. Community activities
L [ 7 3
. Charity donations to NGOs
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We strongly believe that effective communication with our
stakeholders is essential to create long-term value for them and to
facilitate the Board to have better understanding of their concerns

on the material ESG-related issues.

During the Reporting Period, the ESG Working Group with the
assistance of the ESG Consultant, has identified 17 material ESG-
related topics and invited our internal stakeholders, i.e. senior
management and employees, to participate in a survey to evaluate
the materiality of the identified ESG-related topics based on the
area of impact towards the Group’s business operation. Based
on the results of the survey, the Group prioritised and identified
the material ESG-related topics and develop our ESG framework
of this Report and ESG management strategies to address our
stakeholders’ concerns on the ESG-related issues in the future. Our

approaches to the materiality assessment are set out below:
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We formulated a materiality assessment matrix showing our

stakeholders’ concerns on 17 material ESG-related topics identified

as set out below:

»
>

Higher Importance
ER S

FA i 5 B BN R AL R R R 7
I8l © Al A9 B R BR B ~ A L A I AR B R 1Y
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Materiality Matrix

TSPk

B # R EE N

Importance to Stakeholders

Lower Importance
Eeca i

Lower Importance

EEIRE

Emissions

Y]

Energy efficiency
RB IR R 4

‘Waste management
5% P A B

Climate change

ERNTS (4

Our Operation AN iy

Supply chain management

P e G A B

Customer services

% P IR

Service quality control

il 255 B

Protection of intellectual properties
R e ik i

Privacy protection

AL v

Anti-corruption

R &5

Whistle-blowing mechanism
SR

Anti-money laundering

AR 3

Significance to Business

BB B

>
{>
Higher Importance

EEIE

Our Employee MM E T.

Based on the materiality assessment matrix, we identified 7

ESG-related topics which are significant to the Groupys business

operation and our stakeholders, including the (1) anti-corruption;

(2) privacy protection; (3) anti-money laundering; (4) whistle-

blowing mechanism; (5) service quality control; (6) talent training

management and courses; and (7) employment practices.

Bison Finance Group Limited

Employment practices
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Occupational health and safety

TRk ¥ fa e B 22 2

Talent training management and courses

N B PE R R

Prevention of child labour and forced labour
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Corporate social responsibility

ke SR H-YER

R 45 T M A R R R Ak B 7 e A 4R
B EHS A MR AN S B EE IR 4
& KEIRH B E . B0 ETT s )RR
S )TTHRVESE (B IREH o) IR E B
il 5 (6) AN A 855 V8 BE KRR 5 B (7) IR A AR



We take pride in the development of our excellent customer
relationships and value the reputation we have received of being
a trustworthy, caring and professional financial services company.
The Group has established the standard operating procedures of the
Financial Services Business to ensure the quality of the services. The
Group recognises the importance on the customers’ feedbacks and
needs which could enhance the corporate brand connection and the
overall customer experiences. We actively collect the customers’
feedbacks through ongoing communication and if the Group has
received any complaints from our customers, such complaints are
handled by the designated department pursuant to the established
procedures, including acknowledgement to relevant client of receipt of
the complaint and that is under consideration, sending letter to relevant
client notifying complaint is still in investigation if it cannot be resolved
within 7 business days, using all efforts to resolve complaint within 28
days from its initial reporting, advising client for available further steps
under existing regulatory system as a part of the final response. We
strive to build a long-term relationship with our clients which is vital
to our business. During the Reporting Period, no products or service
related complaint was received or no products were recalled due to the
health and safety reasons (2021: Nil).

It is our belief that the integration of ESG analysis in our investment
process can help us to identify business models that are most likely to
thrive in the long term and generate sustainable returns. The Group
considers the business integrity and compliance with internal policies
and guidelines of the Group, all applicable laws and regulations
including among others, the Internal Control and Compliance Manual,
the Company Policy Manual (Anti-Money Laundering and Terrorist
Financing), the SFO, the Code of Conduct for Persons Licensed by or
Registered with the Securities and Futures Commission (“SFC”) and
the Fund Manager Code of Conduct, as fundamental expectations to
our employees during all working process.

The Group has established the Internal Control and Compliance
Manual, which outlines the standards and principles applicable to our
employees for provision of all product details and terms of service to
our customers in compliance with all applicable laws and regulations.
The Group has zero tolerance for corruption and money laundering,
All employees are strictly complied with the code of conduct of the
Company (the “Code of Conduct”) and they shall report promptly
to the Company Secretary or audit committee of the Company (the
“Audit Committee”), the suspected misconducts, malpractices or
irregularities relating to financial reporting, internal control and other
matters within the Group in accordance with the Whistle-blowing
Policy. The Company Secretary shall be appointed to manage such
report from the whistle-blower and if necessary, an investigator from
the outsourced internal auditors shall be appointed to look into the
matter and any possible criminal activity will be referred to the Audit
Committee in consultation with the legal advisers to determine further
action, i.e. report to the relevant authorities. A final report with
recommendations for changes will be provided to the Board by the

Audit Committee, if necessary.
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Our employees who are the licensed persons (as defined under
SFO) are required to attend the Anti-Money Laundering and
Counter Terrorist Financing e-learning courses during the
Reporting Period. The trainings aim to keep the licensed persons
abreast of the latest compliance trends and practices in the
Financial Services Business and enrich their professional skills
and knowledges in their roles and responsibilities regarding anti-
corruption and business ethics matters. We have appointed a
compliance officer for two licensed corporations who is mainly
responsible for ongoing monitoring the suspicious activities and the
compliance obligations of these licensed corporations in accordance
with SFO. If and when necessary, we shall fully cooperate with
enquiries or requests from the government authorities. Directors
and relevant employees will receive anti-corruption related
training or reading materials from time to time. During the
Reporting Period, 6 Directors and 20 employees received online
anti-corruption training to familiarise themselves with their
corresponding roles and responsibilities in anti-corruption and
business ethics, which helps to cultivate employee’s awareness
towards the latest development of anti-corruption and business
ethics.

In our daily business operation, we observe the importance on
the protection of intellectual property rights, through patents,
trademarks and copyrights. Our IT team has obtained all the
necessary licences for the purchase of software and information
during our business operation.

The Group strives to protect the data privacy of our employees,
customers, and business partners, and is in strictly compliance
with the relevant laws and regulations, i.e. Personal Data (Privacy)
Ordinance (“PDPO”) and certain guidelines issued by the Officer
of the Privacy Commissioners on the compliance with requirements
under PDPO. The information of our customers is confidential and
handled by our employees with due care to avoid any data leakage
and misuse in accordance with the data privacy protection measures
and the Group shall regularly review the effectiveness of these
measures. During the Reporting Period, there was no incident nor
substantiated complaint concerning breaches of customer privacy
or losses of customer data (2021: Nil).

During the Reporting Period, there was no report of non-
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations relating
to corruption, bribery, extortion, fraud, money laundering,
intellectual property rights and privacy leakage which have
significant impact on the Group nor any concluded legal cases
regarding corrupt practices brought against the Group or its

employees (2021: Nil).
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Suppliers are evaluated by the Group and subjected to regular
monitoring and assessments. The Group will evaluate and engage
suppliers based on products and services quality, price, after-
sales service, as well as environmental and social risks. Qualified
suppliers will be listed in the qualified supplier list, which will be
reviewed by the Group annually. Suppliers who fail to meet the
Group’s criteria are either being suspended or excluded from the

Group’s qualified supplier list.

Regarding environmental and social risks along the supply chain,
the Group has established the Sustainable Supply Chain Policy
applicable to all the members of the Group, with an objective to
manage the environmental and social impacts in our supply chain,
including the procurement of products and services. New suppliers
and the list of existing qualified suppliers shall be reviewed annually
based on the following major principles as set out in the Sustainable

Supply Chain Policy and the Code of Conduct:

1. to achieve ethical standards for the business operations;
2. to pursue human and labour rights;
3. to follow the practices to conserve natural resources;

4. to impartially select capable and responsible suppliers and

contractors;
5. to maximise the use of competition; and
6. to adopt the effective monitoring system and management

controls to detect and prevent bribery, fraud or other
malpractices in the processes of procurement and tendering.

We mainly sourced our materials, products and services from the
local suppliers which at least can minimise the carbon emissions
from transportation and support the development of local economy
and community. In addition, the Group purchased with priority
those office equipment with energy efficiency label and stationery
using environmental-friendly packaging with certified labels.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has engaged a total of 107
suppliers, among which 106 are located in Hong Kong and 1 in
Mainland China (2021: a total of 209 suppliers, with 206 located
in Hong Kong, 2 in the United States of America, and 1 in Ireland).
All such 107 suppliers are subject to the Sustainable Supply
Chain Policy and relevant practices relating to engaging suppliers
mentioned above. The Group shall regularly review relevant
practices and the Sustainable Supply Chain Policy to ensure their
effectiveness.
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ENVIRONMENTAL,
RE & RERBE

OUR EMPLOYEES

We take pride in treating our employees with respect, fairness and
care. The Group has established policies and procedures to cultivate
our employees’ skills, realise their potentials and uphold a healthy
and safe working environment with equal opportunities.

People

We have established an Equal Employment Opportunity Policy
which applies across all the employees of the Group and is reviewed
regularly when necessary. It is strictly followed to ensure each
employee within the Group is treated with equality and fairly
under all circumstances. This policy promotes equal employment
opportunities where employment, recruitment, training, terms of
employment, benefits and promotions are offered to each employee
regardless of his/her race, sex, marital status, pregnancy, disability
or family status.

During the Reporting Period, there was no report of non-
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations relating
to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion,
working hours, rest period, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-
discrimination and other benefits and welfare, including among
others, the Employment Ordinance, the Minimum Wage Ordinance,
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, the Sex
Discrimination Ordinance, the Disability Discrimination Ordinance,
the Family Status Discrimination and the Race Discrimination
Ordinance (2021: Nil).

The Board recognises that employees are important and valuable
assets to the Group. As at 31 December 2022, the Group had 31
full-time employees in Hong Kong (as at 31 December 2021: 40
full-time employees in Hong Kong).

=

Statistic of workforce
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The overall employee turnover rate in Hong Kong, net of
replacement and recruitment, during the Reporting Period was
approximately 22.5% (2021: approximately 61.2%). The employee
turnover rate became stable during the Reporting Period after
completion of relevant employees layoff due to the discontinuation
of the Group’s media business in 2021.

Employee Turnover Rate by Age Group and
GmukrhlhmgKb%g

BRBE A& KR WA

R WA AR B R R R R (4N BR
& B B M BB ) 4 F22.5% (- F ——4F 4
61.2%) o A AR LB IR ERE T ——4F
Fab > R AN R B R FRN A B TR
B SRR R E o

iiﬁ%ﬁé’ffﬁfﬁé‘ﬁﬁﬂﬁ 5 2 5 19 i

Turnover Rate (%)

K (%)
2022 2021
Employee by gender bk B 4 iiE B TR R
Female Lk 18.75 71.43
Male BH 25.00 48.94
Turnover Rate (%)’
KR (%)
2022 2021
Employee by age group T8 4F b A1 B0 B 5 g B R R
<30 <30 50.00 75.00
30-50 30-50 35.48 62.20
>50 >50 -42.86 46.15
Note: Ff 5 -
1. The turnover rate of the Group is calculated based on the number of 1. 7 4 [ A R BT O S T H B4R B IR BN O

employees as at the beginning of the financial year minus the number of
employees as at the end of the financial year over number of employees as
at the beginning of the financial year. When the turnover rate is negative, it

indicates an increase in number of employees in such group.

The Group has continued to explore various ways to lower the
employee turnover rate, by enhancing employee benefits and
strengthening ongoing communication with our employees.

Pursuant to the policy and manual in force and in compliance
with the Employment of Children Regulations made under the
Employment Ordinance, the use of child or forced labour is strictly
prohibited within the Group. During the recruitment process,
among others, we conducted the employee background check by
inspecting the employee’s identification documents prior to offering
of the employment contract. If there is any suspected infringement
regarding child labour, the Group will conduct an investigation and
terminate the employment of relevant person where necessary.
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An employment contract specifies the agreement between the
Group and its employees on the working conditions including
among others, their normal working hours and overtime work
arrangement. Subject to the Staff Handbook, a compensation leave
will be granted to an employee for approved overtime work. If
there is any suspected infringement regarding forced labour, the
Group will conduct investigation and take disciplinary actions
against any staff members who are involved in the incident. Such
policy and practices will be reviewed regularly by the human
resources team to comply with the relevant laws and regulations.

The Group strictly abides by the relevant laws and regulations
relating to child and forced labour, including but not limited to the
Employment of Children Regulations and the Employment of Young
Persons (Industry) Regulations under the Employment Ordinance
of Hong Kong. During the Reporting Period, no case of child or
forced labour has been discovered under the Group (2021: Nil)
and there was no report of non-compliance with the relevant laws
and regulations relating to child and forced labour related laws
and regulations that would have a significant impact on the Group

(2021: Nil).

Although our business nature does not expose our employees
to significant safety hazards, we are committed to ensuring our
employees’ health and safety as they are integral to our smooth
operation. The Group has included a health, safety and environment
section in the Staff Handbook to ensure all applicable occupational,
health and safety procedures and regulations, including the
Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance and the Employees’
Compensation Ordinance, are clearly communicated and properly
met at all levels. We provide ergonomic office equipment and
conduct regular maintenance and cleaning for water dispensers,
the air-conditioning system and the carpet to ensure the health of
our employees. We have also arranged employees’ compensation
insurance coverage and medical insurance for our employees. Such
measures are subject to regular review by the Group’s management
and are adjusted to reflect any influencing internal and external
factors as and when necessary.

In view of the continued COVID-19 pandemic during the Reporting
Period, the Group is highly concerned with the potential health and
safety impacts brought to our employees and other stakeholders.
Having prioritised the health and safety of our employees,
customers and every community member as top priority, we
have formulated an internal manual on preventing the spread of
COVID-19 in accordance with the government’s guidelines and
implemented all necessary precaution measures. In addition to
performing intensified cleaning and disinfection works at our office,
we have also implemented the following precautions to keep our
employees safe:

Bison Finance Group Limited
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. implementing flexible working arrangements including work

from home and work shift arrangements;

. having mandatory body temperature checks before entering
office;
. ensuring sufficient disinfection supplies like face masks and

hand sanitisers available in office for usage; and

. using online video conferencing tools and other technologies

to minimise non-compulsory face-to-face contacts.

There were no work-related fatalities occurred in the past three
years including the Reporting Period, nor there were any lost days
due to work injury (2021: Nil). During the Reporting Period,
there was no report of non-compliance with the relevant laws and
regulations relating to health and safety, i.e. Occupational Safety
and Health Ordinance, that would have a significant impact on the
Group (2021: Nil).

We provide a working environment for all our employees free from
harassment with an equal opportunity and treatment in accordance
with our Sexual Harassment Policy and the Sex Discrimination
Ordinance. In case of complaint or report of workplace harassment,
the human resources team of the Group will initiate investigations

and conduct follow-up actions, if any, in strict confidence.

We take care of our employees by ensuring that our employees
can achieve a work-life balance. Our employees are entitled to the
statutory holiday, annual leave, compensation leave, marriage leave,
maternity leave, sick leave and COVID-19 vaccination leave, etc.
During some special occasions such as Mid-Autumn Festival, Winter
Solstice, Christmas Eve and Chinese New Year Eve, our employees
are allowed to leave work earlier to celebrate with their families
and friends.

We have established a systematic payroll process that allows
employees to receive salary payment in a timely manner. The Group
offers a comprehensive and competitive remuneration and benefits
package to its employees. The Group has adopted a mandatory
provident fund scheme for its employees in Hong Kong as required
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. Such
scheme enables our employees to make their own investment

choices and directly benefit from the funds after retirement.

To increase employee involvement and incentive, we have adopted
the Share Option Scheme since 2018, providing our employees
with incentives to strive for the long-term growth of the Group
and aligning their interests directly with our shareholders through
ownership of shares issued by the Company.
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Development and Training

Nurturing and retaining talents are vital to maintain the Group’s
competitiveness and productivity. We provide our employees with a
good career prospect and opportunity for personal development.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has:

. organised certain internal training courses for the licensed
persons as registered with the SFC relating to Anti-Money
Laundering and Counter-Terrorist Financing, Anti-corruption
(Bribery, Extortion and Money Laundering), and the
relevant regulatory requirements relating to compliance with

notification requirement;

. organised other internal training courses to Directors, our
senior management and managers of the Group based on the
needs of their roles and responsibilities; and

. provided external training courses, including anti-corruption
training to Directors and senior management of the Group,
organised by third-party consultants.

To encourage our employees to further enrich their knowledge and
skills, the Group implements the training and development section
in the Staff Handbook and provides subsidies to our employees
for attending training courses and certified professional seminars.
Our employees were also entitled to paid examination leave on

examination date.

During the Reporting Period, 27 employees have received
approximately 220.39 training hours in total through attending
both internal and external training courses (2021: 33 employees
received 298.00 training hours in total). The percentage of total
employees who receive training' is approximately 87.10% (2021:
82.50%) and the average number of training hours completed per
employee’ in 2022 (approximately 8.16 hours) is similar as in 2021
(approximately 9.03 hours). The breakdown of employee training
information by gender and employee categories is as follows:

Employee Training Information b)/ Gender and
Employee Category
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By Gender ¥ 4 N ) 4

Total number of employees DI R B A8 11 16 11 22
receiving training

Percentage of employees B2 B 35.48% 51.61% 27.50% 55.00%
receiving training' A= NEp

Average number of training hours 528 8 52 7.07 8.92 6.23 10.43

- 4 5 FI ik e

completed per employee2
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BRBE A& KR WA

2022 2021
e Sy 3

Y- St

General Senior General

Management

AR ERE B

Manager staff

—~HRATL

m —RET

Total number of employees receiving training B2 HA 3 13 11 3 21 9
1E 8 488
Percentage of employees receiving training' B2 B 9.68% 41.94% 35.48% 7.50% 52.50% 22.50%
BB &I
Average number of training hours B4 18 B TR 6.80 11.67 4.39 4.67 12.52 2.33
completed per employee’ TR e

Note: Bff % :

1. The percentage of employees of the Group receiving training is calculated 1. A H 3 2 BRI R B E 4 TS AR IR A B B AR
based on the total number of employees receiving training (or by gender or B R 7 BRI R B (s M Il s Ag B ) 4y )
by employee category) during the relevant financial year over total number A8 O DAKA BB B4R R AR B (s A B4R
of employees (or by gender or by employee category) as at the end of the BRI E 5 ) BABEE G -
relevant financial year.

2. The average number of training hours completed per employee is calculated 2. B 208 B 58 RS I 7 2 IRE 900G AR AR TR B B AR

based on the total number of training hours completed by employees (or by
gender or by employee category) during the relevant financial year over the
total number of employees receiving training (or by gender or by employee

category) during the relevant financial year.

OUR COMMUNITY

Being a responsible corporate citizen is important to us and we
make every endeavour to provide resources to the underprivileged
within our community through continuous support to various
activities organised by NGOs and charities. To cater for the
specific needs of the local community, the Group has formulated
the Community Investment Policy to understand the needs of
the community, identify the focus areas and allocate appropriate

resources to empower the community.

Focusing on contributing to the needs of the community, the Group
participated in seven social-related initiatives/activities in 2022,
including Mooncake Boxes Recycling Programme 2022, Red Packet
Reusing Programme 2022, Mooncakes for Charity 2022, Earth
Hour 2022, No Air Con Night 2022, KELY’s Mooncake Charity
Sale 2022 and The 2022 Community Chest Dress Casual Day.

The Company has been awarded “20 Years Plus Caring Company
Logo 2022/23” by The Hong Kong Council of Social Service
in recognition of its continued commitment in caring for the
community, the employees and the environment.

J years+
ﬁﬁ@ﬁﬁtﬁ

caringcompany

Awarded by The Hong Kong Council of Social Service
BEMERBH SRS
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The Group is committed to the long-term sustainability of the
environment and community where it operates the business.
The Group has integrated environmental consideration into our
decision-making process and embraced the responsibilities to
create an environmentally sustainable business. Considering the
Group’s business nature, we have taken measures to facilitate the
environmental-friendliness of our workplace by encouraging a
recycling culture within the Group. To enhance our environmental
governance practice and mitigate the environmental impacts
produced by our operations, we have implemented relevant
environmental protection policies, such as the environmental
section in the Staff Handbook and the Green Office & Eco Healthy
Workplace Best Practice, and communicated such policies to our

employees clearly.

During the Reporting Period, there was no report of non-
compliance with the relevant local environmental laws and
regulations, i.e. the Air Pollution Control Ordinance, the Waste
Disposal Ordinance, the Water Pollution Control Ordinance and
the Noise Control Ordinance that would have a significant impact

on the Group (2021: Nil).

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s greenhouse gas (“GHG”)
emissions primarily came from the direct GHG emissions resulting
from the consumption of petrol by company vehicles (Scope 1),
as well as the energy indirect GHG emissions from purchased
electricity (Scope 2) given that the main business operation of
the Group is Financial Services Business. There is no other direct
emissions of GHG, air pollutant and other discharges into water

and land.

During the Reporting Period, the Group continued to use the
base used in the the previous year, namely the floor lettable area,
to calculate GHG emissions intensity, which showed a significant
increase to approximately 2.92 tCO,e/1,000 sq. ft. in 2022 from
approximately 0.41 tCO,e/1,000 sq. ft. in 2021. The significant
increase of tCO e/ 1,000 sq. ft. is due to the Group's total lettable
floor area, being the base to calculate the GHG emissions intensity,
decreasing significantly from 255,438 sq. ft. to 15,015 sq. ft. in
2022 following the discontinuation of the Group’s media business
in 2021. Therefore, the Group calculated and disclosed the GHG
emissions intensity per employee for 2021 and 2022 simultaneously
to reflect the relevant change.
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A summary of the Group’s GHG emissions performance is set out
below:

GHG emissions!

T = 58 18 Pk i

BRBE A& KR WA

A2 ] Y i 2 R PR OE ZE A A0

Direct GHG emissions (Scope 1) tCO,e 6.13 12.18
A =S S S Pk (#E ) WE — E AL B
Energy indirect GHG emissions (Scope 2) tCOse 36.18 92.68
0 1] 2.2 5 A ) M B
Total GHG emissions tCO,e 42.31 104.86
% S PRl e = Wi — A AL ik =
Intensity’ tCO,e/ 1,000 sq. ft 2.82 0.41
e WE AL R ' 71,0007 7R
tCO,e/employee 1.36 2.62
WE AR R B
Notes: Bff 53 -
1. GHG emissions data are presented in terms of carbon dioxide equivalent 1. 3 R P B )t Rk B R S

and are based on, but not limited to, “The Greenhouse Gas Protocol: A
Corporate Accounting and Reporting Standards” issued by the World Bank
Institute and the World Business Council for Sustainable Development,
“How to prepare an ESG Report — Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on
Environmental KPIs” issued by the Stock Exchange, the “Global Warming
Potential Values” from “The Fifth Assessment Report” of the United Nations
Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change, “Sustainability Report 2022”7
published by HK Electric Investments Limited.

2. As at 31 December 2022, the Group had a total of lettable floor area of
15,015 sq. ft, (255,438 sq. ft as at 31 December 2021) and a total number
of employees of 31 (40 employees as at 31 December 2021). These data are
used for calculating the intensity data.

To achieve the target set in 2021 to organise an internal training on
environmental protection and sponsor a green lunch box for cach
employee annually, the Group organised its employees to participate
in public webinar on Energy Efficiency and Conservation 2022 held
by Electrical and Mechanical Services Department of Hong Kong
and provided employees with free vegetarian lunch at the office
during the Reporting Period to increase employees’ awareness
of energy conservation and to promote reduction or climination
of meat from their diet which can help to contribute to a more
sustainable food system as meat accounts for higher GHG emissions
from the food production. For the year ending 31 December
2023 (“2023”), the Group targets to maintain or reduce its GHG
emissions per 1,000 sq. ft. lettable arca, using such performance
during the Reporting Period as its baseline.

The Group manages to reduce its GHG emissions through
continuous implementation of green office initiatives and efficient
use of resources. Also, the Group strives to explore different
ways of reducing carbon emissions. On top of that, the Group
implemented various measures, including using more energy
efficient LED lights and reducing the demand for air-conditioning
during the Reporting Period.
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BB A& AR

Hazardous Waste

Given that the Group is principally engaged in the Financial
Services Business, the Group’s hazardous waste are mainly
attributable to fluorescent light tubes and toner cartridges used in
the office during the Reporting Period and in 2021.

A summary of our hazardous waste performance is set out below:

Types of waste

J& 5 1 28

G EX

PP A 4R o] = A S < IR 5 S 5 > T i
B R T A AR FE R
Ty RN S T ) SRR SR B £

A EBEFEYFOUMERS T

Fluorescent light tubes picces 1 4
L it
Toner cartridges pieces 7 15

W i

There was no other hazardous waste generated by the Group
during the Reporting Period and in 2021. These kinds of waste
were collected and recycled as set out under the section headed
“Recycling Our Waste”.

Non-Hazardous Waste

Since the Group discontinued its media business in 2021, the
major non-hazardous waste generated by the Group changed from
advertising stickers used on bus-body and bus-interior during the
operation of the media business to paper, plastic and aluminium

used in the office for Financial Services Business.

The Group has organised Red Pocket Packaging Recycle and Reuse
Programme 2022 as well as Mooncake Box Recycling Programme
2022 during the Reporting Period to increase employees’ awareness
of waste reduction that fulfilled its targets set in 2021 of carrying
out at least two waste reduction activities. From 2023 onwards, the
Group continues targeting to carry out at least one waste reduction
activity annually to match its downsized scale of operation.

Recycling Our Waste

We promote the concept of “Reduce”, “Reuse” and “Recycle”. The
Group actively engages in reducing and recycling paper, plastic
bottles, aluminium cans and toner cartridges in order to moderate
the environmental impact caused by our waste. In order to
minimise the waste consumption, we have regularly monitored our
level of waste consumption and implemented the following waste
reduction initiatives and measures:

. designated area is assigned for collection of recycling
materials;
. reusable containers and utensils are provided for employees in

order to reduce disposable tableware usage and employees are
encouraged to bring their own lunch boxes;
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“paperless office” is promoted by encouraging employees to
utilise electronic communication means; and

paper consumption is reduced in the workplace through

duplex printing.

During the Reporting Period, the Group made donation to

Greeners Action for Mooncake Boxes Recycling Programme 2022

and Red Packet Reusing Programme 2022.

A summary of our recycled waste performance is set out below:

Type of waste recycled

ful e J5% 3E ) ) S5

2022
—E 4

Recycled
Jia] Wi

Recycling (%)*
&R (%)

BRBE A& KR WA

o RETEAKCHA]SEREERAE
a2 &

o EMEEWATEND TARS BT ARIR I AE -

TS # A 0 A > AR 4R B H AR 4 180 WSOR AT 82022
B A2 b 1o Wi B R AT B 2022 16 6k AT B AR
R -

J3E ZE ) ) i DU 2 A AR

2021
Rate of Rate of
Recycling (%)*

IR (%)

Recycled
Jia] Wi

Fluorescent light tube waste pieces 1 (100%) 4 (100%)
JBE AL {53
Toner cartridge waste* pieces 7 (100%) 28! (187%)
B ERR B 7
Paper waste’ kg 65.86 (33%) 719 (91%)
JBE 2 T3
Other waste® kg 9.67 (93%) 2.97 (61%)
oAt g 2 T

Notes: B 5 -

1. The amount of toner cartridge waste recycled in 2021 included those 1. TR T A [ R B FERR AR B LA F R AR

Use

collected in 2020, resulting the total number of toner cartridge waste
produced was less than the total number of toner cartridge waste recycled
in 2021.

During the Reporting Period, the significant decrease in the amount of
paper waste recycled was due to the significant decrease in the amount
of paper generated resulting from discontinuation of the Group’s media

business in 2021 and the promotion of paperless office since 2022.

During the Reporting Period, other waste consists of 3.40 kg plastic waste
(2021: 1.79 kg), 1.01 kg aluminium waste (2021: 0.20 kg), 5.26 kg glass
waste (2021:0 kg), and 0 kg electronic waste (2021: 0.98 kg).

The rate of recycling is calculated based on the amount of waste recycled
divided by the amount of waste produced. Such information is disclosed

from 2022 onwards.

of Resources

Other than the paper usage as mentioned above, the main resources

consumed by the Group are electricity and water. In view of our

business nature, no packaging materials for finished products were
produced during the Reporting Period (2021: Nil).
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The Group upholds and promotes the principle of effective use
of resources and is committed to optimising the use of resources
across business operations. We promote a green office and
operation environment and continue to introduce resource efficient
and ecofriendly measures to the Group’s operations. We have paid
attention to the potential environmental impacts brought by the
consumption of resources and established related policies and
initiatives, including but not limited to those mentioned in the
Staff Handbook and Green Office & Eco Healthy Workplace Best
Practice, covering topics on better utilisation of resources like
energy, water, and other natural resources.

Electricity Consumption
The Group has actively engaged in energy conservation projects
such as the usage of more energy-efficient LED lights. In addition,

we remind employees to switch off idling lights and electrical
appliances.

The Group’s energy consumption is mainly related to petrol
and diesel consumption by vehicles and electricity consumption.
The total energy consumption by the Group was increased
significantly from approximately 0.92 MWh/1,000 sq. ft. in 2021
to approximately 5.03 MWh/1,000 sq. ft. during the Reporting
Period. Such significant increase is due to the Group’s total lettable
floor area, being the base to calculate the GHG emissions intensity,
decreasing significantly in 2022 following the discontinuation of
its media business in 2021. A summary of the Group’s energy
consumption performance is set out below:

Energy Consumption

A A ] BR R K BRI A AIOM T DR A TR > Sl B
T 77 A R AR S5 T R A A T DRM T - R
AR AR ok (0 2 I 7 R - 7 A A A A £ 1
(9 7 1 5N e RO S BR R A It o FRAM
IoH 1 T 1R T RN 2 F) T AE BR B 2B > NI o) E AR
B UK KA - AR E R BRI (B TF M) K
CER AN 3 R BRAR A e TAF 35 B o (5 88
TR S B IR R EE TR K S A B R E TR
9 5 4 A

PG A

A S 2 B4 6 390 1 » £ 0 6 D 644 4
LEDSE » L A1 » o M 42 W8 2 5 ) P 41 25 1) 76
R

A 45 ] () BE VR T FE 3 I 5 TR Y VR B SE T
THFELL S I THAE - AL B RE RIS FER B
T T AE,000°F- 7 IR #90.92 K FL IRE K M 1
i 2 R 5 19 8 B 1,000°F R #5.03JK FLIRF - 7%
DR B8 00 2 7 A 4R B =R AR AT
FH AEASETE T RE (1 2 030 25 SR W ok 2% 1 5
B T T AR A AR R SE RS A R AR KR
R o A KE [ BE VR TH AR A E AR

HE R FE =
Direct energy consumption1 MWh 22.34 45.77
B R IR IH FE JK Iy
Indirect energy consumption’ MWh 53.21 188.22
] 2 g R VH 62 JK B IR
Total energy consumption MWh 75.55 233.99
AE VR TH FEAR 2 JK B Iy
Intensity MWh/1,000 sq. ft. 5.03 0.92
B JK LI ,1,000°F 77 IR

Notes: Fff 5% -

1. The Group s direct energy consumption were approximately 2,305.47 1. A 2 R R TN B2 R VR E FE 42 ,305 477t

litres of petrol during the Reporting Period and of approximately 2,463.28
litres of petrol and 2,046.35 litres of diesel in 2021.

S . .. .
2. The Groups 1nd1rect energy consumptlon were electr1c1ty consumptlon

during the Reporting Period and in 2021.
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The Group has participated in No Air Con Night 2022 held by
Green Sense that fulfilled its target set for 2022 of carrying
out at least one energy saving activity annually. For 2023, the
Group targets to maintain or increase no more than 5% of its
energy consumption intensity, using such performance during the
Reporting Period as its baseline.

Our motivation in environmental sustainability has driven us to
continuously improve water efficiency and pay close attention to
our water consumption. During the Reporting Period, the Financial
Service Business was operated in the leased office premises of
which the water supply and discharge were controlled by building
management office and it was considered that provision of water
consumption data of individual tenant was not feasible. In addition,
the Group has discontinued its media business in 2021. Therefore,
no water consumption data was available during the Reporting
Period and no quantitative target can be set.

We are aware of the importance of water conservation in our daily
business operation and have implemented the following water
conservation initiatives and measures during the Reporting Period:

. reminder of water savings notices were displayed in
designated areas; and

. periodic maintenance of the water boiler and water dispensers
to prevent leakage and provide safe drinking water.

The Group has invited Water Supplies Department of Hong Kong
to give a presentation on water conservation to improve employees’
awareness of water consumption conservation that fulfilled its
target set in 2021 to organise at least one water saving campaign in
2022. The Group maintains its existing target to organise at least

one water-saving campaign annually.

During the Reporting Period, our major water usages were from
our office premises, including toilet flushing, water taps and
drinking water consumption. As such, we do not encounter any
significant issues in sourcing water.

Although the Group considered that the business nature of the
Financial Service Business has minimal impact on the environment
and natural resources, we are committed to mitigating our potential
environmental impacts through adopting industrial best practices
with an aim to reduce natural resources consumption and develop
effective environmental management. We regularly assess the
environmental risks of our businesses, adopt preventive measures
to reduce potential environmental risks, and ensure our compliance
with relevant laws and regulations. We are also devoted to achieving
sustainable development for generating long-term value for the
community and our stakeholders.
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The Group is committed to providing employees with a
comfortable and green working environment to increase work
efficiency. We regularly monitor and measure the indoor air quality
of our workplace. Air-purification equipment are installed and air
cleansing plants are placed at the workplace to filter air pollutants,

contaminants, and dust particles.

We recognise that climate change has been posing more challenges
among all industries and their business operation. The Group is
committed to manage the climate-related risks and provide a low-
carbon working environment across its operation in order to
mitigate the impact of climate change on its operations.

During the Reporting Period, no significant climate-related issues
have impacted the Financial Services Business which have been
identified by the Group in accordance with the Climate Change
Policy. In addition, the Group assessed the potential climate-related
risks which may have impact on the Financial Services Business and
the possible way to manage the relevant climate-related risks.

In accordance with Task Force on Climate-related Financial
Disclosures, climate-related risks can be divided into two major
categories: (1) risks related to the transition to a lower-carbon
economy and (2) risks related to the physical impacts of climate
change. For transition risks, the government in 2021 announced
implementation of Hong Kong’s Climate Action Plan 2050 with
the participation of the whole community in order to achieve the
carbon neutrality before 2050. It is expected that the government
authorities will implement more stringent policies and regulations
to reduce GHG emissions and waste and to promote the awareness
of the public on the climate change. In 2021, SFC has issued a
circular regarding the management and disclosures of climate
related risks by fund managers to all licensed corporations
including our subsidiary conducting the Financial Services Business.
Although the amendments are not applicable to the fund managers
of the Group who have no investment management discretion for
its existing services or products in Hong Kong, the Compliance
Department of the Group will closely monitor the regulatory
changes and shall adopt appropriate measures, if applicable, to avoid
any non-compliances of the Group and mitigate potential transition
risks.

For physical risks, the long-term shift in climate patterns may cause
more frequent and intense extreme weather events, including super
typhoons and heavy rainstorms. Under the extreme weather events,
the safety of our employees is threatened and our office may be
damaged, which may cause the disruption to the normal business
operations of the Group. To minimise the potential physical risks,
the Group adopts the flexible working arrangements and employees
may work from home in adverse weather conditions, if applicable.

Bison Finance Group Limited
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Independent auditor’s report
To the shareholders of Bison Finance Group Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Bison
Finance Group Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries
(“the Group”) set out on pages 104 to 221, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2022, the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, except for the effects of the matters described in the
“Basis for qualified opinion” section of our report, the consolidated
financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated
financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2022 and of
its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

As described in the “Other Matter” section, the opinion expressed
on the consolidated financial statements of Group as at and for
the year ended 31 December 2021 was qualified due to the scope
limitations on the carrying values of the Group’s interest in a
private equity fund (the “Funds”) accounted for as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss and the corresponding net
unrealised fair value gain.
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As detailed in note 21 to the consolidated financial statements,
the Group’s financial assets at fair value through profit or loss as
set out in the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2022 amounted to approximately HK$30,366,000, in
which approximately HK$29,465,000 represented the Group’s
interest in the Fund. The Group’s interest in the Fund included
an aggregate amount of HK$16,922,000, representing the
Group’s share of the carrying values of the Fund’s two underlying
investments in two unsecured redeemable bonds issued by Emerge
Ventures Limited (“EV”), a private company, (the “EV Bond”), and
A Metaverse Company (‘AMC”), a company listed on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the
“AMC Bond”) (collectively, the “Bonds”). The Group’s interest in
the Fund also included an amount of HK$8,325,000, representing
the Group’s share of the carrying value of the listed shares of AMC
(the “AMC Shares”). During the year ended 31 December 2022,
net unrealised fair value loss arising from the Fund attributable to
the Group amounted to approximately HK$36,809,000, in which
HK$36,377,000 represented the unrealised fair value loss arising
from the Bonds and the AMC Shares.

As also detailed in note 21, the EV Bond and the AMC Bond were
matured in January 2022 and February 2022 respectively. Up to the
date of this report, the Bonds were still not redeemed by the issuers
and no audited financial information of EV for the years ended 31
December 2021 and 2022, had been provided by EV to the Fund or
to the Group.

The trading of AMC'’s shares has been suspended on the Stock
Exchange since 1 April 2022. As at the date of this report, AMC has
not published its financial information for any financial period after
the six months ended 30 June 2021 and trading of its shares has not
been resumed.

Based on the net assets statements of the Fund, the quoted prices
of AMC’s shares prior to its trading suspension and the limited
available financial information of EV and AMC, management
conducted fair value assessments on the Bonds with the assistance
from an independent valuer as at 31 December 2021 and 2022, and
on the AMC Shares as at 31 December 2021 and 2022. Neither the
Fund nor the Group were provided with sufficient and appropriate
information about the status of the operations and financial position
of EV and AMC for management and/or valuer’s assessment of the
recoverability and/or the carrying values of the Group’s interests in
the Bonds as at 31 December 2021 and 2022, and the AMC Shares
as at 31 December 2022.
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Management was unable to provide us with other sources of
information or other evidence to support the appropriateness of
the key inputs and assumptions adopted by management in their
assessments of the determination of the carrying values of the
Bonds as at 31 December 2021 and 2022, and of the AMC Shares as
at 31 December 2022. As a consequence, we were unable to assess
the fair values of those underlying investments of the Fund and
there were no other satisfactory procedures that we could perform
to determine whether any adjustments to the carrying values of
the Fund as at 31 December 2021 and 2022 are necessary. Any
adjustments to the carrying values of the Fund as at 31 December
2021 and 2022 could have a significant consequential effect on the
unrealised fair value gain/loss recognised in profit or loss arising
from the Fund as reported by the Group for the years ended 31
December 2021 and 2022.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (‘HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements” section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our qualified opinion.

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current year. These matters
were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,

and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

In addition to the matters described in the “Basis for qualified
opinion” section, we have determined the matters described below

to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

Bison Finance Group Limited
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We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the “Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial

statements” section of our report, including in relation to these

matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of

procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of

material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The

results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed

to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit

opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the
Key Audit Matter

Impairment assessment of intangible assets, property and

equipment and right-of-use assets

As at 31 December 2022, the
Group had intangible assets,
property and equipment and
right-of-use assets amounting
to HK$23.4 million, HK$1.1
million and HK$20.5 million
before impairment, which
are related to the “Investment
advisory services business and
fund management business”

cash-generating unit (“CGU’).

Management engaged an
independent professional valuer
to determine the valuation
models for the impairment
assessment.

The determination of the
recoverable amounts, being
the value-in-use, requires
significant management
judgement and estimates of
variables such as expected
growth in revenue and discount
rates. Based on the assessment,
the Group recognised
impairment loss of HK$23.4
million and HK$20.5 million
on intangible assets and right-
of-use assets respectively for
the year ended 31 December
2022.

Relevant disclosures are
included in notes 3, 16 and 19
to the consolidated financial
statements.

Our audit procedures included:

assess the internal control
over impairment assessment
processes;

assess the competence,
capabilities and objectivity
of the

professional valuer engaged

independent
by management;

. 5
review management s
assessment of the recoverable
amounts;

examine and recalculate
managementys discounted
cash flow projections for the
determination of value-in-
use;

assess key assumptions by
comparison to the historical
performance of the CGU and
relevant market data;

perform sensitivity analysis
on the assumptions used in
the cash flow projections.
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Key Audit Matter

Impairment of accounts receivable

As at 31 December 2022, the
Group had accounts receivable
amounting to HK $30.2 million,
before impairment of HK$10.0
million. The Group’s accounting
for impairment on accounts
receivable was based on a
lifetime expected credit loss
(“ECL”) under the simplified
approach, and the measurement
on the Group’s accounts
receivable under such approach
was estimated by management
through the application of
judgement and use of highly
subjective assumptions. The
impact of economic factors,
both current and future, and
forward- looking factors
specific to the debtors were also
considered in management’s
assessment of the likelihood of

recovery from customers.

Management engaged an
independent professional valuer
to determine the valuation
models for the ECL assessment.

Relevant disclosures are
included in notes 3, 22 and
38(a) to the consolidated

financial statements.

Bison Finance Group Limited

How our audit addressed

the Key Audit Matter

Our audit procedures included:

assess the internal control
over ECL assessment

processes;

assess the competence,
capabilities and objectivity
of the independent
professional valuer engaged
by management;

assess the inputs and
historical loss patterns
used by the Group in
calculating the ECL
impairment allowance on
a sample basis by agreeing
details to respective
transaction records,
checking the ageing
classification, historical
default data and forward-
looking assumptions

involved;

examine the working
files and modelling
documents to understand
the procedures and
assumptions involved
and evaluating these
documents against HKFRS

9 requirements;

evaluate whether the
historical loss rates were
appropriately adjusted
based on the current
economic conditions
and forward-looking

information;

review the subsequent
settlements after the year
end to assess the adequacy

of impairment allowance.
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Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed

the Key Audit Matter

Impairment of loans receivable

As at 31 December 2022, the
Group had loans receivable
amounting to HK$49.7
million, before impairment of
HK$25.1 million. The Group’s
accounting for impairment
on loans receivable was based
on the general approach,
and the measurement on the
Group’s loans receivable under
such approach was estimated
by management through an
application of judgement
and use of highly subjective
assumptions including the
identification of loss stages,
estimates of probability of
default, loss given default,
exposures at default and
discount rates, adjustments for
forward looking information
and other adjustment factors.
Management judgement was
involved in the selection of
those parameters and the
application of the assumptions.

Management engaged an
independent professional
valuer to determine the
valuation models for the ECL

assessment.

Relevant disclosures are
included in notes 3, 23, 24
and 38(a) to the consolidated

financial statements.

Our audit procedures included:

C assess the internal control
over the monitoring of

loans receivable;

C assessing the inputs used
by the Group in the
calculation of the ECL
by agreeing the details to
the loan agreements and
checking the contractual
due dates;

. assessing the loss stages,
recovery rates by reference
to financial information
of the debtors and their
credit rating, if available,
checking forward-looking

assumptions involved;

C assess the competence,
capabilities and objectivity
of the independent
professional valuer engaged
by management;

. understand and discuss
with management for
judgements used under the
ECL approach;

C examine the working files
and modelling documents
to evaluate the procedures
and assumption during the
calculation of the ECL and
staging allocation.
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The consolidated financial statements of the Group as at and for
the year ended 31 December 2021 were audited by another auditor
who expressed a qualified opinion on those statements on 13 May
2022 due to scope limitations on the carrying value of the Group’s
interest in the Fund accounted for as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss and the corresponding net unrealised fair

value gain recognised in profit or loss.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance

conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. As described in the
“Basis for Qualified Opinion” section above, we are unable to obtain
sufficient appropriate evidence about the carrying value of the
Group's interest in the Fund as at 31 December 2022. Accordingly,
we are unable to conclude whether or not the other information is

materially misstated with respect to these matters.

Bison Finance Group Limited
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The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic

alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee
in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is
made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

0 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,

or the override of internal control.

0 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Groupys internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related

disclosures made by the directors.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a

going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that

achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

Bison Finance Group Limited
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We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence and, where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent

auditor’s report is Mr. Chan Sai Ho.

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 29 March 2023

Chan Sai Ho

Practising certificate number P07705
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for the year ended 31 December 2022 BE-Z - “HF+H =T —HIEFE

Continuing operations
Revenue

Other income and other losses, net

Cost of services provided

Staff expenditure

Depreciation and amortisation

Provision for impairment losses on
financial assets, net

Provision for impairment losses
on non-current assets

Gain/ (loss) on disposal of subsidiaries

Other operating expenses, net

Finance costs

Loss before tax from
continuing operations

Income tax credit

Loss for the year from
continuing operations

Discontinued Operation
Loss for the year from

Discontinued Operation

Loss for the year attributable to
owners of the Company

Loss per share attributable to
owners of the Company
Basic
— For loss for the year from

continuing operations
— For loss from Discontinued

Operation

Diluted

— For loss for the year from
continuing operations

— For loss from Discontinued
Operation

Bison Finance Group Limited
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for the year ended 31 December 2022 BE-_FZ -+ H =T H IR

2022 2021
“ECE R4
Note HKS$’000 HK$ 000

Bt 3 T T o

Loss for the year A% 4 5 i 1R (123,092) (258,760)
Other comprehensive loss I il 2 i s 4B
Reclassification of exchange differences G TR Nl TR

of a disposed foreign operation S5 1 T b, 2= R 32 - (7)
Other comprehensive loss A AE B A % T S 38

for the year, net of tax bR BEIE % - (7)
Total comprehensive loss NNk R N

for the year attributable to AN A B 4 T i 1R AL AR

owners of the Company (123,092) (258,767)
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Non-current assets

Property and equipment and
right-of-use assets

Goodwill

Intangible assets

Prepayments, deposits and
other receivables

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Loans receivable

Total non-current assets

Current assets
Accounts receivable
Loans receivable
Loan to a related company
Amount due from a related company
Prepayments, deposits and
other receivables
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss
Cash held on behalf of clients
Pledged deposits

Cash and cash equivalents
Total current assets

Current liabilities
Accounts payable

Other payables and accruals
Contract liabilities

Lease liabilities

Promissory note

Tax payable

Total current liabilities

Bison Finance Group Limited

As at 31 December 2022 A =F - "4F+H=+—H

Ik i B

W) 36 Sz s A LA K
{1

R

T

FEAT AOIH ~ i e HoAth
JRE Wi 3k

A REEF ARG Z
& il

JE Wi B K

I Wi B E AME

B &

JE Wi R 3K

R Wi B 3K

T B IS W 2 B
JE e Bl g 2~ ) KA
FEA AOIH ~ 4 e HoAth
JRE Wi i 3k
BAREHEFARLGLZ
< il
REEFEFRHARE

B 5 7 3K

Bl KB &5 EY

U B AR

i By £ 15
JREA5F B 3K
HL At 1B AT RSk % R
FRIAM
HE AR
TR L EL IR
T A B IH

B A AR

Notes

Bt 5

16
18
19
20

21
23

22
23
24
24
20
21

25

27

28
17(b)

2022
TR
HKS$’000
BT

4,164

20,150
21,906
2,735

3,524

30,366
800
124,139

203,620

4,404
13,602
70
8,613
90,000

116,697

2,000
10,783

48,558

44,408
13,703
5,665
513

7,393

73,023
79
1,175
147,437

293,396

6,797
31,162
205
7,773
90,000

135,937



As at 31 December 2022 A —F - T4FE+H=+—H

2022 2021
—E O R
Notes HK$’000 HK$ 000

Bt 3 W T T T

Net current assets B B A 86,923 157,459

Total assets less current liabilities & e AR BN B £ 91,087 206,017

Non-current liabilities Ik i By £ 1]

Lease liabilities GRS =K 17(b) 11,810 -

Deferred tax liabilities % HE o TH A A 30 - 3,648
11,810 3,648

Net assets & E T 79,277 202,369

Equity HE %

Equity attributable to equity AR %y v RE A Bt R R A R A

shareholders of the Company

Share capital Ji& A 31 142,184 142,184

Reserves it i <& (62,907) 60,185

Total equity HE 45 A8 4H 79,277 202,369

The consolidated financial statements on pages 104 to 221 were FI4EDIHEMEE G M MERE N T = 4F
approved by the Board of Directors on 29 March 2023 and were At IJLHEE R I B N3 EFHAC

signed on its behalf. RKEE o
Sun Lei Zhu Dong

#éE KA

Executive Director Executive Director
HITEH HITEF

AEemERmARAA



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
T
For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE_Z-"FTH=1T—HILFE

o)

Attributable to owners of the Company

KA ML
Share
held for Share
Share Share  share award option  Contributed Other Exchange ~ Accumulated Total
capital premium scheme reserve surplus reserve reserve losses equity
Tt 1 32
it B
B B <Mty DRBCHEREE  EARS  JHBRE  SMERE  REE  E&AR
HK$’000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
e WWTx  #%Tx  WWTx  #%Tx WWTx  #%Tx #WTx  EkTx
At 1 January 2021 REZZ—4——H 118,487 250,824% (53,38)* 53556 531,569% (605)* G643 @91 387,03
Loss for the year RE = = = = - - - (258,760) (258,760)
Other comprehensive loss REFERMAEER:
for the year:
Reclassification of exchange BB BB R
differences for a disposed WS (M7#32)
foreign operation (Note 32) - - - - - - V)] = (7
Total comprehensive loss for the year KEELTERAH = = = - - - (7) (258,760) (258,767)
Placing of new shares (Note 31(a) R IR (Miis1) 23,697 37,916 = = = = = = 61,613
Vesting of shares of share award 42 Bt 8 A 0 B
scheme (Note 31(b)) (Wit3im)) = = 12,289 = = = = = 12,289
Transfer from share option reserve R A M
upon the forfeiture of kit (Witsic)
share options (Note 31(c)) - - - (678) - - - 678 -
At 31 December 2021 and REBZ-EFZAZT AR
1 January 2022 “ECCE-A-H 142,184 288,740% (40,949 4,677* 531,569% (605)% (5,650%  (717,597)* 202,369
Loss and total comprehensive loss FEEERLEEERAHE
for the year - - - - - - - (123,092) (123,092)
Transfer upon deregistration of a subsidiary TGRS — IR A 7 ﬁﬁ@ - - - - - 605 - (605) -
Transfer upon termination of share award TR L R0 38 Mt
scheme (Note 31()) (HEsim)) - - 40,949 - - - - (40949) (40,949)
Transfer from share option reserve i 3 UG
upon the forfeiture of share options %Eﬁ%%ﬁﬁ@ (Wﬁj](f))
(Note 31(c)) - - - (353) - - - 353 -
At 31 December 2022 REZZZHEFZAEH 142,184 288,740% - 4,304% 531,569% - (5,650)%  (881,890)* 79,277

108

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of a negative of

HK$62,907,000 (2021: a positive of HK$60,185,000) in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

Bison Finance Group Limited Annual Report 2022

2 i A IR LA AR A B S R U R A SR A T A
B W ¥62,907,00000 ( ZF Z—4F ¢ IE B W

60,185,0007C) °



Cash flows from operating activities
Loss before tax
From continuing operations
From Discontinued Operation
Adjustments for:
— Finance costs
— Interest income
— Depreciation and amortisation
— (Gain)/loss on disposal of
subsidiaries
— Provision for/(reversal of)
impairment loss on property
and equipment
and right-of-use assets
— Gain on lease modification
— Impairment loss on goodwill
— Impairment loss on intangible assets
— Provision for/ (reversal of)
impairment loss on prepayments,
deposits and other receivables
— (Reversal of)/provision for
impairment loss on accounts
receivable
— Bad debts recovered
— (Reversal of)/provision for
impairment loss on
loans receivable
— Provision for impairment loss on

a loan to a related company

— Net realised and unrealised
losses/ (gains) on financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss

— Equity-settled share-based
payment expenses

Operating loss before changes in
working capital
Decrease in accounts receivable
Decrease in loans receivable
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables
Decrease/ (increase) in an amount due
from a related company
Decrease in cash held on
behalf of clients
Decrease in pledged deposits
Decrease in accounts payable
Decrease in other payables and accruals

For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE-_FZ -+ H =T H IR

Notes
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2022
TR
HK$’000
T

(126,732)

9,491
(1,765)
15,384

(780)

20,487
(1,856)

23,418
1,204

(2,243)

(1,801)

3,455

39,657

(22,081)
26,501

(444)
513
79
375

(2,393)

(20,297)

H#% %R

\Jr

2021

TE T

HK$’000

T T

(192,648)
(69,916)

10,476
(5,083)
22,818

505

(804)
(150)

78,554

13,834

(143)

18,910
(70)

22,653

381

(941)

12,289

(89,335)
13,638
36,733
12,102

(307)
928
31,000

(543)

(20,312)

AR 2]



For the year ended 31 December 2022 BEFZ -+ A= —HIEFE

2022 2021
—B_—f —T-—F
Notes HK$’000 HK$ 000

Bt 5 T T T

Cash used in operations z“‘%(ﬁ@ﬁ@?ﬁﬁ B4 (17,747) (16,096)
Interest received SAEIPES 5,300 1,543
The People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) E AT EE N RILAE

income tax paid (M) it - (5,104)
Net cash used in REWH B &8

operating activities (12,447) (19,657)

Cash flows from investing activities RABREGBHRERE

Proceeds from disposals of items of HEYWERZMHER 2

property and equipment Fr 5 3 I8 - 804
Purchase of financial assets at ,E%]\jf,/\ﬁffﬁﬁ‘}\

fair value through profit or loss B 4 2 4 Rl - (6,995)
Proceeds from disposal of financial HERA REETA

assets at fair value through Hii 2z & EE

profit or loss Fr 45 2 A — 8,289
Proceeds from capital withdrawal of ?/\ﬁffﬁ AR 4

financial assets at fair value through ZEMEERE

profit or loss F)ﬁ% A 37(a) 5,000 26,000
Interest received 2k A B 337 340
Proceeds from refund of non-pledged E YNGR B = e ]

time deposits with original A Z M EM

maturity of more than three months 17 3R 3 P 15 3R

when acquired 5,040 5,038
New non-pledged time deposits E YNGR B = e ]

with original maturity of =l A Z 5 FE A

more than three months when acquired 7€ JH A K (5,008) (5,040)
Disposal of subsidiaries Hh B i . 32 (60) (186)

Net cash generated from investing BEWEH AL
activities W& T H 5,309 28,250

Bison Finance Group Limited



For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE-EFZ - _F+A=1+—HILFEE

2022 2021
SEo e
Notes HK$’000 HK$ 000

Bt 5 T T T

Cash flows from financing activities K H RE BN SR

Principal portion of lease payments HEA K2 A& H (10,063) (14,255)
Interest element of lease payments FE AT 3k 2 F B 4 (414) (396)
Redemption of promissory note B ] 7 o0 SR 4% 29 - (53,553)
Placing of new shares i 65 5B i 31(a) - 61,613
New bank loans and other borrowings ST SR AT R R S H A A 3K

raised 3,000 19,000
Repayment of bank loans and 18 352 SR AT B 3K S HoAth 8 3K

other borrowings (3,000) (19,000)
Interest paid A LS (5,651) (6,506)
Net cash used in financing activities R 7 ik G ) B B < i (16,128) (13,097)
Net decrease in cash B4 KB &% EHW WA

and cash equivalents e | (23,266) (4,504)
Cash and cash equivalents at FYB e RBleEEY

beginning of year 142,397 146,901
Cash and cash equivalents at ERB & RBE&EFEHY

end of year 119,131 142,397
Analysis of balances of B4 KB &% HY & ik

cash and cash equivalents Vi
Cash and bank balances B4 SR AT &G R 26 119,131 142,397
Non-pledged time deposits FEHCH E WA K 26 5,008 5,040
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in 4B BA SR Il 2 BT 51 B 4

the consolidated statement of KB4 EY)

financial position 124,139 147,437
Non-pledged time deposits with W A B TR 21 30 H R AR

original maturity of more than =l H Z FEHEH

three months when acquired & HA A7 2K (5,008) (5,040)
Cash and cash equivalents HAHERERMINN &

as stated in the consolidated KB &EHED

statement of cash flows 119,131 142,397

AEemERmARAA



Bison Finance Group Limited (the “Company”) is a limited
company incorporated in Bermuda and has its registered
office at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11,
Bermuda. The principal place of business of the Company
is 6th Floor, 18 King Wah Road, North Point, Hong Kong.
During the year, the Group was principally engaged in the

provision of financial services.

On 26 October 2021, the Company’s wholly-owned
subsidiary, Bus Power Limited (“Bus Power”), entered into a
termination agreement to early terminate the agreement for
provision of bus body advertising agency services to Citybus
Limited and New World First Bus Services Limited (the “Bus
Companies”) (as amended and supplemented) for a term
of three years expiring on 30 June 2023 (the “Advertising
Agreement’) and the ancillary documents relating to the
Advertising Agreement (as amended and supplemented) (the
“Ancillary Documents”) with effect from 1 November
2021. Therefore, the media business had been classified as
discontinued operation (“Discontinued Operation”).
Details are included in note 13 to the consolidated financial

statements.

In the opinion of the directors, the immediate holding
company and the ultimate holding company of the Company
are Bliss Chance Global Limited (“Bliss Chance”) and
Bison Capital Financial Holdings Limited (“Bison Capital”)
respectively. Bliss Chance and Bison Capital are incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands.

On 8 October 2021, the Company was notified by Bliss
Chance that it received a letter regarding the appointment
of two joint and several receivers (the “Receivers”)
over 680,508,005 shares of the Company (the “Charged
Shares”), which were charged under a share charge executed
by Bliss Chance as the chargor and Fruitful Worldwide
Limited as chargee (the “Share Charge”). Based on the
information provided by Bliss Chance, the Receivers were
appointed by Fruitful Worldwide Limited due to non payment
of quarterly fixed dividend by Bliss Chance in accordance
with the terms of an investment agreement dated 17 May
2017 which constitutes an event of default pursuant to the
Share Charge, causing the security under the Share Charge
become immediately enforceable.

Bison Finance Group Limited
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On 29 December 2021, the reccivers have entered into a
memorandum of understanding with an interested party in
relation to the possible sale of the Charged Shares which was
subsequently terminated in June 2022.

After making appropriate enquiries with the Receivers, the
Receivers indicated that (i) they are unable to actively look
for potential purchaser for the controlling stake (i.e. 30% of
the issued share capital of the Company) (the “Controlling
Stake”); and (ii) they are not in discussion with a potential
purchaser over the Controlling Stake and the Company
understands that an offer on the Charged Shares is unlikely to
be imminent.

Up to the date of this report, no further action was taken by
the Receivers and there is no change to the Group’s holding

companies.

The class of shares held is ordinary shares unless otherwise
specified. Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries

W oE o —FE+H -+ ILH BEEA
B — & 4 B8R N £ 5t BT RE B R 4
#T O B5 R TS B R R TS BB R Y —
T AENRNHAKE -

R ) A ONAE R AW AR
7 (i) H A VS AR ) o P RO (B AR AR E
AT A 130% ) ([HEJRHE]) H9TEAE H
55 T i) F Al 4 DL YR A 58 45 SR A
T8 5K Lh R AR 2y w] 1 i 2 it 4 R A A
Y A0 A K] e B 3 A

BEARE B 58 A 2 R BUE —
AATE) o A AR B 2 12 B2 m I A A )

B 5 A 15 B 51 > B 15 1 43 BRI 33 7 3 7l
JBe o AR 0% B B 4 R REAE AT

are as follows:

Issued and Percentage of equity
paid-up attributable to the Company
Place of incorporation/ share capital JE A A2 W] BEHEE 2 b
Name of company operation (Note (i) Direct Indirect  Principal activities
CRTRAR
TR ol B S T (ki) ) HE R S 3
Acton Eagle Limited The British Virgin Islands/Hong Kong ussti 100 — Investment holding
KRR /B kL g ¢t
Bison Corporate Finance Limited Hong Kong HK$7,000,001 100 Provision of advisory services on
Eﬁﬁ%@gﬁ FR/A ey %%7,000,001?5 corporate finance
AR 0105 R T o e
Bison Financial (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong HKSs1 - 100 Investment holding
i b BB R
Bison (HK) Management Services Limited Hong Kong HKs1 - 100 Provision of management services
ik e (LA T AR
BTS Investment Limited Cayman Islands Uss0.03 - 100 Provision of fund management
B2 B B 0.03% T services
SO SE H B
BTY Investment Limited Cayman Islands USs$0.02 - 100 Provision of fund management
e 0.02% T8 services
A4 TR B
Creative Time Global Limited The British Virgin Islands usst 100 —  Investment holding
KBRS E REHR
Initial Glory Limited The British Virgin Islands uss1 100 —  Investment holding
EBERUBE 1% Rgrk
MB-Vision Limited Hong Kong HKS$2 - 100 Investment holding
ik LIy Rgrk

H %

EEERARA A



Name of company

ik

Plenty Prestige Management Limited

Premier Future Limited

RSG Resources Limited

Shangtai Asset Management Limited

Silver Sea Limited

Target Capital Management Limited

REEEEHARAA

At HARE e kA A

.EH

Place of incorporation/

operation

AL AL/ S
The British Virgin Islands
ERRABE

The British Virgin Islands

KRS

Hong Kong

Ei

Cayman Islands

M2 RS
Hong Kong
ik

Hong Kong
ik

The PRC (Notes (ii), (iii))
B (M7 i) gii) )

Notes:

(i) The class of shares held is ordinary shares unless otherwise
specified.

(ii) It is registered as a limited liability company (Taiwan, Hong Kong

(iii)

or Macao’s sole proprietorship of legal person).

During the year ended 31 December 2021, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group, NanTai Investment Limited (“NanTai”)
was disposed of. In addition, an agreement was entered between (e
o EURR A R PR R A BR A WD
the Group and Ankai (Tianjin) Economic Information Consulting

(R (s B A A )

(“Ankai”), a wholly- owned variable interest entity of the Group,

Companv Limited ( %

for terminating the variable interest entity relationship. On 1
December 2021, Ankai ceased to be a subsidiary of the Group.
Further details are included in note 32 to the consolidated financial

statements.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,

in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results

for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets

of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in

the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive

length.

Bison Finance Group Limited

a wholly-owned subsidiary of

Issued and
paid-up

share capital
(Note (i)

R RAR
JBe AR (W 3k i) )

uss1
1£7

uss1
1£7

HKSs2
T

US50.02
0.02F 0

HKS$1
kAP

HK 30,000,000

30,000,0007C

US5700,000
700,000 7T

(1)

(ii)

(iii)

bR B R A

Percentage of equity

attributable to the Company

TEA A2 sl R T 43 B

Direct Indirect  Principal activities

HiE W#&  EEEH

100 Investment holding

RERER

100 -

Investment holding

frastidl

Provision of employment agency

su‘xiccs

R M

Provision of fund management

services

TR & IR

Investment holding

BERER

Provision of asset management,
investment advisory, fund advisory
and other consultancy services

RUEE S ER N B4
R A o e

Investment holding

W 75 A 15 WAk > 7 45 M 0 8T 5 2 i o
HEEM A ARITEAR (BHEEABE)

wWE_FE_—F+_HA=+—HILFFE

7 AE [H — ] &5 ﬁ i J% /N ] NanTai Investment
Limited ([NanTai J) 2 8% th 8 o L) » A 4E
22 M o W b T B AR A R AR R A BR
2N ) BRLAS A [ AR Y R AR A B L
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The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistency applied to all of the
years presented, unless otherwise stated.

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which include all
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
They have been prepared under the historical cost
convention except for financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss which have been measured at
fair values. These consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HKS”), which is
also the functional currency of the Company, and all
values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when
otherwise indicated.

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2022. A subsidiary is an entity
(including a structured entity), directly or indirectly,
controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when
the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over
the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group
the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the

investee).

A7 T s i 3K BT HE R B K B R K
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Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of
voting rights results in control. When the Company has,
directly or indirectly, less than a majority of the voting
or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it

has power over an investee, including:

(a)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote

holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual

arrangements; and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting
rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company,
using consistent accounting policies. The results of
subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the
Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated
until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners
of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling
interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group

are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control described above. A change in the ownership
interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

Bison Finance Group Limited
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If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill)
and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying
amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the
cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration
received, (ii) the fair value of any investment retained
and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss.
The Group’s share of components previously recognised
in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit
or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same
basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs
for the first time for the current year’s consolidated
financial statements:

Amendments to Reference to the Conceptual

HKFRS 3 Framework
Amendment to Property, Plant and
HKAS 16 Equipment: Proceeds

before Intended Use

Amendment to Onerous Contracts
HKAS 37 — Cost of Fulfilling
a Contract

Annual Improvements to  Amendments to
HKFRSs 2018-2020 HKFRS 1,
HKFRS 9, Illustrative
Examples accompanying
HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41

The adoption of the above revised standards has had no
significant financial effect on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements for the years presented.
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The Group has not applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet
effective, in these consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and

HKAS 28 (2011)

Amendments to
HKEFRS 16
HKFRS 17

Amendments to
HKFRS 17
Amendment to
HKFRS 17

Amendments to
HKAS 1

Amendments to
HKAS 1

Amendments to
HKAS 1 and
HKEFRS Practice
Statement 2

Amendments to
HKAS 8

Amendments to
HKAS 12

Bison Finance Group Limited

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture’

Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback?
Insurance Contracts'’

Insurance Contracts”’

Initial Application of HKFRS 17
and HKFRS 9 — Comparative

Information®

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current (the
“2020 Amendments’)**

Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants (the “2022
Amendments’)’

Disclosure of Accounting
Policies’

Definition of Accounting
Estimates'’

Deterred Tax related to Assets
and Liabilities arising from a
Single Transaction’
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Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2023

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2024

No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for

adoption

As a consequence of the 2022 Amendments, the effective
date of the 2020 Amendments was deferred to annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024. In addition,
as a consequence of the 2020 Amendments and 2022
Amendments, Hong Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation of
Financial Statements — Classification by the Borrower of a
Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause
was revised to align the corresponding wording with no

change in conclusion

As a consequence of the amendments to HKFRS 17 issued
in October 2020, HKFRS 4 was amended to extend the
temporary exemption that permits insurers to apply HKAS
39 rather than HKFRS 9 for annual periods beginning before
1 January 2023

An entity that chooses to apply the transition option relating
to the classification overlay set out in this amendment should

apply it on initial application of HKFRS 17

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments, new standards
and interpretations is expected to be in the period
of initial application. So far the Group has concluded
that the adoption of the new and revised standards is
unlikely to have a significant impact on the consolidated

financial statements.
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Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred
is measured at the acquisition date fair value
which is the sum of the acquisition date fair values
of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of
the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the
Group in exchange for control of the acquiree.
For each business combination, the Group
elects whether to measure the non-controlling
interests in the acquiree that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets in the event of
liquidation or at fair value or at the proportionate
share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All
other components of non-controlling interests are
measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs

are expensed as incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a
business when the acquired set of activities and
assets includes an input and a substantive process
that together significantly contribute to the ability

to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses
the financial assets and liabilities assumed for
appropriate classification and designation in
accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the
acquisition date. This includes the separation of
embedded derivatives in host contracts of the

acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages,
the previously held equity interest is remeasured
at its acquisition date fair value and any resulting

gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred
by the acquirer is recognised at fair value at
the acquisition date. Contingent consideration
classified as an asset or liability is measured at
fair value with changes in fair value recognised
in profit or loss. Contingent consideration that
is classified as equity is not remeasured and
subsequent settlement is accounted for within

equity.
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Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being
the excess of the aggregate of the consideration
transferred, the amount recognised for non-
controlling interests and any fair value of the
Group’s previously held equity interests in the
acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this
consideration and other items is lower than the
fair value of the net assets acquired, the difference
is, after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss

as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured
at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.
Goodwill is tested for impairment annually
or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value
may be impaired. The Group performs its annual
impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is, from the
acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s
cash-generating units (“CGU”), or groups of
CGU, that are expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination, irrespective of
whether other assets or liabilities of the Group

are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the
recoverable amount of the CGU or groups of
CGU to which the goodwill relates. Where
the recoverable amount of the CGU or groups
of CGU is less than the carrying amount, an
impairment loss is recognised. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a

subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a CGU or
groups of CGU and part of the operation within
that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated
with the operation disposed of is included in
the carrying amount of the operation when
determining the gain or loss on the disposal.
Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances
is measured based on the relative value of the
operation disposed of and the portion of the CGU

retained.
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The Group measures its listed and unlisted
equity investments at fair value at the end of
each reporting period. Fair value is the price
that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement
date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset
or transfer the liability takes place either in the
principal market for the asset or liability, or in
the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability.
The principal or the most advantageous market
must be accessible by the Group. The fair value
of an asset or a liability is measured using the
assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that
market participants act in their economic best

interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset
takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in
its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its

highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are
appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value,
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs

and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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All assets and liabilities for which fair value
is measured or disclosed in the consolidated
financial statements are categorised within the fair
value hierarchy, described as follows, based on
the lowest level input that is significant to the fair

value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 —  based on quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active markets for

identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques
for which the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value
measurement is observable, either

directly or indirectly

Level 3 —  based on valuation techniques
for which the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value

measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
consolidated financial statements on a recurring
basis, the Group determines whether transfers
have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each

reporting period.
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Where an indication of impairment exists, or
when annual impairment testing for an asset is
required (other than deferred tax assets, financial
assets and non-current assets/a disposal group
classified as held for sale), the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset’s or CGU’s value
in use and its fair value less costs of disposal,
and is determined for an individual asset, unless
the asset does not generate cash inflows that are
largely independent of those from other assets or
groups of assets, in which case the recoverable
amount is determined for the CGU to which the
asset belongs. In testing a CGU for impairment,
a portion of the carrying amount of a corporate
asset (e.g., a headquarters building) is allocated
to an individual CGU if it can be allocated on a
reasonable and consistent basis or, otherwise, to

the smallest group of CGU.

An impairment loss is rccogniscd only if
the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its
recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
An impairment loss is Charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss in the period in which
it arises in those expense categories consistent
with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each
reporting period as to whether there is an
indication that previously recognised impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable
amount is estimated. A previously recognised
impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill
is reversed only if there has been a change in
the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount of that asset, but not to an amount
higher than the carrying amount that would
have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal
of such an impairment loss is credited to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss in the
period in which it arises, unless the asset is
carried at a revalued amount, in which case the
reversal of the impairment loss is accounted for
in accordance with the relevant accounting policy
for that revalued asset.
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A party is considered to be related to the Group

i

(@)

or

(b)

the party is a person or a close member of

that person’s family and that person

®

(i)

(iii)

has control or joint control over the

Group;

has significant influence over the

Group; or

is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or a parent of
the Group;

the party is an entity where any of the

following conditions applies:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

the entity and the Group are members
of the same group;

one entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or of a
parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary
of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint
ventures of the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;
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(b)  (Continued)

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly

controlled by a person identified in

(@);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the entity or
is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the

Group or to the parent of the Group.

Property and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. The cost of an item of property and
equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to
its working condition and location for its intended

use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property
and equipment have been put into operation,
such as repairs and maintenance, is normally
charged to the consolidated statement of profit
or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where the recognition criteria are
satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is
capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as a
replacement. Where significant parts of property
and equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Group recognises such parts as
individual assets with specific useful lives and

depreciates them accordingly.
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Depreciation is calculated on the straight-
line basis to write off the cost of each item of
property and equipment to its residual value over
its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates

used for this purpose are as follows:

Leaschold improvements Over the remaining

lease term
Audio and visual equipment 5 — 7 years
Hardware and software 5 years

Furniture and fixtures 5 — 7 years

Where parts of an item of property and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of
that item is allocated on a reasonable basis among
the parts and each part is depreciated separately.
Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate,
at least at each financial year end.

An item of property and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any
gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss in
the year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying

amount of the relevant asset.
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Intangible assets acquired separately are
measured on initial recognition at cost. The
cost of intangible assets acquired in a business
combination is the fair value at the date of
acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets

are assessed to be either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and
assessed for impairment whenever there is
an indication that the intangible asset may be
impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a
finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of

each reporting period.

Intangible assets with finite useful lives represent
fund contracts, customer relationship and website
and mobile apps which are stated at cost less
any impairment losses and are amortised on the
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives

of 5 to 10 years.

Intangible asset with an indefinite useful live
represents a licence and is tested for impairment
annually either individually or at the CGU level.
Such intangible asset is not amortised. The useful
life of an intangible asset with an indefinite
life is reviewed annually to determine whether
the indefinite life assessment continues to be
supportable. If not, the change in the useful life
assessment from indefinite to finite is accounted

for on a prospective basis.
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The Group assesses at contract inception whether

a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is,

or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the

right to control the use of an identified asset for a

period of time in exchange for consideration.

The Group applies a single recognition and
measurement approach for all leases, except
for short-term leases and leases of low-

value assets. The Group recognises lease

liabilities to make lease payments and right-

of-use assets representing the right to use

the underlying assets.

Right-of-use assets are recognised

at the commencement date of the
lease (that is the date the underlying
asset is available for use). Right-of-
use assets are measured at cost, less

any accumulated depreciation and

any impairment losses, and adjusted

for any remeasurement of lease
liabilities. The cost of right-of-use
assets includes the amount of lease
liabilities recognised, initial direct

costs incurred, and lease payments

made at or before the commencement

date less any lease incentives received.
Right-of-use assets are depreciated on
a straight-line basis over the shorter
of the lease terms and the estimated

useful lives of the assets as follows:

Buildings

Motor vehicle
Panels

Over the remaining
lease term

5 years

Over the remaining
lease term

If ownership of the leased asset
transfers to the Group by the end of
the lease term or the cost reflects
the exercise of a purchase option,

depreciation is calculated using the

estimated useful life of the asset.
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Lease liabilities are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease at
the present value of lease payments
to be made over the lease term.
The lease payments include fixed
payments (including in-substance
fixed payments) less any lease
incentives receivable, variable lease
payments that depend on an index or
a rate, and amounts expected to be
paid under residual value guarantees.
The lease payments also include the
exercise price of a purchase option
reasonably certain to be exercised by
the Group and payments of penalties
for termination of a lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising
the option to terminate the lease.
The variable lease payments that do
not depend on an index or a rate are
recognised as an expense in the period
in which the event or condition that

triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of
lease payments, the Group uses its
incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date because
the interest rate implicit in the lease
is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of
lease liabilities is increased to reflect
the accretion of interest and reduced
for the lease payments made. In
addition, the carrying amount of lease
liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease
term, a change in lease payments
(e.g., a change to future lease
payments resulting from a change
in an index or rate) or a change in
assessment of an option to purchase
the underlying asset.
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The Group applies the short-term
lease recognition exemption to its
short-term leases of office equipment
(that is those leases that have a lease
term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not
contain a purchase option). It also
applies the recognition exemption for
leases of low-value assets to leases
that are considered to be of low value.

Lease payments on short-term leases
are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies
at lease inception each of its lease as either
an operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not
transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of an
asset are classified as operating leases.
When a contract contains lease and non-
lease components, the Group allocates
the consideration in the contract to each
component on a relative stand-alone selling
price basis. Rental income from operating

leases is recognised in accordance with note

2.4(0)(ii)(a).
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Leases in which the Group does not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an asset are
classified as operating leases. When the
Group is an intermediate lessor, the sub-
leases are classified as a finance lease or as
an operating lease with reference to the
right-of-use asset arising from the head
lease. If the head lease is a short-term lease
to which the Group applies the exemption
described in note 2.4(g)(i), then the Group
classifies the sub-lease as an operating lease.

Financial assets are classified, at initial
recognition, as subsequently measured at
amortised cost, fair value through other
comprehensive income, and fair value
through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial
recognition depends on the financial asset’s
contractual cash flow characteristics and the
Group’s business model for managing them.
With the exception of accounts receivable
that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has
applied the practical expedient of not
adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group initially measures a
financial asset at its fair value, plus in the
case of a financial asset not at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs.
Accounts receivable that do not contain
a significant financing component or for
which the Group has applied the practical
expedient are measured at the transaction
price determined under HKFRS 15 in
accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified
and measured at amortised cost or fair
value through other comprehensive
income, it needs to give rise to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and
interest (“SPPI”) on the principal amount
outstanding. Financial assets with cash
flows that are not SPPI are classified and
measured at fair value through profit or
loss, irrespective of the business model.

Bison Finance Group Limited
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The Group’s business model for managing
financial assets refers to how it manages
its financial assets in order to generate
cash flows. The business model determines
whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling
the financial assets, or both. Financial assets
classified and measured at amortised cost
are held within a business model with the
objective to hold financial assets in order
to collect contractual cash flows, while
financial assets classified and measured at
fair value through other comprehensive
income are held within a business model
with the objective of both holding to
collect contractual cash flows and selling,
Financial assets which are not held within
the aforementioned business models are
classified and measured at fair value through
profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of
financial assets are recognised on the
trade date, that is, the date that the
Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

The subsequent measurement of financial
assets depends on their classification as
follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost are
subsequently measured using the effective
interest method and are subject to
impairment. Gains and losses are recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss when the asset is derecognised,
modified or impaired.
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Financial assets at fair value through profit

or loss are carried in the consolidated

statement of financial position at fair value
with net changes in fair value recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

This category includes derivative
instruments and equity investments which

the Group had not irrevocably elected

to classify at fair value through other

comprehensive income. Dividends on

equity investments classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss
are also recognised as other income in

the consolidated statement of profit or

loss when the right of payment has been

established, it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the dividend will
flow to the Group and the amount of the
dividend can be measured reliably.

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a

part of a financial asset or part of a group

of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the
Group’s consolidated statement of financial
position) when:

Bison Finance Group Limited

the rights to receive cash flows from
the asset have expired; or

the Group has transferred its rights
to receive cash flows from the asset
or has assumed an obligation to pay
the received cash flows in full without
material delay to a third party under
a “pass—through” arrangement; and
cither (a) the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset, but has transferred
control of the asset.
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When the Group has transferred its rights
to receive cash flows from an asset or has
entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has
retained the risk and rewards of ownership
of the asset. When it has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset nor transferred
control of the asset, the Group continues to
recognise the transferred asset to the extent
of the Group’s continuing involvement.
In that case, the Group also recognises an
associated liability. The transferred asset and
the associated liability are measured on a
basis that reflects the rights and obligations
that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form
of a guarantee over the transferred asset
is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the
maximum amount of consideration that the
Group could be required to repay.

The Group recognises an allowance for expected
credit losses (“ECLs”) for all debt instruments not
held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs are
based on the difference between the contractual
cash flows due in accordance with the contract
and all the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at an approximation of the
original effective interest rate. The expected cash
flows will include cash flows from the sale of
collateral held or other credit enhancements that
are integral to the contractual terms.
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ECLs are recognised in two stages. For
credit exposures for which there has not
been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, ECLs are provided
for credit losses that result from default
events that are possible within the next
12-months (a 12-month ECL). For those
credit exposures for which there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, a loss allowance is required for
credit losses expected over the remaining
life of the exposure, irrespective of the
timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses
whether the credit risk on a financial
instrument has increased significantly
since initial recognition. When making
the assessment, the Group compares the
risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with
the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition and considers reasonable and
supportable information that is available
without undue cost or effort, including
historical and forward-looking information.
The Group considers that there has been
a significant increase in credit risk when
contractual payments are more than 30 days
past due.

The Group considers a financial asset in
default when contractual payments are 90
days past due. However, in certain cases,
the Group may also consider a financial
asset to be in default when internal or
external information indicates that the
Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding
contractual amounts in full before taking
into account any credit enhancements held
by the Group. A financial asset is written off
when there is no reasonable expectation of
recovering the contractual cash flows.
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Financial assets at amortised cost are subject

to impairment under the general approach

and they are classified within the following

stages for measurement of ECLs except

for accounts receivables which apply the

simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1

Stage 2

Stage 3

Financial instruments for
which credit risk has not
increased significantly since
initial recognition and for
which the loss allowance

is measured at an amount
equal to 12-month ECLs

Financial instruments

for which credit risk has
increased significantly since
initial recognition but that
are not credit-impaired
financial assets and for
which the loss allowance

is measured at an amount

equal to lifetime ECLs

Financial assets that are
credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are
not purchased or originated
credit-impaired) and for
which the loss allowance

is measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs
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For accounts receivable that do not contain
a significant financing component or when
the Group applies the practical expedient
of not adjusting the effect of a significant
financing component, the Group applies
the simplified approach in calculating ECLs.
Under the simplified approach, the Group
does not track changes in credit risk, but
instead recognises a loss allowance based on
lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The
Group has established a provision matrix
that is based on its historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward-looking
factors specific to the debtors and the

economic environment.

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial
recognition, as financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings, payables, or as derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in an
effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised
initially at fair value and, in the case of loans
and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include lease
liabilities, accounts payable, other payables
and promissory note.
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The subsequent measurement of financial
liabilities depends on their classification as
follows:

After initial recognition, interest-bearing
loans and borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial,
in which case they are stated at cost.
Gains and losses are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss
when the liabilities are derecognised as
well as through the effective interest rate
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking
into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an
integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is
included in finance costs in the consolidated

statement of profit or loss.

A financial liability is derecognised when the
obligation under the liability is discharged

or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is
replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and a recognition of a
new liability, and the difference between the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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Financial assets and financial liabilities are
offset and the net amount is reported in
the statement of financial position if there
is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is
an intention to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities

simultaneously.

The Group maintains scgrcgatcd clients’ accounts
with licensed banks to hold clients’ monies arising
from normal business in connection with the
Group’s brokerage activities. The cash held on
behalf of clients is restricted and governed by
the Securities and Futures (Client Money) Rules
(Chapter 5711) of the laws of Hong Kong under
the Securities and Futures Ordinance. The Group
has recognised the corresponding clients” accounts

payable to respective clients.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand and demand deposits, and short
term highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash, are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
and have a short maturity of generally within
three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement
of financial position, cash and cash equivalents
comprise cash on hand and at banks, including
term deposits, which are not restricted as to use.
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A provision is recognised when a present
obligation (legal or constructive) has arisen as
a result of a past event and it is probable that
a future outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the

obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the
amount recognised for a provision is the present
value at the end of the reporting period of the
future expenditures expected to be required
to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the
passage of time is included in finance costs in the

consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax.
Income tax relating to items recognised outside
profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss,
either in other comprehensive income or directly

in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured
at the amount expected to be recovered from
or paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax
rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations
and practices prevailing in the countries in which

the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability
method, on all temporary differences at the end
of the reporting period between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts

for financial reporting purposes.
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Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all

taxable temporary differences, except:

. when the deferred tax liability arises from
the initial recognition of goodwill or an
asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting

profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

. in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
when the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences can be controlled and
it is probable that the temporary differences

will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all
deductible temporary differences, and the
carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused
tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be

utilised, except:

. when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises
from the initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

0 in respect of deductible temporary
differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable
that the temporary differences will reverse
in the foreseeable future and taxable
profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.
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The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are
reassessed at the end of each reporting period and
are recognised to the extent that it has become
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax

asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the
period when the asset is realised or the liability is
settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end

of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities
are offset if and only if the Group has a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets
and current tax liabilities and deferred tax assets
and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on either
the same taxable entity or different taxable
entities which intend either to settle current tax
liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise
the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously,
in each future period in which significant amounts
of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to

be settled or recovered.
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Revenue from contracts with customers
is recognised when control of goods or
services is transferred to the customers at
an amount that reflects the consideration to
which the Group expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract
includes a variable amount, the amount
of consideration is estimated to which
the Group will be entitled in exchange
for transferring the goods or services to
the customer. The variable consideration
is estimated at contract inception and
constrained until it is highly probable that
a significant revenue reversal in the amount
of cumulative revenue recognised will not
occur when the associated uncertainty with
the variable consideration is subsequently
resolved.

If a contract meets all the criteria for
a contract with a customer at contract
inception, the Group does not reassess
those criteria unless there is an indication
of a significant change in facts and
circumstances. When there is an indication
of a significant change and deterioration in a
customer’s ability to pay the consideration,
it triggers the Group to reassess the
contract by considering the customer’s
ability and intention to pay that amount
of consideration when it is due. When
the Group considers the customer has no
ability to pay the consideration for the
remaining services after reassessment, the
Group does not recognise revenue from the
contract for the remaining period until all
or substantially all consideration is received
from the customer with no remaining
obligations to transfer services to the
customer.
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Income from production of
advertisements for transit vehicle
exteriors and interiors, shelters and
outdoor signages is recognised when
(a) the production of advertisements
services are rendered at the
point in time and (b) the related
advertisements are telecast or
commercials appear before the public
over the advertising period of the
related advertisements.

Fee income from media sales, design
and management services, production
of advertisements and advertising
agency services is recognised when
the related services are rendered.

Financial advisory and consultancy
fee income is recognised at a point in
time on completion of services.

b . . .
Brokers commission income for
brokerage business is recognised when

the transaction is executed.
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Fund management service income
is recognised over time on a time-
proportion basis as services are
provided. Management fee is
calculated either at a percentage of
client’s committed contribution or
at a percentage of the net asset value
of each fund and performance fee is
calculated based on a fixed percentage
of the increment in the net asset value
during the relevant performance
period. Fund advisory service income
is recognised over time on a time-
proportion basis as services are
provided. Advisory fee is calculated
based on committed contribution or
the net asset value of the investment

funds.

External asset management advisory
commission income is recognised
at a point in time when the Group
refers individuals to the third party
financial institutions for account
opening. Commission is calculated
based on percentage of the brokerage
commission earned by the third
party financial institutions from the
individuals. Hence, the commission
gives rise to variable consideration
which is constrained until the
individuals trade.
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Rental income is recognised on a
time proportion basis over the lease
terms. Variable lease payments that do
not depend on an index or a rate are
recognised in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.

Interest income from loan financing
is recognised on an accrual basis
using the effective interest method
by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash
receipts over the expected life of
the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when
the shareholders right to receive
payment has been established, it is
probable that the economic benefits
associated with the dividend will flow
to the Group and the amount of the
dividend can be measured reliably.

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when
they are approved by the shareholders in a general
meeting. Proposed final dividends are disclosed in
the notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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A contract liability is recognised when a payment
is received or a payment is due (whichever
is earlier) from a customer before the Group
transfers the related goods or services. Contract
liabilities are recognised as revenue when the
Group performs under the contract (i.e., transfers
control of the related goods or services to the

customer).

The Company operates a share award
scheme and a share option scheme for
the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations. Employees (including directors)
of the Group receive remuneration in the
form of share-based payments, whereby
employees render services in exchange
for equity instruments (“Equity-settled
Transactions”).

The cost of Equity-settled Transactions
with employees is measured by reference
to the fair value at the date at which they
are granted. The fair value of share awards
is determined based on the closing market
price of the Company’s shares that were
publicly traded on the Stock Exchange,
while the fair value of share options is
determined by an external valuer using a
binomial model, further details of which
are given in note 31 to the consolidated

financial statements.
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The cost of Equity-settled Transactions is
recognised in employee benefit expense,
together with a corresponding increase
in equity, over the period in which the
performance and/or service conditions
are fulfilled. The cumulative expense
recognised for Equity-settled Transactions
at the end of each reporting period until
the vesting date reflects the extent to
which the vesting period has expired and
the Group’s best estimate of the number of
equity instruments that will ultimately vest.
The charge or credit to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss for a period
represents the movement in the cumulative
expense recognised as at the beginning and
end of that period.

Service and non-market performance
conditions are not taken into account
when determining the grant date fair
value of awards, but the likelihood of the
conditions being met is assessed as part of
the Group’s best estimate of the number
of equity instruments that will ultimately
vest. Market performance conditions
are reflected within the grant date fair
value. Any other conditions attached to an
award, but without an associated service
requirement, are considered to be non-
vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions
are reflected in the fair value of an award
and lead to an immediate expensing of an
award unless there are also service and/or

performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest
because non-market performance and/
or service conditions have not been met,
no expense is recognised. When awards
include a market or non-vesting condition,
the transactions are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether the market or non-
vesting condition is satisfied, provided
that all other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied.
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Where the terms of an equity-settled
award are modified, as a minimum an
expense is recognised as if the terms had
not been modified, if the original terms of
the award are met. In addition, an expense
is recognised for any modification that
increases the total fair value of the share-
based payments, or is otherwise beneficial
to the employee as measured at the date of

modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled,
it is treated as if it had vested on the date
of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recognised for the award is recognised
immediately. This includes any award where
non-vesting conditions within the control of
cither the Group or the employee are not
met. However, if a new award is substituted
for the cancelled award, and is designated
as a replacement award on the date that it is
granted, the cancelled and new awards are
treated as if they were a modification of the
original award, as described in the previous

paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is
reflected as additional share dilution in the
computation of loss per share.

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement
benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)
under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for all of its employees.
Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the
MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund. The
Group’s employer contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed into
the MPF Scheme.
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The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries
which operate in the PRC are required
to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal
government. These subsidiaries are required
to contribute a specific amount for the
employees in the PRC, pursuant to the
local municipal government regulations.
The contributions are charged to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss as
they become payable in accordance with the

rules of the central pension scheme.

The MPF Scheme and the central pension
scheme in the PRC are defined contribution
plans. Forfeited contributions will not be
used by the Group to reduce the existing
level of contributions. The Group’s
employer contributions vest fully with the
employees when contributed into the MPF

Scheme.

General and specific borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets.
The capitalisation of such borrowing costs is
suspended or ceases when substantially all the
activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset
for its intended use or sales are interrupted or
complete.

Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from

the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are expensed in the

period in which they are incurred.
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Borrowing costs consist of interest and other
costs that an entity incurs in connection with the

borrowing of funds.

These consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the
Company’s functional currency. Each entity
in the Group determines its own functional
currency and items included in the consolidated
financial statements of each entity are measured
using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions recorded by the entities in the Group
are initially recorded using their respective
functional currency rates prevailing at the dates
of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling
at the end of the reporting period. Differences
arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss.

Non-monctary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the dates
of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date
when the fair value was measured. The gain or
loss arising on translation of a non-monetary item
measured at fair value is treated in line with the
recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair
value of the item (i.e., translation difference on
the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised
in other comprehensive income or profit or loss is
also recognised in other comprehensive income or
profit or loss, respectively).
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In determining the exchange rate on initial
recognition of the related asset, expense or
income on the derecognition of a non-monetary
asset or non-monetary liability relating to
an advance consideration, the date of initial
transaction is the date on which the Group
initially recognises the non-monetary asset or
non-monetary liability arising from the advance
consideration. If there are multiple payments or
receipts in advance, the Group determines the
transaction date for each payment or receipt of

the advance consideration.

The functional currencies of PRC subsidiaries
are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar.
As at the end of the reporting period, the assets
and liabilities of these entities are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates
prevailing at the end of the reporting period and
their statements of profit or loss are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates that
approximate to those prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. The resulting exchange differences
are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in the exchange reserve. On
disposal of a foreign operation, the component
of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the

consolidated statement of profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash
flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas
subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted

average exchange rates for the year.
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The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial
statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and their
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates
could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities
affected in the future.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs

for accounts receivable.

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group,s
historical observed default rates. The Group will
calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss
experience with forward-looking information. For
instance, if forecast economic conditions (i.e., gross
domestic product) are expected to deteriorate over
the next year which can lead to an increased number
of defaults, the historical default rates are adjusted.
At each reporting date, the historical observed default
rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking
estimates are analysed.

For fund management fees receivable, the Group also
takes into account the recoverable amount of the
underlying assets that can be realised from each of the
managed funds to arrive at the ECL.

Bison Finance Group Limited
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Loans receivable were based on probability of default
approach to estimate the ECLs under general approach,
and the measurement of the Group’s loans receivable
under such approach was estimated by management
through an application of judgement and use of highly
subjective assumptions including the identification of
loss stages, estimation of probability of defaults based
on their credit ratings; loss given default based on the
recovery rate, explosures at default rate, adjustment
for forward-looking information and other adjustment
factors.

The assessment of the correlation among historical
observed default rates, forecast economic conditions
and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs
is sensitive to changes in circumstances and forecast
economic conditions. The Group’s historical credit loss
experience and forecast of economic conditions may
also not be representative of a customer’s actual default
in the future. The information about the ECLs on the
Group’s accounts receivable and loans receivable is
disclosed in note 22 and note 23 to the consolidated

financial statements, respectively.

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators
of impairment for all non-financial assets (including
the right-of-use assets) at the end of each reporting
period. Indefinite life intangible assets are tested for
impairment annually and at other times when such
an indicator exists. Other non-financial assets are
tested for impairment when there are indicators that
the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An
impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset
or a CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, which is
the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its
value-in-use. The calculation of the fair value less costs
of disposal is based on available data from binding sales
transactions in an arm’s length transaction of similar
assets or observable market prices less incremental
costs for disposing of the asset. When value-in-use
calculations are undertaken, management must estimate
the expected future cash flows from the asset or cash-
generating unit and choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.
The information about the property and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets is disclosed in
notes 16 and 19, respectively.
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The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate
implicit in a lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental
borrowing rate (“IBR”) to measure lease liabilities.
The IBR is the rate of interest that the Group would
have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with
a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an
asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a
similar economic environment. The IBR therefore
reflects what the Group “would have to pay”, which
requires estimation when no observable rates are
available (such as for subsidiaries that do not enter
into financing transactions) or when it needs to be
adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions of the lease
(for example, when leases are not in the subsidiary’s
functional currency). The Group estimates the IBR
using observable inputs (such as market interest rates)
when available and is required to make certain entity-
specific estimates (such as the subsidiary’s stand-alone
credit rating).

The private equity fund has been valued based on the
net asset value which considers the fair values of the
underlying investments. The Group classifies the fair
value of these investments as Level 3 (2021: Level 3)
as the private equity fund invested in two (2021: two)
unlisted bond investments and one suspended listed
equity investment during the year. The fair value of
the private equity fund at 31 December 2022 was
HK$29,465,000 (2021: HK$71,274,000). Further
details are included in note 21 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The unlisted equity financial asset at fair value through
profit or loss have been valued based on a market-based
valuation technique. The valuation references to the net
assets statements of the Fund, financial information in
the investee companies and certain observable inputs.
The Group classifies the fair value of these investments
as Level 3. Further details are included in note 21 to

the consolidated financial statements.
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No operating segment information is presented as the
Group only operates in one singlc operating segment, i.c.,
the financial services which comprise licensed businesses
including provision of investment advisory services to fund
management, corporate finance advisory service, securities
services, external asset management services and fund

management services.

In the prior years, the Group also involved in media business
which comprise the provision of media sales, design and
management services and production of advertisements for
transit vehicle exteriors and interiors, advertising businesses
and provision of integrated marketing services (the “Media
segment”). During the year ended 31 December 2021, the
Group had terminated the Media segment which was included
as Discontinued Operation for the year ended 31 December
2021. Further details are included in note 13.

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group’s non-current
assets were mainly located in Hong Kong.

Revenue attributed from customers that accounted for 10%
or more of the Group’s total revenue during the years is as

follows:
Customer A BFA
Customer B ®FB
Customer C EFcC
* Revenue from relevant customer was less than 10% of the Group’s

total revenue for the respective year.

F A 74 2 1 A — IR B — R
R < Al AR BS (R0 4 % 2 e B4R B
F P R 5 ~ R Al o S ~ B RS
N ER A HI AR B M i < A B I S 4
FESETS) - W 4 5 5 K HR R o

AR AL E M E I ER (R
15 7% 78 B B B A0 K B R TR S 4 it
B B R R K HEROES DL K R S
YERRES > W iR b4 A T e IR ) (T3
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2022 2021
SE O FE T —
HK$’000 HK$ 000

T T I

N/A*
10,784 AN *
N/A*
7,765 AT *
N/A*
4,802 AT *
* A B AH B & 5 R U0 A A B AR A A 4E [ A
AR A BT 10%
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An analysis of revenue from continuing operations is as

follows:

Revenue from contracts with customers
Revenue from other sources
— Interest income on loans receivable

Types of services

Fund management service income*

External asset management advisory
commission income

Financial advisory and consultancy
fee income

Others

Total revenue from contracts with

PR AR BB WA TN T -

2022 2021
—B_— T4
HK$’000 HK$ 000

T

T

IR 25 8 Y

T T

®FE G HBA 39,529 70,828
Al AR T A
— M K A E A 1,428 4,745
40,957 75,573
2022 2021
SO E
HKS$’000 HK$ 000

T T

customers

Fund management service income was earned by subsidiaries
of the Group acting as cither general partners, investment
advisors or investment managers in investment funds which
hold equity and/or debt securities as underlying investments
in companies. The investment funds invest in various
companies including third party companies and companies
in which Mr. Xu Peixin (“Mr. XU”), an executive director
of the Company, or his close associate holds sharcholdings,
cither directly or indirectly, or is a director of such
companies which were not consolidated in the consolidated
financial statements of the Group. Certain investments funds
have committed contribution by group companies of the
preference shareholder of the Company's holding company as
limited partner or sharcholder which would not be involved

in the management or control of the funds.

Fund management service income was calculated cither at a
percentage of the committed contribution of the investors
in the funds or at a percentage of the net asset value of the
funds.
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Set out below are the book values of the investment N ERY R HF gﬁ\ /\ﬁﬁﬁﬁi&/&
portfolios of the funds that have invested in, inter alia, HABBABY AR LS %f,.ﬂ

companies related to Mr. XU and/or his close family B2 MR THAE :
member:
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$ 000

W T BT

Book values of the funds’ investments in 4 B AR %EE&/EZ
companies related to Mr. Xu and/or HEREEA B
his close family member: /\ A Y B & ) B T

— in funds whose management fees _ RS P E
are calculated at a percentage of i 4 () R GE
committed contribution of HER A
the funds* G 260,247 404,183
— in funds whose management fees _ RS P E
are calculated at a percentage of BRI G
net asset value of the fund* FEPE
G 1,563,649 1,652,856
1,823,896 2,057,039
&3 Book values of the funds’ investments above are extracted * it R B 1) MR T (T A Bk ST
from segregated portfolio reports issued by the independent o ESEHMARHENE LR EA
third party fund administrators. G

HESMEHRERAA



In addition, set out below are the management fee and
performance fee (if applicable) of the funds in which
group companies of the preference shareholder of the
Company’s holding company have invested (as limited
partner or sharcholder which would not be involved in
the management or control of the funds):

BEAh > T R 7R A 4w 5 e m
SR R B S B A R BCE (FE B A
W R B R e A REE A
Bl R ) Bk i 2 A B AN AR
(fis %8 1) -

2022 2021

HKS$’000 HK$’000

#HT oo BT T

Management fees =Lk 13,615 25,581

2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$’000

#HT U BT

Services transferred at a point in time R 55 A = AR IR ] B 25,914 45,230

Services transferred over time R 5 B IRy (] o 13,615 25,598
Total revenue from contracts with BF A HA R

customers 39,529 70,828

The following table shows the amount of revenue
recognised in the current reporting period that was
included in the contract liabilities at the beginning of
the reporting period:

TR ESN R o B EEA G R AR
T 7 A . 4 300 ] e 2 W A

2022 2021

HK$’000 HK'$’ 000

BT BT

Fund management service business I 4 IR BS E TS - 2,242
Securities service business 75 5 MRk %’?%f% 57 146
57 2,388
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Information about the Groupys performance obligation
is summarised in the revenue recognition paragraph of
“Summary of significant accounting policics”.

The performance obligations are satisfied upon services
are rendered and payment is generally due within 30 to

90 days from the date of billings.

Except for fund management service, the Group has
applied the practical expedient in paragraph 121 of
HKFRS 15 and does not disclose information about the
remaining performance obligations that have original
expected durations of one year or less.

The amounts of transaction prices (excluding the
variable considerations) allocated to the remaining
performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially
unsatisfied) for fund management service income
which is calculated at a percentage of the committed
contribution of the funds as at 31 December are as
follows:

Amounts expected to be recognised
as revenue:
Within one year — R
After one year — AR

A T A 45 B B 4 BAT: B BRI A
[ 2R & T BUORMEZ ] BT Ol A e R
Beyg iAo

JB 4 B AT i 42 1 AR RS IRF 22 B> T A
FOE R MRE H L E30%90H A
# o

BRI E BRI AEEBER B
s BB S HE R SR sE SR 11 B
[ n] 47 HE B ik > A 4 R R TE EH Y
B DA — 0 R 8RB A AT M B &
Ko

It HZ=+—H HEES R
HEESRFE AR EESE M
MR U AR T (R B A7 538 4 ok B
1) B EAT B S8 (Bn] A0 AE
AR IR

2022 2021
R HE TR A
HKS$’000 HK$ 000

T T T

LR Y TN

1,474 6,358
- 1,777
1,474 8,135

HA&AEmMERARAA



2022 2021
B F T —4F
HK$’000 HK$ 000

T T T

Bank interest income R AT A J<i A 337 338
Dividend income from investments in WA nEEFAREZ
financial assets at fair value through SREEREN % B,
profit or loss A 184 208
Rental income from a related company K B B 7 4
A 203 307
Sundry revenue LT N 190 405
Other income oAb ke A 914 1,258
Exchange losses, net e 50, s 18 V5 4R (2,047) (2,151)
Net realised and unrealised gains (losses) A AREEFIAELGZ
on financial assets at fair value through Sl E E ) BB
profit or loss (note 21) AEBB A (E1E)
FE (K itz1)
— Listed and unlisted equity investments Y T
Ei'd <y (2,848) (1,290)
— Investment in a private equity fund AR REFE S
& (36,809) 2,231
(39,657) 941
Other losses, net HoAth 5 18 15 5 (41,704) (1,210)
Other income and other losses, net HoAth g A Kz HoAth s 48
Gk (40,790) 48
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The Group’s loss before tax from continuing operations is

arrived at after charging/ (crediting):

Amortisation of intangible assets (note 19)
Depreciation (note 16)

— Property and equipment

— Right-of-use assets

Provision for/(reversal of) impairment losses
on financial assets, net
— Prepayments, deposits and other
receivables (note 20)

— Accounts receivable (note 22)
— Loans receivable (note 23)
— Loan to a related company (note 24)

Provision for impairment losses
on non-current assets
— Goodwill (note 18)
— Intangible assets (note 19)
— Property and equipment and
right-of-use assets (note 16)

(Gain)/loss on disposal of subsidiaries (note 32)

Foreign exchange differences, net
Lease payments not included in
the measurement of lease liabilities

. ) .
Auditor s remuneration

Employee benefit expenses (excluding directors’

and chief executive’s remuneration):

— Wages and salaries
— Equity-settled share-based payments
(note 31)

— Pension scheme contributions
(defined contribution scheme)

AL
e

2022

g Sy

HKS$’000

T

BTV & EE WSS (M at19) 3,158
ﬁé (/}ffnf]6)

./ EVE&E T 2,705

— { ) RE & 9,521
15,384
4 R U (E S 1H
Bt () EEH
— FEAT I~ Hed K
S At 8 WA B 3K
(M?Z%zo) 1,204

— FEMC R K (Mt 7E22) (2,243)

~ MEWCE K (M AE23) (1,801)

—m?%%ﬁﬂz

B (M at24) 3,455
615
I Ui B & e e R
B
— P (M aE1s) -
— T ERE (Hfit19) 23,418
i/ E V&L 17953
il FHE o
(Ktit16) 20,487
43,905
HEMREA A (ki)

Vs 15 (K aEs2) (780)
i 5, 2% #F 5 AR 2,047
Kt AHB & BRI R

GEN=ER N 582
A% S5l P <5 2,400
=R Er a7 N O £

HE M EEITHA G

B

- TLEEH® 16,867

— DA RE &5 5 DL 0y

Foy BEBRE B A5F K
(Ktit31) -

f@W£ﬁ%1M
(5 ket &) 645
17,512

H#% %R

\Jr

I%lﬁ %235/5&7%?% 0} [ﬁfﬂé i e R &840
(FFA) FIIKTEEZ =

2021

TE T AR

HK$ 000

BT T
9,234

2,905
10,679

22,818

(143)

18,899

22,653
381

41,790

78,554
13,834

92,388

505
2,151

964
5,564

26,605

9,069
1,211

36,885
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Auditor’s remuneration
— Audit services
— Non-audit services
Building management fees and air-conditioning
charges
Entertainment
Gain of lease modification (note 17)
Government rent and rates
Information and technology expenses

Lease charges for short-term leases (note 33(c))

Legal and professional fees
Transportation and travelling

Miscellaneous

Interest on lease liabilities
Interest on a promissory note
Other interest expenses

Bison Finance Group Limited

A% BT P <
— FE RS
— FEFFT RS
K I A8 1 2 N 22 R
%M
JFEE T i 4%
HEEFT W (FsE7)
i FH K 2 i
&Rl K B
HHHENHESRH
(B 5E33(c))
B R HER
24 K 75 i B 32
AETH

HEAMBZHE
TR L Tl
FoAt A1 B 32

2022
TR
HKS$’000
BT

2,000
400

1,908
574

(1,856)
438
792

582
5,380

209
3,077

13,504

2022

—B TR
HK$’000

W T ou

414
9,000
77

9,491

2021
T4
HK$’000

T T

5,000
564

1,923
469

(150)
427
1,146

964
9,567

484
2,099

22,493

2021
B
HK'$ 000

T T

305
9,834
309

10,448



Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year,
disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b),
(c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part
2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits
of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

Fees 7‘@%

Other emoluments:

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind

Equity-settled share-based payments

H At A < -
Frae o M REY
7@ Al
DA HE &5 5 DL S A7

W CEARD - FH A REGD) 56
383(1)(a) * (b) ~ (o) (O f& <> W) (4 #5 &
H A 5 G FLBD EF2EB B » A
R AT N B BB R

2022 2021
E —E T —4F
HKS$’000 HK$ 000

T T T

1,500 1,500

4,801 4,805

By FE R AT 3K - 3,220

Pension scheme contributions

During the prior years, share options were granted to
directors in respect of their services to the Group, further
details of which are included in note 31 to the consolidated
financial statements. The fair value of such options, which has
been recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss over the vesting period, was determined as at the date of
grant and the amount included in the consolidated financial
statements for the year is included in the above directors’
remuneration disclosures.

AR AR Bt 3 A K 62 64

6,363 9,589

AR AR AR B 7 g 5 AR 48 B4R ik g
e 55 1) A0 55 % i1 M BC R - A O B A
JF 55 3 B 31 o A i JB A S AR 5 4R
i % BB i 19 5% S W JBCAE 1) 28 o B (ED IR 4%
HH R E > BT AR AR G I R Y
SRR | SCHE I ) 4 B R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

% B S0 5 e % PR ik

10 DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF 10 # 3 Koo m AT BUA B i
EXECUTIVE’S REMUNERATION (%)
(Continued)
(@) Independent non-executive directors (a) B JEHATE S
Directors’s Share-based
fee payments Total
NS
WHREME RN o
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
W T W T W T
(Note 31)
(B RE31)
For the year ended 31 December 2022 BRE-F
+oH=4—H
1A
Independent non-executive directors: BT ES:
Dr. QI Daging PRK BETH 1 300 - 300
Mr. CHEN Yigong BN LA 150 - 150
Mr. FENG Zhonghua i rh 2 150 - 150
600 - 600
Directors’s Share-based
fee payments Total
DR
EEME RN AT HEt
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HKS$’ 000
W T wIET oo ki T
(Note 31)
(Bt 3E31)
For the year ended 31 December 2021 REZRZ
+=-H=+—H
R4
Independent non-executive directors: BT ES:
Dr. QI Daging R A+ 300 840 1,140
Mr. CHEN Yigong [ 150 — 150
Mr. FENG Zhonghua rh 150 - 150
600 840 1,440
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Directors’
fees
EHHE
HK$’000
T
For the year ended N St |
31 December 2022 S N R
Executive Directors: WiTES:
Mr XU Peixin (‘Mr. XU) ke (THR5%E4E]D) 200
Mr. SUN Lei (Chief Executive Officer) TR Gt (FTH##) 200
Mr. ZHU Dong (Chief Financial Officer) *g RE(BHEYEE) 200
Non-Executive Director: FanES
Dr. MA Weihua SREE L 300
900
Directors’ fees
HRHR
HK$'000
BT
For the year ended e i Y
31 December 2021 SRR
Executive Directors: Wi
Mr. XU (i3 200
Mr. SUN Lei (Chief Executive Officer) TRk Gt (FTH B #) 200
Mr. ZHU Dong (Chief Financial Officer) REFGHE (HEHEE) 200
Non-Executive Director: T ESR
Dr. MA Weihua BREd L 300
900

There was no arrangement under which a director
or the chief executive waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration, and did not receive compensation for
loss of office or as an inducement to join the Group
during the year (2021: Nil).

Salaries,
allowances
and benefits
in kind

i I R
A
HK$’000

T T

1,770
1,560
1471

4,801

Salaries,
allowances and
benefits in kind
Br B R
TR A
HKs'000

R T

1,770
1,565
1,470

4,805

Pension
scheme Share-based
contributions Sub-total payments Total
ROk VA6 2
ik ANaE BEBERY Ak M5t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

#hHTr  EWTE  ®%Tx  EWTR

17 1,987 - 1,987
28 1,788 - 1,788
17 1,688 - 1,688
- 300 - 300
62 5,763 - 5,763
Pension scheme Share-based
contributions Sub-total payments Total
YIS DU 2
3k NGt BERERY AR a5t
HKs$000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000

ERTT O B¥Tx  E%Tx #WTx

18 1,988 - 1,988
28 1,793 840 2,633
8 1,688 1,540 3,8
- 300 . 300
64 5,769 2,380 8,149

L S 7 4R TR BTS2 AT B R R AT
BN B B ) 55 S e M ) 22
I A0 PR e B AR R o A AS 4R Y
ﬁﬁb;ﬁqﬁﬁﬂﬂﬁl%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ@%ﬂ? (=%
T AR ) o

HA&AEmMERARAA



The five highest paid employees during the year included FER 2 REHMIE BT =4 &S

three directors (2021: one director), details of whose (ZF 4 —HEFR) (FMaEE#H
remuneration are set out in note 10 above. Details of the A ESCHEEE10) s HERW 4L (& . —4F:

remuneration of the remaining two (2021: four) highest paid Va2 ) o B E B (BEIR#E F N JF i
employees who are neither a director nor chief executive of ITENE) HWFEE T

the Company are as follows:

2022 2021
—B_— T4
HK$’000 HK$ 000

T T T

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind B4~ RS OE W AR A 2,690 15,706
Pension scheme contributions FERANE S I KFFY 36 69

2,726 15,775

The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest P 4 BE A T DAR B 2 B BT Ok
paid employees whose remuncration fell within the following HRIFEEITEANBEBNEUT -

bands is as follows:
Number of employees

2022 2021
SBo g o

HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 #: 11,000,001 7C &

#:H1,500,0007C 1 .
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 #: %1,500,001 T &

#2000,0007C 1 .
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 #:#52.000,0017C &

#: W2 500,0007C - -
HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000 M2 500,001 75 &

5 3,000,0007T - 1
HK$3,000,001 — HK$3,500,000 7 %3,000,001 7T &

M5 3,500,0007C - 1
HK$3,500,001 — HK$4,000,000 7 #3,500,001 T &

# W4.000,0007C - 1
HK$4,500,001 — HK$5,500,000 7 %4,500,001 T &

W5 500,0000C - _
HK$5,500,001 — HK$6,000,000 # #5,500,001 T &

# %6,000,0007C - 1

Bison Finance Group Limited



Pursuant to the rules and regulations of Bermuda, the Cayman
Islands and the British Virgin Islands, the Group is not subject
to any income tax in Bermuda, the Cayman Islands and the
British Virgin Islands.

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax and the PRC
corporate income tax have been made as the Group did not

generate any assessable profits arising in Hong Kong and in

the PRC for the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated at
the rates of tax prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the
Groups operates.

RIE A AE 2R L8 LR
Z RN L LB > A B 1 1 A - BA 2 R
By % OB e e B W R AN AT AR BT A5 B

HRAEERBEE —F - F L -F
T H =4 HIREE R
K e I AR AT o] ER B U A Sl d
%%%ﬂ%ﬁ&*@A%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ

At 2 O R i L T 2 A
T ] o L A A 1 7

2022 2021
—B-—F —T-—fF
HK$’000 HK$ 000

T T T

Current tax — HK R HA B TH — 7 5

- Under—provision in prior years — W AE 45'5 ﬁ ﬁﬂﬁ iy 8 -
Current tax — the PRC B BB IH —

— Under—provision in prior years — M AE 45'5 E ?@fﬁ iy - 7
Deferred tax (note 30) RIEBLIA (M 7E30) (3,648) (3,806)
Total tax credit for the year from FRE B EH A

continuing operations *ﬂ TH K fo A8 3R (3,640) (3,799)
Total tax credit for the year from A KR A% ZE A AR

Discontinued Operation ﬂ% IE *E&ﬁ'ﬂ%{@ﬂﬁ - (5)

(3,640) (3,804)

HESMEHRERAA



A reconciliation of the tax credit applicable to loss before tax
from continuing operations at applicable statutory tax rates

are as follows:

i 8 2 2 B R wH LAY B TE K S0 B 4
KBTS 2 BRBLAT G TR BRI R

Loss before tax from continuing operations

Loss before tax from
Discontinued Operation

Tax at the statutory tax rates
Different tax rates for specific jurisdictions

Expenses not deductible for tax
Income not subject to tax
Tax effect of tax losses utilised from prior years

Tax losses not recognised

Under-provision in respect of prior years
Tax credit

Total tax credit from continuing operations

Total tax credit from Discontinued Operation

Bison Finance Group Limited

2022
—E
HKS$’000
W T
i 0 5878 605 BR LA
i 18 (126,732)
1k A8 78 S5 R B i
%E -
5 E B FHA A BLIR (20,911)
i E AR HE R Y B R
Z Al 6,148
ASa] A B s 6,977
RBA (179)
A 4 i A9 B I
Y 15 ) 0 T B (370)
o Tife 52 i IH s 1R 4,687
T 4F B M AN 8
B TE AL G (3,640)
R M 588 B BLIRR S
L (3,640)

b KEE SR BLIR R

P

R

2021

TE A

HK$’000

T T

(192,648)

(69,916)
(43,323)

(31)
22,935
(84)

16,692

(3,804)

(3,799)

)



On 26 October 2021, Bus Power entered into a termination
agreement to carly terminate the Advertising Agreement and
the Ancillary Documents with the Bus Companies with effect
from 1 November 2021. A termination fee of approximately
HK$50,716,000 was made by the Group to the Bus
Companies, in which HK$18,669,000, being the work deposit
previously provided to the Bus Companies upon signing of the
Advertising Agreement and the remaining HK$32,047,000
was settled on 1 November 2021. Following the termination
of the Advertising Agreement and the Ancillary Documents,

the media business was discontinued.

The results of Media segment for the year ended 31
December 2021 were presented below:

Revenue
Expenses

Finance costs

Loss before tax from Discontinued Operation

Income tax expenses

Loss for the year from Discontinued Operation

)j/\giigfﬁﬂ“ﬁ —+75 H > Bus Poweri)
ST K% b th R o R ET AR R B 4 N R
m%m&W%i# H_F . — 4+ —
H#Hﬁiﬁw$%@amaiﬁﬂi
5} % 11 25 49 Hs %550,716,0007T » o Fp ik
18,669,0007C 4 5& Aij % nnTEthﬁ% 1% ]
B "R AR TR 4> R K s B
nmmmﬁﬁ%*?**$$ H—H
B TH o i #¢ 1E R A T ek I B SR AR 1
%%ﬁa £ o

BE_ZXZ - —F+A=+—HILFE

W AR
HK'$’ 000
T
A 128,413
b ¢ (198,301)
il R AN 28)
1F 48 2% SEHS bR B AT
%E (69,916)
JIT 15 i B 52 s
eIk B SR A R R (69,911)
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The net cash flows incurred by Media segment were as AT EAN R SR EFEN T

follows:

HK$’000
T oo

Operating activities R IE (28,121)
Investment activities # g 15 &) 804
Financing activities il 5 1 ) (2,270)
Net cash outflows B4 Ui s TR (29,587)
Loss per share: B
Basic, from Discontinued Operation HAR (KIEREER) HK(5.40) cents
(5.40)¥ Al
Diluted, from Discontinued Operation v (A% Ik AR ) HK(5.40) cents
(5.40)¥ Al
The calculations of basic and diluted loss per share for the ’?&Egg:ﬁfﬁﬁ‘ “HA=Z+—HIL4FEE
year ended 31 December 2021 from Discontinued Operation 1 8 % EHS A A LA R B T s 1R AR
were based on: %U\‘F%IE %
Loss attributable to owners of the Company AN FIHEA NREAL £ 1k HK$69,911,000
from Discontinued Operation AT 1R T %69.911,0007C
Weighted average number of ordinary shares F i wH B I A 1R
in issue during the year used in the basic AN BT A
loss per share calculation 14 T RE - 32 1,295,455,558
Weighted average number of ordinary shares FH S wh S R s 1R
in issue during the year used in the diluted AN AT
loss per share calculation 14 T RE - 32 1,295,455,558

Bison Finance Group Limited



No final dividend is proposed for the year ended 31
December 2022 (2021: Nil).

No final dividend in respect of the financial year ended 31
December 2021 was approved and paid during the year (2021:
Nil).

The calculation of basic and diluted loss per share is based
on the loss attributable to owners of the Company of
approximately HK$123,092,000 (2021: HKs$258,760,000).
The weighted average number of ordinary shares used in
the calculation is the number of ordinary shares in issue of
1,421,838,398 (2021: 1,295,455,558) during the year, as
used in the basic and diluted loss per share calculation, after
deducting the shares held for the Companyys share award
scheme (the “Share Award Scheme”) (see note 31(b)).

No adjustment has been made to the basic loss per share
amounts presented for the years ended 31 December 2022
and 2021 in respect of dilution as the impact of the share
options had an anti-dilution effect in the basic earnings per

share amounts presented.

The calculations of basic and diluted loss per share are based

EERAMBEHE T _H+ A
=t —HIEFERNRMRE (ZF = —

I A TR R 0 e R B % 4
TZA=1+— Hiﬁﬁﬁliﬁﬂﬁﬂiﬁﬂﬂiu
(- —4 )

=3

SIS WNYE Y R CPAR S FN/NEIE 3
AN HE Ak i 18 40 9 %5 123,092,0000T (:
T — 4 #¥058,760,0007T ) FHE ©
BT 2 A A T 4 B .ﬁ%ﬂ
JBE L AR T 5 s 18 T R AR 0 L B AT
WK EH1,421,838,398/f% ( —F — —4F:
1,295,455,558/1% ) s AT A T B 8
JEhEEE (Tt SEmhat & ) Fea e (R
B 5E31 (b)) °

F A P 12 9145 P A R
L I T 9
SE R F A f =
Ik 1 B 291 2 5 1 A s L 8 1
8

At A S A R e 1R B

on:
2022 2021
RO CE AR
HK$’000 HK'’ 000
W% T T o
Loss 5 48
Loss attributable to owners of the PR wHE G R A 5 18
Company, used in the basic earnings P N/NESIE: ¥ N
per share calculation: s 18
— From continuing operations R B RS E E (123,092) (188,849)
— From Discontinued Operation — R B IEREE - (69,911)
Loss attributable to owners of the Company EN/NCIE: RSN E ) i (123,092) (258,760)

HESMEHRERAA



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A o B 5 i B R

16 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT AND

174

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

Owned assets

HEEE

16 Y3 B uk i VA B 06 ) B &
FE

Right-of-use assets

BB

31 December 2022 RZBZZETZR
=t-H
At 31 December 2021 and /i S |
1 January 2022 =t-Hk
e St S Rl
Cost A 6,556 2,763 1,690 11,009 39,236 813 40,049 51,058
Accumulated depreciation LT R
and impairment (4,565) (1,750) (934) (71,249) (33,959) (651) (34,610) (41,859)
Net carrying amount SR I 1,991 1,013 756 3,760 5,077 162 5,439 9,199
At 1 January 2022, net of RoFZZHE—~A—R
accumulated depreciation bR 2 FHE R
and impairment 1,991 1,013 756 3,760 5,277 162 5,439 9,199
Additions nE - - - - 24,569 - 24,569 24,569
Depreciation provided during FRFHENE
the year (1,818) (549) (338) (2,705) (9,359) (162) (9,521) (12,226
Disposal & - - - - - - - -
Impairment during the year FRE - - - - (20,487) - (20,487) (20,487)
At31 December 2022, et of R EF AT
accumulated depreciation Sr=[gs
and impairment bR 2 FHTE LB E 3 464 418 1,05 - - - 1,05
At 31 December 2022 A St Sy
=1+—H
Cost A 6,556 2675 1,682 10913 56,451 813 57,264 68,177
Accumulated depreciation and ESEi -y
impairment (6,383) (2.211) (1,264) (9,838) (56,451) 813) (57,264) (©7,122)
Net carrying amount P T £ 13 464 418 1,055 - - - 1,055
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HEKE
Audio
Leaschold and visual Hardware Furniture
improvements equipment and software and fixtures
HENEEE PhEak  ERREE  REREE
HKs'000 HKs'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
BT R BT BT
31 December 2021 RZFZ-EFZAZF-H
At 1 Jamuary 2021 e St S i |
Cost Ak 17,4 2141 15,768 3,158
Accumulated deprecition and impairment it R E (13,46) 247 (14,19) 2,061)
Net carrying amount SR 39% 157 1,097
At1 January 2021, net of accumulated REBT-E-A—H»
depreciation and impairment IS kR 3,99 1,572 1,097
Depreciation provided during the yar gtk (2,005) - (559) (341)
Disposil hE (404) (400)
Reversal of impairment durng the year R - - 404 40
At 31 December 2021, net of accumulated REBZ-EFZAZ,—H
depreciation and impairment R R0 R A 1,91 - 1,013 756
At 31 December 2021 REBS-EFZAZA—H
Cost %S 6,556 = 2763 1,690
Accumulated depreciation and impairment i E R (4,565) - (1,750) (934)
Net carrying amount TR i 1,991 - 1083 7%

During the year ended 31 December 2021,

Owned assets

the Groupys

management early terminated the Advertising Agreement
and the Ancillary Documents of Bus Power, the Media
segment was discontinued and reversal of impairment loss
was recognised upon disposal of the relevant property and
equipment during the year ended 31 December 2021.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group’s
management considered that the investment advisory services
and fund management services business has continued to be
adversely affected by the unfavourable market situation and
estimated the corresponding recoverable amounts of their
property and equipment and right-of-use assets. Based on
these estimate, an impairment loss of HK$20,487,000 (2021:
HKS$Nil) was recognised to write down the carrying amount
of these items of property and equipment and right-of-use
assets to their recoverable amounts. For details of impairment
assessment, please refer to note 19.

Right-of-use assets

il

Motor
Panels Subtotal Buildings Panels vehicle Subtotal Total
B Nt L& i it it at
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKs'000 HKs'000
BT ERTE EETx BT AT -1 5 PR £ W
19,04 57,864 40,003 7917 813 #,133 106,397
(19,24) (51,199) (24,209) (1917) (489) (32,615) (83,814)
6,665 15,79 n 16,1 2,783
6,665 15,79 34 16,118 2,783
= (2,905) (10,517) - (162) (10,679) (13,584)
(804) (804)
- 804 - - - = 804
= 3,760 5211 = 162 5439 9,199
= 11,009 39,03 = 813 40,49 51,058
- (7,49) (33959 = (651) (34,610) (41,859)
= 3,760 521 = 162 5439 9,199

PEE_F_—FE+_HA=+—HILF
B AR 4R H) A R B FL AL 1k Bus PowerlT) i
1o e S BT g SC A B RE A R A R R
st E " F - —F+_H=1+—
H 1k 45 B 8 A BE ) 2 B s i A% e 8 ok
[I=0 73i=Ke ST

WERE_Z "+ _H=+—HI®F
Vﬁ¢%@§ﬁ@m% & Mk B
ok 4 S IROPS SE 05 A A 2 B A R T L
%ﬁﬁw%»ﬁ%/%%& R LA K il
FHRE Y A A B ] i [B] & BEGEAT AN T o
WIEZEAM A B MR AR B
20,487,0007C ( =& — —4F : &) > DI %
S 3 KGR DL R R E TH H IR
T (L i ek 2 L AT i [ 4 B - A B U (E T
i 2 FE1E - S B Mt -

B m e B A RA A



The Group has lease contracts for buildings, panels and a AEEARREFGEENET  EHE

motor vehicle used in its operations under a fixed term of FMRENHESL  HNAEE AWE
two to three years. Certain equipment generally have lease AR o 25 S AR 0 FEL A 4 R 212 A 8D
terms of 12 months or less and/or are individually of low T&/jﬂﬂ il J%{Eiﬁffa" — Rk E > AN
value. Generally, the Group is restricted from assigning and 5 AN A5 1) A 4E 3] DA A N - S 0 o3 AH
subleasing the leased assets outside the Group. There was no R o M A U R A IR R D)
lease contract that include extension and termination options MBS RN E &L -

and variable lease payments.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use assets PN Y NN {iﬁﬁ HE & 7 1) B T B M
and the movements during the year are further set out B HE G O 55 A B R M s e o

in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

The carrying amount of lease liabilities recognised in A IR SR A B R UL 3R R A L
BAERBRTE &R -

the consolidated statement of financial position and the

movements during the year are as follows:

2022 2021
SRR A
HKS$’000 HK$’000

W T #EWE T T

Carrying amount at 1 January 7 — H — B A4 I i 4 7,773 22,178
New leases entered (note 16) BRI AHA (Mfitie) 24,569 -
Lease modification HEEHT (1,856) (150)
Accretion of interest recognised A E T RR A S 18

during the year 414 396
Payments 53K (10,477) (14,651)

Carrying amount at 31 December H+HH=+—HWMW

R 1A ¥ 20,423 7,773
Analysed into: AR
— Current portion — VR ER 8,613 7,773
— Non-current portion — B 11,810 -
20,423 7,773
The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in HEABZ 2 H SV R4 G M
note 38(b) to the consolidated financial statements. %&%w3$38(b)TBZ§ ®
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Amounts recognised in consolidated statement of profit T &5 A 18 1 X T RR 00 FH B A B SR

or loss in relation to leases are as follows: /I
2022 2021
HKS$’000 HK$ 000
BT BT T
Interest expense on lease liabilities BA AR
— from continuing operations —R B RFEREEY 414 306
— from Discontinued Operation — 3R B &R - 90
Depreciation charges of right-of-use o P HE & 7 P 8S B S
assets (note 16) (Bt iF16) 9,521 10,679
Expenses relating to short-term leases FEEAHAEE 2 X
— from continuing operations — K B FFE K M%ﬂ‘% 582 964
— from Discontinued Operation — 3K B &R R — 36
Impairment of right-of-use assets it A 2 ek M
(note 16) (Bt iF16) 20,487 -
Gain on lease modification (note 8) BB FT I i (M 7ts) (1,856) (150)
Total amount recognised in consolidated R GE A 18 f5 FERR
statement of profit or loss ‘%@%E 29,148 11,925
The Group leases certain of its buildings in Hong Kong AL H *Eﬁ%&é%fﬂ% LHETE F i AL A
under operating lease arrangements. The terms of the leases T 15 o A0 B M R W B R B A R 32
generally require a related company to pay a security deposit ASF 10 4 3l AR 45 IRE T U0 R B O Mfﬂé
and provide for periodic rent adjustments according to the AL H R AN ﬁﬁ R0 1 L 4 Uit A 2 WS K
then prevailing market conditions. Rental income recognised 203,0007C (~ ? AR {%%307 0007C) °
by the Group during the year was HK$203,000 (2021: W I‘ﬁ R ER A j‘%’?ﬁ;{%‘:{[ﬁuf%(a) <
HK$307,000), details of which are included in note 35(a) to
the consolidated financial statements.
At 31 December 2022, the undiscounted lease payments ATE T HFETH=ZT—H AEH
receivable by the Group in future periods under non- HAFF L2 A K EHEHET 2
cancellable operating leases with its tenants are as follows: ﬂ%ﬂ@ﬂﬁ ] o G B B S FEL B 3k JE
2022 2021
RO R
HKS$’000 HK$ ’000
BT BT oo
Within one year —4E A 203 307

HESMEHRERAA



At 1 January 2021
Cost
Accumulated impairment

Net carrying amount
Cost at 1 January 2021, net of accumulated
impairment

Impairment during the year

Net carrying amount at 31 December
2021 and 2022

At 31 December 2021 and 2022:

Cost
Accumulated impairment

Net carrying amount

Bison Finance Group Limited

BT —fE—f—H
WA
Btk (8

e Th ¥ (L

BoF A HRRA
11 B 2R wH A
A4 B

ROB— R B4
+ A =+ — B R i

REF_—FR_-FZ
+ZA=+—8:
JRAS
it

AR T 7 {H

HK$ 000

T T

178,444
(99,890)

78,554

78,554
(78,554)

178,444
(178,444)



Goodwill was allocated to the Group’s CGU, which is the
investment advisory services and fund management service

business. Goodwill was fully impaired during the year ended
31 December 2021.

The recoverable amount of the CGU of the investment
advisory services and fund management business amounting
to HK$29,845,000 was determined based on value in use
calculations. These calculations used cash flow projections
based on historical data and financial budgets approved by
the board of directors of the Company (the “Directors”)
covering an eight-year period. Cash flows beyond the eight-
year period were extrapolated using an estimated weighted
average growth rate. The growth rates used did not exceed
the long-term average growth rates for the businesses in
which the CGU of the investment advisory services and
fund management business operates. The directors adopted
a financial budget of an eight-year period to demonstrate a
more appropriate change in free cash flows before applying
the terminal value in the value-in-use calculation. The cash
flows were discounted using a discount rate which is pre-tax
and reflects specific risks relating to the relevant CGU.

For the investment advisory services and fund management
services business, the key assumptions used in the value-in-

use calculations in 2021 were as follows:

% of revenue growth

Long term growth rate
Pre-tax discount rate

An independent valuation was performed by an external
valuer for the 2021 impairment assessment.

As at 31 December 2021, based on value-in-use calculation,
it was determined that the carrying value of the CGU of the
investment advisory services and fund management services
business was greater than its recoverable amount, resulting
in an impairment loss of HK$78,554,000 recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

WA R E 2

A E AR R e E A R
G RE RESEHREEE & E
CE o+ A=+ —HILEE H
B RBUE -

WG R MIRE hRESEHETNE & FE
A B Y AT S [ 4 R S 29,845,000 0T F7
A EERT AR E el B A
& TE I K8 R S BRSNS
HH ([EH]) GHZA\E LB
B NEWMENBE SR B2 BMAF
HE - 35 16 B 2R 4k 55 o T 0 ) 1) 48 = R
47 B 1 R R RS % R A
HeEtHgEfEERNREYTY
W R EH R/ EL B EE D
i B4 O A R A (A R AR
HRTMELFEAEE HHERE R
r 8 R YT E - P A0 3 B R 5 BRI
T J Wit R I3 B 4 7 A BELASE 4 o o LR

4R 2 P RS X e RS S5
B0 % A A RS 2
FRRT ¢

2021

S-S SN

Nil to 5%
FEE5%

R R 2.5%
% Bl AT T B R 15%

. H A0 Hf Ak 8 B — 2 — — 4 3ol (B T A
AT T I SLAGH -

A B A=+ —H o REM
FEAE & > % B R R & 3 4
IR 5 2 %5 1 3R 4 AR B 2 R T (E K R
AT i [ 5 RE S EBUR A 1H 4R R R
(B s 48 5 578,554,000 7T ©
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31 December 2022

Cost at 1 January 2022, net of
accumulated amortisation
and impairment

Amortisation provided
during the year

Impairment during the year

At 31 December 2022

At 31 December 2022
Cost
Accumulated amortisation

and impairment

Net carrying amount

31 December 2021

Cost at 1 January 2021, net of
accumulated amortisation
and impairment

Amortisation provided
during the year

Impairment during the year
J

At 31 December 2021

At 31 December 2021:
Cost
Accumulated amortisation

and impairment

Net carrying amount

Bison Finance Group Limited

“Z2-HE+ZA=1—H

REFZ_FE—-A—HHE
RS > 1R 2 T o (E

CARE ST

B (E
MREFZZFFA=t—H
R-ZFZ°2EFZA=4—H

FA
258

e T (E

e e S

REFZ—F—H—HHE
JA > R 2 w8 B (L

B 7 8 1 1
B

REFZ—F+ZA=+—H

REZZFZ—H+ZA=+—H:

A
2 8

e 1 (L

Licence

i I
HKS$’000
w0

4472

(4,472)

4472

(4,472)

Licence

Jih BB
HKs’000
BT T

4,472

4472

4,472

4472

Fund
contracts

RERR
HKS$’000
BT

28,699

(28,699)

Fund

contracts

EEaH
HKs’000

BT

17,219

(5,740
(11,479)

28,699

(28,699)

Customer
relationship

% F I 1%
HKS$’000
T

22,104

(3,158)
(18,946)

34,941

(34,941)

Customer

relationship

% F B R
HK$'000
T T

27,953

(3,494)
(2,355)

22,104

34,941

(12,837)

22,104

Website
and
mobile apps

LR ER
JE ) 2 2
HK$’000
3 T

Website and
mobile apps
&S
JE 2 X
HKS’000

BT

468

(468)

Total

)
HKS$’000
T

26,576

(3,158)
(23,418)

68,112

(68,112)

Total

w5t
HKs’000
BT

49,644

(9,234)
(13,834)

26,576

68,580

(42,004)

26,576



Note: In assessing the useful life of the licence, due consideration is given
to the existing longevity of licence, the life cycle of the industry in
which the Group operates and the renewal barriers of the licence
in the future. In light of these considerations, no factor could be
identified that would result in the licence having a finite useful life.
Accordingly, the licence has been assessed as having an indefinite
useful life as there is no foreseeable limit to the period over which

the licence is expected to generate economic benefits for the Group.

The Group’s intangible assets were allocated to the investment
advisory services and fund management services business
cash-generating unit “‘cGu’) for impairment assessment.
In addition to the intangible assets above, property and
equipment and right-of-use assets (including allocation
of corporate assets) that generate cash flows together
with the related intangible assets are also included in this
CGU for the purpose of impairment assessment. Based on
management’s estimates, an impairment of HK$23,418,000
(2021: HKS$13,834,000) and HK$20,487,000 (2021: Nil)
including impairment losses for intangible assets and property
and equipment and right-of-use assets were recognised to
write down the carrying amounts of intangible assets and
property and equipment and right-of-use assets to their
recoverable amounts of approximately HK$1,055,000 (2021:
HK$35,775,000) based on value-in-use calculation. The
calculation used cash flow projection based on historical
data and financial budget approved by the Board covering
five (2021: eight) years. Cash flows beyond the five (2021:
eight) years were extrapolated using an estimated weighted
average growth rate. The growth rates used did not exceed
the long-term average growth rates for the businesses in
which the CGU of the investment advisory services and fund
management services business operates.

For the investment advisory services and fund management
services business, the key assumptions used in the value-in-
use calculation in 2022 were as follows:

% of revenue growth

Long term growth rate
Pre-tax discount rate

W AR o b
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B Bl i 7 B
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2022 2021
R TR T 4R
HK$’000 HK$ ’000
BT BT T
Prepayments FAAT 3K IH 888 1,323
Deposits and other receivables Fi¢ 4 B HAth BE Wi R 3k 7,379 6,500
8,267 7,823
Impairment allowance IR L]
— Other receivables — L i B i R K (1,634) (430)
6,633 7,393
Represented: B s
— Current portion — B 3,524 7,393
— Non-current portion — TR E 3,109 —
6,633 7,393

Deposits and other receivables mainly represent work
deposits, rental deposits and utility deposits and fees paid

$e 4 R At BB ISR AR 246 T AR AR B
A 4B % 4 Je 8 T S i AR KT 32

on behalf of customers. Where applicable, an impairment 155 19 2 o A A s R A8 3R % B E 4
analysis is performed at the end of each reporting period by *E/f}:iﬁ WAE 5> B (788 ) o i 48 75 R
considering the probability of default. In the situation where }D7|J E -3 T’E R ERC Y TR TIR DR N
no credit ratings can be identified, expected credit losses are 45 [ 408 1 s 48 A2 Bk A0 S 1E R AT A
estimated by applying a loss rate approach with reference n'l' 5 48 251 1 48 5 B DA e i B IR AR
to the historical loss record of the Group. The loss rate is Tt T TR ) o AR 48 SR L

adjusted to reflect the current conditions and forecasts of
future economic conditions, as appropriate.

Movements in the loss allowance for impairment of other
receivables are as follows:

HL At B Sl Y 9 M 4R 5% 4 1) 5 )
ay

Expected credit losses

B BB E

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

BB SR B B3P B At

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

BT W%t BWTx BWTx

At 1 January 2021 AZE_—F—H—H 45 = 528 573

Reversal of impairment losses Ry gk (45) - (98) (143)
At 31 December 2021 and RoFZ - —F+-A=+—H

1 January 2022 R-Z-—F—H—H = = 430 430

Provision for impairment losses WA s 1R 4 211 - 993 1,204

At 31 December 2022 RoEZE-—H+-H=+—H 211 - 1,423 1,634

The financial assets included in the above balances classified
as stage 1 relate to receivables for which there was no recent
history of default and past due amounts. As at 31 December
2022, the loss allowance for balances classified as stage 3 was
assessed with the probability of default ranging from 36% to
100% (2021: 75% to 100%) and loss given default ranging
from 62% to 100% (2021: 65%).

Bison Finance Group Limited
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Listed equity investment, at fair value A RMEEFTEZ
i RRERE

Unlisted equity investment, at fair value A RMEEFTEZ
LT IRRERE

Private equity fund, at fair value A ARMEEFTEZ
5 JBOHE ik 42

Portion classified as non-current assets SRR EREEER

4

Current portion it @J %ﬁ ﬁj\

During the year ended 31 December 2022, a net
unrealised fair value loss on listed equity investment
in Hong Kong of approximately HK$848,000 (2021:
HK$1,290,000) was recognised in the consolidated

statement of profit or loss.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the
Group subscribed 10% shareholding interest in a
private company incorporated in Hong Kong at a
total consideration of HK$2,000,000. The Directors
considered the Group has neither significant influence
nor joint control over the investment and therefore
it is classified as a financial asset at fair value through
profit or loss in accordance with the requirements
under HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments. Fair value loss
of HK$2,000,000 (2021: Nil) was recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

2022 2021
RO —F
Note HK$’000 HK$ 000

Bt 3k T T T

(a) 901 1,749
(b) - 2,000
(c) 29,465 71,274
30,366 75,023

- (2,000)

30,366 73,023
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On 22 February 2019, Premier Future Limited
(“Premier Future”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, and BeiTai Investment Limited (the
“General Partner”), an independent third party of
the Company and its connected person (as defined
under the Listing Rules) (“independent third
party(ies)”), entered into a subscription agreement,
pursuant to which Premier Future has agreed to
subscribe for limited partner interests in BeiTai
Investment LP (the “Investment Fund”). As at 31
December 2022, the Group’s capital contribution
amounted to HK$72,000,000 (31 December 2021:
HK$77,000,000), representing 71% (31 December
2021: 71%) of the aggregated capital contributed
by all partners in the Investment Fund. The Group’s
capital contribution was reduced by HK$5,000,000
from HK$77,000,000 as at 31 December 2021 to
HK$72,000,000 as at 31 December 2022 due to the
withdrawal of capital contribution in accordance with
the terms and conditions of the amended and restated
limited partnership agreement for BeiTai Investment
LP dated 20 March 2020 as determined by the general
partner of the Investment Fund at its discretion. The
remaining capital contributions to the Investment
Fund were contributed as to 19% (2021: 19%) at
HK$19,000,000 (2021: HK$21,000,000) by Fullbest
Star Limited (“Fullbest”); and as to 10% (2021: 10%)
at HK$11,000,000 (2021: HK$11,000,000) by a private
equity fund managed by the Company’s subsidiary.

The Investment Fund is a close-end private equity
fund structured as a limited partnership in the Cayman
Islands with an investment objective to achieve long-
term capital appreciation through investments in
convertible bonds and other investments. Under the
partnership agreement, none of the limited partners
may take any part in the conduct of the business of
the Investment Fund or be involved in the making of
any investment decision of the Investment Fund, and
is subject to the Exempted Limited Partnership Law
(Revised) of the Cayman Islands. Subject to certain
kickout conditions, the General Partner may determine
to invest in debt securities or equity securities of both
private and listed companies in Hong Kong or elsewhere
or by investing in such other financial instruments,
and shall act at all times in good faith. In the opinion
of the Directors, the Group has neither significant
influence nor joint control over the Investment Fund
and therefore it is classified as financial asset at fair
value through profit or loss in accordance with the
requirements under HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments.
Details of the transaction were disclosed in the
Company’s announcement dated 22 February 2019.
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As at 31 December 2022, there was no unpaid capital
commitment on investment in the Investment Fund

(2021: Nil).

As at 31 December 2022, the underlying investments
of the Investment Fund included equity securities of
a Hong Kong listed entity which is independent of
the Group; an unsecured redeemable bond which was
stated at the carrying value at its principal amount of
HK$22 million at fixed coupon of 15% with a maturity
date of 18 January 2022 issued by Emerge Ventures
Limited (the “EV Bond”), a private entity in Hong
Kong which is wholly-owned by a business associate of
a close family member of Mr. Xu; and equity securities
of and an unlisted unsecured redeemable bond which
was stated at the carrying value at its principal amount
of HK$43 million at fixed coupon of 8% with original
and extended maturity date of 11 December 2021 and
15 February 2022 respectively, issued by A Metaverse
Company (“AMC”) (the “AMC Bond”) in which Mr.
Xu holds a less than 30% indirect beneficial interest.
The Group’s share of the carrying values of the EV
and AMC Bonds amounted to HK$16,922,000 (2021:
HK$46,150,000) and the AMC equity securities
amounted to HK$8,325,000 (2021: HK$15,474,000)
as at 31 December 2022.

The Group’s interest in the Investment Fund is
accounted for as financial assets at fair value through
profit and loss based on the share of the net asset
value of the Investment Fund because its contractual
cash flows are not solely payments of principal and
interest. During the year ended 31 December 2022, net
unrealised loss of approximately HK$36,809,000 (2021:
net unrealised gain of HK$2,231,000) was recognised

in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the total
accrued coupon interest as at year end for both the EV
Bond and the AMC Bond had been settled while the
bonds had not been redeemed upon their respective
original or extended maturity dates in January 2022 and
February 2022 and up to the date of this report. At the
same time, AMC’s equity securities are under trading
suspension in the Hong Kong Stock Exchange since 1
April 2022 and the trading is not resumed up to the
date of this report.
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On 22 February 2022, the Investment Fund has reached
the end of the investment term. The General Partner

has initiated the liquidation process of the Investment

Fund by realising the underlying investments by sales

of the listed equity securities and redemption of bonds.

The proceeds from the liquidation of the Investment

Fund (after deducting the handling charges) are

expected to be recovered by the Group before the end

of 2023.

Accounts receivable

Impairment allowance

An ageing analysis of the accounts receivable as at the end of
the reporting period, based on the invoice date or payment

schedule and net of loss allowance, is as follows:

Within 1 month
1 to 2 months

2 to 3 months

3 to 12 months
Over 1 year

Bison Finance Group Limited
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2022 2021
G NN O E A
HKS$’000 HK$ ’000

W T T oo
30,175 64,230
(10,025) (19,822)
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The Group normally grants credit to existing customers
where payment in advance is normally required for new
customers. The credit period is generally 90 days from
the date of billings. Each customer has a maximum credit
limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its
outstanding receivables and has a credit control department to
minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly
by senior management. In view of the aforementioned and
the fact that the Group’s accounts receivables relate to a
large number of diversified customers, there is no significant
concentration of credit risk. The Group does not hold any
collateral or other credit enhancements over its accounts
receivable balances. Accounts receivable are non-interest-
bearing.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had an account
receivable amounted to approximately HK$1,200,000 before
impairment of approximately HK$1,200,000 that was due
from AMC in which Mr. XU had a less than 30% indirect
beneficial interest. The amount was fully repaid and the
provision for impairment was reversed during the year ended
31 December 2022.

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of

accounts receivable are as follows:

At beginning of year FAI)
(Reversal of)/provision for impairment losses
Bad debts recovered

Amounts written off as uncollectible

At end of year R

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting
date using a provision matrix to measure expected credit
losses. The provision rates are based on days past due for
groupings of various customer segments with similar loss
patterns (i.e., by geographical region, service type, customer
type and rating). The calculation reflects the probability-
weighted outcome, the time value of money and reasonable
and supportable information that is available at the reporting
date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of
future economic conditions. Generally, accounts receivable
are written off if past due for more than one year and are not
subject to enforcement activity.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk
exposure on the Group’s accounts receivable using a provision

matrix:
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fok B B 955 it A B

22 EWCHR K (@)
4 bR % 43 A (o 4

22 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (Continued)

Financial Services Segment (from
C()ntlnulng ()pcratlons)

MEEY)

As at 31 December 2022 MR-+ _HA=+—8H
Past due
i
Within 1to2 2to3 Over
Current 1 month months months 3 months Total
WEH AR 1 EAA 2FEMA BEEA At
Expected credit loss rate ?ﬁ W BEHE 22.87% 1.67% 2.00% 2.86% 92.42% 33.22%
Gross carrying amount (HK$’000) A (BT o) 25,494 60 50 35 4,536 30,175
Expected credit loss* (HK$'000) TR EE R (BT T) 5,830 1 1 1 4,192 10,025
As at 31 December 2021 W_E T+ H=+—H
Past due
Within 1to?2 2t03 Over
Current 1 month months months 3 months Total
"y SREA 1228 A 2E3MA BEsEA M
Expected credit loss rate ?ﬁﬁﬁﬁ’ééﬂéﬁ 33.09% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 90.48% 48.87%
Gross carrying amount (HK$'OOO) A (BT 28,316 10 200 50 11,042 39,618
Expected credit loss* (HK$'000) B SRR (B%Tr) 9,370 - - - 9,991 19,361
* Included in the balance was impairment for receivables derived * 4k ﬁ/% (RS % H % Z?A} ? H E/J = i HE
from fund management business of HK$7,429,000 (2021: ?}\ﬁﬁ(’%#z7 429,0007C ( & — — 4
HK$15,620,000). The assessment of recoverability for the accounts 15,620,000) *E%%%é R B 5 IR O S &5

Bk £ M8 5 3 4 B 2K FY T o [ 4 o

receivable from each fund was based on the financial position and

settlement pattern of each fund.

B o i (A% Ik 58 R )

Media Segment (From Discontinued
Operation)

As at 31 December 2021 W _F_—4#+-H=1+—H
Past due

Within 1to2 2t03 Over
Current 1 month months months 3 months Total
Ry SRfEA 1528 A 2E3MA BEEA Mzt
Expected credit loss rate ﬁﬁﬁ1§’§l§§£§$ 0.01% 0.11% 0.09% 0.04% 39.52% 1.87%
Gross carrying amount (HK$'OOO) A (BT 10,861 6,658 3,496 2,461 1,136 24,612
Expected credit loss (HKs 000)* FMEEER (E%TT) | 7 3 1 449 461
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Loans receivable — unsecured

Impairment allowance

Represented:
— Current portion
— Non-current portion

The loans were made to three (2021: three) independent
third parties with effective interest rates ranging from 3% to
12% (2021: 3% to 12%) per annum and are repayable within
one year (2021: one to two years).

During the year, a net reversal of impairment losses of
approximately HK$1,801,000 (2021: net provision for
impairment losses of approximately HK$22,653,000) (note
7) was recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss due to the net-off effect of repayment of certain
loans receivable of HK$5,300,000, and the corresponding
increase in allowance of expected credit loss of the remaining
unsettled overdue loan balances.

Management makes periodic and collective assessment as
well as individual assessment on the recoverability of loans
receivable based on historical settlement records, past
experience, and also quantitative and qualitative forward-
looking information that is reasonable and supportive.
Collateral for certain loans receivable included non-listed
securities of a small to medium-sized company have been
taken into consideration in arriving at the measurement of
expected credit loss.

Movement in expected credit losses is as follows:

R i 5 3k —
1L 458

JHE R A

2R
~ WE Y
— kB

2022 2021
SR F
HK$’000 HK$ 000

W T ou T oo

43,147 47,528
(21,241) (23,042)
21,906 24,486
21,906 13,703
- 10,783
21,906 24,486

EA - Bhf %Eziﬁ'ﬁjﬁﬁ’zﬁ(:
2:*$ =4) o BB 3%
12% (:;?:—E 3% 12%) :jt/ﬁﬁ/\—
N (B — BWEN) HER

FE R i 45 A 1R 5 3R W R b (E S 18 43 )
(?%Ef’/w%”ﬁ?l 801,0007C ( & ——4F 1 i
ﬁ@?iﬂf?‘ﬁ{%ﬁffj%%22,653,00075) (Bt
557) 5 T4 ik #s #5.300,0000T 2 & T E Uk
B HORHO DL BT ok 45 15 0 0
BH 2 E 15 B 1E B A AR RE B 2 v Y
2 T 5 o

S} =]
&/\ﬁﬁﬁiﬂﬁﬁﬁiﬁlﬂ@%
PEEERL > 35 I i B R Y W] 17 %€
3P 452 B A £ DL A B A o 7E ST R TR M
%?Eﬁiﬁ\ﬁ%E%??U%T‘W?Hﬁ(,l%’(Z?&
i AE /N AR 2 9

;:
=1
.

HHEEERZEE T

Expected credit losses

HAfE Sk

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

1P B ol B 308 B st

HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000

T W% T BWTT  B¥T

At 1 January 2021 A\ ZF——%F—H—H 389 - - 389

Impairment losses, net U1 e 4R 5 A (389) - 23,042 22,653
At 31 December 2021 and WEZF+H

1 January 2022 =t—HERZ=%F

“"H—H—H - - 23,042 23,042

Reversal of impairment losses, net RN 75~k EIREE = = (1,801) (1,801)
At 31 December 2022 R-F__H+2A

=+—H - - 21,241 21,241

HxamEmRARLS A



Analysis of the gross carrying amount as at 31 December Fe AR N ) R ERAE BT A M AR R A ¥

2022 and 2021 by the Company’s internal credit rating and EoHEENE -+ _H=+—H
year-end classification is as follows: ) A B T (E AT A BT A T
Lifetime ECL Lifetime
not credit- ECL credit-
12-month ECL impaired impaired
(Stage 1) (Stage 2) (Stage 3) Total

REERWMER 5 WA
AN BB B0

/I SR 2 FEER BUAGEER HNGEEER
As at 31 December 2022 T+ZH=+—H (BB (2B (53R B ) At
HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000
W T W T W T W T
Internal rating grade I ABFER
C/CCC C/CCC - - 43,147 43,147
Lifetime
ECL not Lifetime
12-month credit- ECL credit-
ECL impaired impaired
(Stage 1) (Stage 2) (Stage 3) Total
KMEEBMAY  FEBAE
DEAES BEAENN BEAEN
REFZ—F+H FHER BENGESER HENGEEER
As at 31 December 2021 =+—H (BB (P B ) (%3P BL) st
HKs$’000 HKs$’000 HKs$’000 HKs$’000
T T T T T T T T
Internal rating grade A (G AR
C/CccC C/CcC - - 47,528 47,528
C/CCC: Obligations rated C/CCC are highly speculative C/CCC: C/CCCHREH At m > H
and are likely in, or very near, default with some Rl fe (BRI H ) E 4 - 2
prospect of recovery of principal and interest. Al R ] A 4 K IS o

Bison Finance Group Limited



The balances are with related companies which are controlled
by or otherwise related to a close family member of Mr. XU.

Disclosure pursuant to section 383(1)(d) of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 3 of the Companies
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors)
Regulations which is applicable to amount due from a related

company, is as follows:

At
31 December
2022

Rogo ok
FEAEER
HK$’000
T

Amount due from a related company JEYC B2 7] S
Bison Finance & Credit Limited E%}i‘(%ﬁ“ﬁ@/&ﬂ —

Amount due from a related company was unsecured, interest-
free and repayable on demand.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the amount due
from a related company was fully repaid.

As at 31 December 2022, loan to a related company in
the gross amount of approximately HK$6,571,000 (2021:
HK$6,046,000), before impairment of approximately
HK$3,836,000 (2021: HK$381,000) (which is not a
connected person under the Listing Rules) is interest-
bearing at 15% (2021: 10%) per annum and was already past
due. During the year, a provision for impairment losses of
approximately HK$3,455,000 (2021: HK$381,000) (note 7)
was recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

As at 31 December 2022, deposits amounting to HK$800,000
(2021: HK$1,175,000) were pledged for the corporate credit
cards issued to the Group.

%S5 AR Y BB g 8w (AR AE W E
Z 0 JB 2 il DL H At 77 B AR S A
BB AR ) B

IR CEEA G 5538301 ) ()R (A&

A (45 5 25 = 0 4 EORH BB S3ER (i
R T Wi — T B B 2 ) K0 e BR T

At 1 January

Maximum 2021,

amount 31 December

outstanding 2021 and
during the year 1 January 2022 Security held

1 13

—“H—H-

D 5

+ZA=+—H

ERRE KRB ICE
AEESH —~H—H i 5 4K 440
HKS$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000

T W T W T

513 513 NI

JRE WA B M 2 ) RO ST - 2 B KR
R -

BEFE - F+HA=1+—HILEE
JRE T B B N R T L R B R -

o E - E+ A=+ —H B TH
Wi\ (M FF BT AN IE T 2 BN &)
R AR A W %6 571,0000C ( & T —
Ak 6,046,0000T) (S 0B W(E £
#53,836,0000C ( & — —4F : #5 %381,000
IG) ) AER K150 (B —4F 1 10%) 7
B H B S8 5a HA o 4F 1A I s 18 B8 A A s
#63,455,0007C ( & — —4F : #5 %381,000
Jt) (Bt5E7) ©RsE & E R AR -

W _E - _HE+A=+—H - HFRE
#800,0007C ( & — —4F : # %1 175,000
JG) Bk AR 4E [ 8 8 1 8 Fl S R AE K
WO

HA&AEmMERARAA



2022 2021
RO —F T
HKS$’000 HK$ 000
T ou T oo

Cash and bank balances B4 R AT &5 B 119,131 142,397
Non-pledged time deposits FEHCH E B A7 K 5,008 5,040
Cash and cash equivalents Hae kB eEEY 124,139 147,437

At the end of the reporting period, cash and bank balances
of the Group denominated in Renminbi (“‘RMB”) amounted
to HK$113,618,000 (2021: HK$114,114,000). RMB is
not freely convertible into other currencies, however,
under PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, and Sale and Payment of
Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to
exchange RMB for other currencies through banks authorised

to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for
varying periods of between one day and six months depending
on the immediate cash requirements of the Group, and earn
interest at the respective short term time deposit rates. The
bank balances and time deposits are deposited in creditworthy

banks with no recent history of default.

An ageing analysis of accounts payable as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date and the date of
issuance of the bills, is as follows:

R AL AR (TARE])
FHE Y B 4 K SR AT & Bk 2 W 19 113,618,000
JG (ZF Z—4F i %114,114,0007T) ° A
R T 3 B ke 5 H A 5 SRR
B BE OMNES BB Kk GEHE- &
R K AF B4 BR R E ) > AR 1B W] 475 R JE 4%
E?@ﬁ?@l@%?ﬁﬂ%ﬁﬁﬂ%)\&%%@%
HoApth £ -

SRAT B 5 LA B A7 KR AL T B A Rt
Ko S E WA AR IR — ik 5 — H &
ANAR A RS BT A 42 B Y BB R
SR RE - S % 45 0 S U3 A OR 3R i R
A B> SRAT &5 8 e A7 KA WO 3
92 A RO Bk HLAR B R A RO 8RAT -

TR R > PR S H O KRB A
1 251 Y AT AR HR B 0 AT A R

Within 1 month D1 A
1 to 2 months 1221 H
2 to 3 months 2% 3 A
Over 3 months B 34 A

The accounts payable are non-interest-bearing and are

normally settled within one year.

Bison Finance Group Limited

2022 2021
SR T —

HK$’000 HK$’000

i BT BT

4,404 5,313

- 503

- 981

4,404 6,797

JEAT IR AT E > — R — N EEH -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B B 955 e A B

28 OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 28 H {th FE £ B 3k & FE 51 &

2022 2021
SR F T —
Note HKS$’000 HK$’ 000

B 5E T T T

Other payables A A BR 3K 2,250 18,896
Accruals JRE 5t 22 (a) 11,352 12,266
13,602 31,162
Contract liabilities BEHRIAE (b) 70 205
13,672 31,367
Notes: B
(a) Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an average (a) Hofth A 2 B e B T A I A =W
payment term of 3 months. He
(b) Details of contract liabilities are as follows: (b) GRABYFEBLE
2022 2021
TR - b
HKS$’000 HKS$’ 000
T oo BT
Fund management business: e EFPFET -
— Receipts in advance — TE KA 60 59
Securities services business: %%iﬁ%%% ;
— Custodian fees received in advance - HIkEEEE A - 146
Financial advisory business: Vg2 N IES -
— Advisory fees received in advance — T 1 10 —
70 205
Contract liabilities include short-term advances received to deliver BB EOE AR S ERL S K
fund management, stock dealing services and advisory services. 5 K R T R s T AT B A R 3 A OOE o
y
29 PROMISSORY NOTE 29 7 E B
The movements of the promissory note are set out below: TR SRR 2 s E A T
2022 2021
e -z
HK$’000 HK$ 000

W T ou T T

At 1 January w—H—H 90,000 143,553
Redemption (Notes (i) & (ii)) W& ] (Bt 7t i) K i) ) - (53,553)
At 31 December mt—_A=+—H 90,000 90,000

20224F . AREMEEARLA 193



Notes:

(1)

(i)

On 28 December 2018, the Company issued a promissory note
in the principal amount of HK$100,000,000 to Kinetic Creation
Global Investments Limited (“Kinetic”), an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of CCB International (Holdings) Limited (“Kinetic
Promissory Note”). The Kinetic Promissory Note bore interest at
a rate of 9% per annum and was partially redeemed during the year
ended 31 December 2020 up to HK$41,447,000 and fully redeemed
during the year ended 31 December 2021, up to HK$53,553,000.
The total interest charged to profit or loss amounted to
approximately of HK$834,000 during the year ended 31 December
2021.

On 9 August 2019, the Company issued a promissory note in the
principal amount of HK$90,000,000 (“Fullbest Promissory
Note”) to Fullbest, a company beneficially owned and ultimately
controlled by a close family member of a director of a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company who resigned in 2021. The
Fullbest Promissory Note bore interest at a rate of 10% per annum
for a term of one calendar year which is subject to an extension for
another one calendar year by the written consent of Fullbest. An
arrangement fee of HK$600,000 was paid durlng the year ended
31 December 2020 to Fullbest to extend the maturity date from
8 August 2020 to 8 August 2021. The maturity date of Fullbest
Promissory Note was further extended to 30 April 2022. During
the year ended 31 December 2022, the maturity date of Fullbest
Promissory Note was further extended to 31 May 2023. In the
opinion of the directors, the terms and conditions of the Fullbest
Promissory Note including the extension were conducted on normal
commercial terms.

The movements in deferred tax liabilities during the year are

as follows:

At 1 January 2022
Credited to the profit or loss

At 31 December 2022

WoZEZZH—H—H
AR

REZZ2ZZHE+ZA=+—H

At 1 January 2021 WZZZ—%—H—H

Credited to the profit or loss

At 31 December 2021

AR

REZZZ—4%+ZRA=+—H

Bison Finance Group Limited
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JEE+F T H A NH s AN A g
BaEH A A (T8RP
ﬁl‘ﬁ"iz&ﬁ%éiéﬁf%/\ﬂ %’éﬁ
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o A R DO BE A 4% 4F I R 9%
ﬁ“éiii 23:23$+ A=+—
T 43 W [u] k541,447,000 K&
g H = B R
53,553,00077:0%2%:%:¥¢

— H Ik 4 EEEE A IR 25 0 AR A
834,0007T °

VA JLH > A2 A F Fullbest
Jﬁ)%"?ﬂ’] %i% B
:*E%ﬂ ) 2 H R BRI
N A) ) BEAT AR 4 B 590,000,000 7T
B (T Fullbest& 36 8% | ) o Fullbest
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Depreciation
allowances in
excess of related
accelerated

depreciation

78 A
s 6
il ik %
HK$'000
T

Depreciation
allowances in
excess of related
accelerated
depreciation

B A B

T g4
RS
HKs'000
BT

()
5

Fund Customer
contracts relationship Total
REAH %R # At
HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000
BT L3 ST L ST
- (3,648) (3,648)
- 3,648 3,648

Fund Customer
contracts relationship Total
HEaH %FH& st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T T W T o
(2,841) ,613) (7,459)
2,841 965 3811
- (3,648) (3,648)



At 31 December 2022, the Group had estimated tax
losses arising in Hong Kong of HK$410,591,000 (2021:
approximately HK$566,945,000) that are available
indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable profits of the
companies in which the losses arose.

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of
HK$67,747,000 (2021: HK$93,546,000) as they have arisen
in subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some time and
in the opinion of the directors, it is not considered probable
that taxable profits will be available against which the tax
losses and deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

Authorised: e

Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each 4 B TH (L 0.1
15 48 fi

Issued and fully paid: ERTREHLE:

Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each 45 JBCTH (L V8 0.1
3% 78 fi

A summary of movements in the Company’s share
capital is as follows:

At 1 January 2021 R-FZ—H—H—H

Placing of new shares (note) it W (i)

At 31 December 2021, WoE_—H+_A=+—H"
1 January 2022 and :23::@#)51 —H R

31 December 2022

Number of

“F-HY-A=1—H

HE_FZ-"HF+_H=1+—H &%
@T%P&ﬁﬂﬁnﬁﬁéiﬁﬁﬁﬁfﬁﬁéﬁm 591,000
JG (& = — 4 )95 ¥ 566,945 00071:) ;
ﬂum@%mﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%EmAj$
o JE SR T ]

WEArE kR — B HEHER L
H 1% A K n] BE G HE 58 i i A1) v] B F B I8
&5 48 K AT 0 U B MR 2= B AT R A K
SI7 2 5f s B 67 747,0000C ( T T —4F ik
#593,546,0007C) ) e SR HE B I 7

2022 2021
“ECCE SR

Number of

shares shares

ety ¥ H iglie g
’000 HKS$’000 ’000 HKS’000
T 1% wHTI T i T
10,000,000 1,000,000 10,000,000 1,000,000
1,421,838 142,184 1,421,838 142,184

AR Z A BB T

Number of
issued Ordinary Share
shares shares premium Total
C#1f7
fe 43 8 H Tk BhEE At

"000 HKs$’000 HKs$’000 HKs’000

Tk E%Tx E¥%Fr  BWTr
1,184,865 118,487 250,824 369,311
236,973 23,697 37,916 61,613
1,421,838 142,184 288,740 430,924

HESMEHRERAA



Note:

On 25 June 2021, the Company issued 236,973,066 new shares

with a par value of HK$0.1 per share, at a subscription price of

HK$0.26 per share to an independent third party, in accordance
with the terms and conditions of the subscription agreement dated
18 June 2021 (the “Subscription”), under the general mandate
which was granted to the Directors pursuant to an ordinary
resolution passed at the Company's annual general meeting held
on 16 June 2020. The net proceeds (after deducting all applicable
costs and expenses in connection with the Subscription) from the

Subscription amounted to approximately HK$61,613,000.

On 24 August 2018, a share award scheme was approved
and adopted by the Board of Directors of the Company
under which shares of the Company may be awarded
to selected participants which include employees,
directors (including executive and non-executive
directors), officers, agents or consultants of the Group
(the “Selected Participants”) (together referred to as
“Share Award Scheme”). Unless otherwise cancelled
or amended, the Share Award Scheme will remain valid
and effective for a period of ten years commencing

from the adoption date.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, no share has
been acquired by the trustee of the Share Award Scheme
nor from the market (2021: a total of 10,000,000
shares of the Company were acquired from the market
at an aggregate value of approximately HK$3,679,000).
During the year ended 31 December 2022, no share
(2021: 43,890,000 shares) have been granted to the
Selected Participants pursuant to the terms of the Share
Award Scheme. The acquired shares were recognised
and accumulated in equity under the heading of “Shares
held for share award scheme” in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity. As at 31 December
2022, no share (2021: nil) of the Company were held by
the trustee for the purpose of the Share Award Scheme.

Bison Finance Group Limited
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Details of the shares under the Share Award Scheme
granted during the year under 31 December 2021 are
set out below:

2021
Number of Average fair
Date of grant shares awarded value per share
) BT
4 A8 HEE R A AREE
9 April 2021 43,890,000 0.28
“EZ-—FMANLH

The fair value of the shares was determined based
on the closing market price of the Company’s shares
that were publicly traded on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchanges on the respective grant dates and adjusted
by the fair value of dividends during the vesting periods
as the grantees are not entitled to dividends during the
vesting periods.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, there was no
expense recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss for shares granted under the Share Award
Scheme (2021: HK$12,289,000).

The Company has terminated the Share Award
Scheme on 28 October 2022 for reason of reducing
administrative cost.

The share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) of the Company was approved and adopted
by the sharcholders of the Company at the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 8 June 2018.
The Company might grant options to the eligible
participants to subscribe for ordinary shares in the
Company subject to the terms and conditions stipulated
therein. The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and
effective for a period of ten years commencing on the
adoption date of the Share Option Scheme on 8 June
2018.

wWE_F_—F+_A=+—HI
AF AR I 43 4 JBh w3 432 H R B 4y
wEIEHES AR

TR

Award price  Vesting period

SR B8

Nil ~ Within 10 business days after
ES acceptance of share award

B O S #2100 5 55 H R

HE 3 14 2 FOAR (EL T AR B A 7 9 W 52
P 2% B R B B AS 8 B B R 45 B AR
H U 2 s 7 S I AR B e 0
] BBC B F) 2 S0 0B (B 9 B > TR S B
Ji&g J01 ] A 452 N SRS AR -

L -+ _HA=1+—HIk
A BE » ME A AR 9 A A8 B ST # B2
Y AR A S5 B 4Rt R EERR B SZ (=
T4 i %12,289,00070) ©

T REARITBURA - AR R ER
T VH & ik 88
JE it 81 o
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The following share options were outstanding under the

Share Option Scheme during the year:

At 1 January 2021

Lapsed during the year

At 31 December 2021

Lapsed during the year

At 31 December 2022

The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share

options outstanding as at the end of the reporting

period are as follows:
2022

Number of options

Jik ¢ e o I
000
T

49,220

2021

Number of options

Sk PR RE B
000
T

52,220

Bison Finance Group Limited

Exercise price

A7 1
HKS$ per share
5 i W

0.33

Exercise price
FrfsfE
HKS per share

(e

0.33

A T 8 J R i ) SRR R AT R

JHEQN T
Weighted
average Number of
exercise price options
Jon HE ~F £ 45
fHE  EREEA
HKS per share ’000
1 It ¥ T4
W_EF_—4H—H—H 0.33 60,220
A AR R K 0.33 (8,000)
RoZ=—%
+—-A=+—H 0.33 52,220
A A A BT 2R K 0.33 (3,000)
/A S 2
+ZHA=+—H 0.33 49,220

AR R o U ORI R AT B8 0 S I R Y
AT (608 S AT (N T

B H

Exercise period

i e

27 March 2020 to 26 March 2025
“EFFE=ZA+tCtHEZZE_HE=ZH_=+~H

Exercise period

T

27 March 2020 to 26 March 2025
SR CEBFE AT EHAE SR AFE=H KA



On 27 March 2020, 118,020,000 share options of
the Company (“Share Options”) were granted to
the directors, employees, lenders and a consultant of
the Group pursuant to the Share Option Scheme. The
exercise price of the Share Options is HK$0.33 per
ordinary share of the Company (the “Share”), which
is not less than the highest of (i) the closing price of
HK$0.315 per Share as stated in the daily quotations
sheet of The Hong Kong Stock Exchanges on the date
of grant of the Share Options; (ii) the average closing
price of HK$0.308 per Share as stated in the daily
quotations sheets of the Hong Kong Stock Exchanges
for the five business days immediately preceding
the date of grant of the Share Options; and (iii) the
nominal value of a Share, which is HK$0.1. The Share
Options vested immediately on the date of grant as
stated in grant letters and among which 53,800,000
Share Options expired on 12 September 2020,
3,000,000 share options lapsed during the current year
(2021: 8,000,000 Share Options) and the remaining
49,220,000 Share Options (2021: 52,220,000 Share
Options) are exercisable until 26 March 2025. Share
option reserve amounting to HK$353,000 (2021:
HK$678,000) was transferred to accumulated losses
upon the lapse of 3,000,000 (2021: 8,000,000) Share
Options.

The Company has rebutted the presumption in
paragraph 13 of HKFRS 2 for measuring the equity-
settled transaction with the lenders and consultant by
reference to the fair value of the Share Options rather
than the fair value of the related services as these
services or financial support received by the Group
cannot be measured reliably.

No equity-settled Share Option expense was recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss during
the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.
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The fair value of equity-settled share options granted
during the year ended 31 December 2020 was estimated
as at the date of grant using a binomial model, taking
into account the terms and conditions upon which
the options were granted. The following table lists the
inputs to the model used:

Dividend yield (%)

Expected volatility (%)

Historical volatility (%)

Risk-free interest rate (%)

Expected life of options (year)

Weighted average share price (HK$ per share)

The expected life of the share options was based on
the historical data up to the past 10 years and was not
necessarily indicative of the exercise patterns that might
occur. The expected volatility is determined based on
the historical volatility of the shares of Company for
a period of 10 years. Reflected the assumption that
the historical volatility was indicative of future trends,
which might also not necessarily be the actual outcome.
The dividend yield is based on the historical dividend
yield of the shares of Company for a period of 10 years.

The share option reserve will be transferred to
accumulated losses upon forfeiture of the share options
before their expiry date.

No other feature of the share options granted was
incorporated into the measurement of fair value.

The fair value of the share options are subject to the
above inputs and limitation to the binomial model.

Bison Finance Group Limited
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Details of net assets of the subsidiaries disposed of during T ASAE BE R 3 FE AR B B R 4 A %
the current and prior years and the financial impacts are FEE V(B S B 52 BB ARt G

summarised as follows:

2022 2021
SEo e
HK$’000 HK$ 000

T T o

Net assets disposed of: EHEFEE:
Accounts receivable JFEE WA B K — 700
Prepayments and other receivables TEAST X TH B L Ath 1 i
MRk - 380
Cash and cash equivalents e LB &5 EY 60 186
Other payables and accruals A R A5)  3% % RE & T
%M (840) (54)
(780) 1,212
Exchange fluctuation reserve A [ {ﬁij 1%% - (7)
(780) 1,205
Gain/ (loss) on disposal of subsidiaries e I}ﬁ'% NEllg ﬁ_ﬁ/
(note 7) (K518) (MfaE7) 780 (505)
— 700
Satisfied by: B DA 0 AT
Cash W4 - —
Other receivable HAth 18 A AR 2k — 700
An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in HEMBAANHS IR SEEBY R H
respect of the disposal of subsidiaries is as follows: FENWT
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$ 000
T ki I
Cash consideration (notes) B AAE (M) - =
Cash and bank balances disposed of e B B SR AT A R (60) (186)
Net outflow of cash and HE I}ﬁ'}%/& A B4 &
cash equivalents in respect of disposal W45 'tg; RN R e %E
of subsidiaries (60) (186)

HA&AEmMERARAA



Notes:

(i) On 30 April 2021, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with an independent third party to dispose of its entire
equity interest in a wholly-owned subsidiary, NanTai Investment
Limited, for a consideration of HK$700,000. The loss on disposal
before and after tax amounted to approximately HK$372,000. The
transaction was completed on the same date.

(ii) On 1 December 2021, a termination agreement was entered into
between 63 E\?:@'nfﬁmiﬁ AR AHE, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group and Ankai (Tianjin) Economic Information
Consulting Company Limited, a wholly-owned variable interest
entity, for terminating the variable interest entity relationship.
No proceeds were received/paid for the termination. The loss on
disposal net of tax amounted to HK$133,000. The transaction was
completed on the same date.

(iii) ~ On 2 August 2022, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with an independent third party to dispose of its
entire equity interest in a wholly-owned subsidiary, Roadshow
Media Limited for a consideration of HK$2. The gain on disposal
before and after tax amounted to approximately HK$296,000. The
transaction was completed on the same date.

(iv)  On 31 October 2022, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with an independent third party to dispose of its entire
equity interest in a wholly-owned subsidiary, Leader Force Limited
for a considered of HK$1. The gain on disposal before and after
tax amounted to approximately HK$484,000. The transaction was
completed on the same date.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, a cumulative
foreign currency translation gain of approximately HK $nil
(2021: translation gain of approximately HK$7,000) was
recycled from other comprehensive income to profit or loss.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group
had non-cash additions to right-of-use assets and
leases liabilities of HK$24,569,000 (notes 16 and
17(b)), respectively, in respect of lease arrangement of

buildings.
At 1 January 2022 REF_Z4F—H—H
New leases A
Lease modification HE BT
Interest expense ﬂ 5N F’% i
Changes from financing cash flows il gﬁi TR
At 31 December 2022 BB TEFZAZTH

Bison Finance Group Limited

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)
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Interests payable

included in

Lease Promissory other payables
liabilities notes and accruals

it AL fth HE A
W ok B B it

AR ROUEE BARRER A R

HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000

#% T % T T

7,773 90,000 3,574
24,569 - -
(1,856) - -

414 - 9,077
(10,477) - (5,651)
20,423 90,000 7,000



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B B 955 e A B

33 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 33 %35 Bl 4B U B 3R B RE (
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(Continued)
(b) Changes in liabilities arising from (b) il G B A AR AL
financing activities (Continued) (78)

Interests payable

included in
Lease Promissory other payables
liabilities notes and accruals
s A A
A HRe K
JEFH & RN
g A AR JEAT ) &
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BET T
At 1 January 2021 WoEZ—F—H—H 22,178 143,553 -
Changes from financing cash flows MER &M E%E (14,651) (53,553) (6,506)
Interest expense Eil)ss B % 396 - 10,080
Lease modification HEBT (150) - -
At 31 December 2021 R-BZ—H+ZH=+—H 7,773 90,000 3,574
(c) Total cash outflow for leases (c) HEN 4 WA
The total cash outflow for leases included in the FPAGABERERNHER &R
consolidated statement of cash flows is as follows: AT
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000

W T oo T T

Within operating activities (note 8) FPAREB G E
(Htits) 582 964
Within financing activities FEARLE B A & 10,477 14,651
11,059 15,615

34 CAPITAL COMMITMENT 34 B A
The Group had the following capital commitment at the end A A E R R A W K B R S A AR
of the reporting period:

2022 2021
SF Sty Y v
HK$’000 HKS$ 000

W Tou T T

Contracted, but not provided for: BT OKEF S E
Investment in a subsidiary i B N F 2 A 41,234 41,234

20224 ) HHEEMEBEARLA 203



In addition to the transactions and balances as set out
in notes 5, 21, 22, 24 and 29 to these consolidated
financial statements, the Group had the following

transactions with related parties during the year:

Rental income received from

a related company FHE A
Loan interest income received Q Bﬁ Hﬁ%li} 7l LI&EX E]/‘]
from a related company B AR
Notes:
@) Rental income was charged to a related company mentioned

in notes 6 and 24 to the consolidated financial statements at

a rate mutually agreed between parties.

(ii)  Loan interest was charged to a related company mentioned
in notes 5 and 24 to the consolidated financial statements at

a rate mutually agreed between parties.

Apart from those mentioned in (a) above, in June
2021, Acton Eagle Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Group, entered into agreements to advance a
loan of HK$6,000,000 to Aim Right Ventures Limited
(“Aim Right”), a company wholly-owned by a business
associate of a close family member of Mr. XU, and a
loan of HK$8,000,000 to the subsidiary of AMC. The
agreements stated that guarantee deposits made to
bt 2 Ao A5 A R A A amounted to
RMB5,000,000 on 29 June 2021 and RMB6,680,000
on 25 June 2021 respectively from a sole beneficiary
of Aim Right and a subsidiary of AMC in PRC would
be used to net off the loans advanced by Acton Eagle
Limited. At 31 December 2021, the loans have been
settled by netting off these guarantee deposits.

Bison Finance Group Limited
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Apart from those mentioned in notes 21, 24 and 29, the BB 5E21 ~ 24 S 29 fr 4l 32 4) - BiL B WG

balances with the related companies were unsecured, oy F) &G AR B SEAR R - e B JE R
interest-free and repayable on demand. BRAEE -
Remuneration of key management personnel of the AL FEEEMABRENS (B4
Group, including amounts paid to the Cornpany’s I TAAFRERE KEITHEANAR
directors and chief executives, is as follows: M) anF -
2022 2021
25 —z— &
HKS$’000 HK$ 000

T T T

Salaries, allowances and benefit in kind Bra o B Y AR A 5,401 9,181
Equity-settled share-based payments DA R HE 5 8 DAy £y R
Bl A9 15 3K - 3,220
Pension scheme contributions FERANE S I KF Y 61 82
Total compensation paid to I TEEEHRAEN
key management personnel P 4= 48 %R 5,462 12,483
Further details of directors’ and chief executive’s EHEEETBEN SN E—F
emoluments are included in note 10 to the consolidated TR AN G S B R FEM 10 -

financial statements.

HA&AEmMERARAA



The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial TR AR > &8 4/ T B YRR T (E

instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as T s
follows:

Financial

assets at

fair value

through profit
or loss — Financial
mandatorily assets at
classified amortised

as such cost Total

e R EAE
st A Z R RA
SMERE GFEMESR

( 58 i 43 %80) 2473 A
HK$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000
BT BT EW T
Financial assets at fair value s REEF AR
through profit or loss 2 A A 30,366 - 30,366
Accounts receivable JFEE A B K - 20,150 20,150
Loans receivable JRE WA B K - 21,906 21,906
Loan to a related company TR A 2 B - 2,735 2,735
Financial assets included in A FEAT EOH ~ A
prepayments, deposits and T JEC Al i B R 1
other receivables & & - 5,745 5,745
Pledged deposits B 54 77 3K - 800 800
Cash and cash equivalents B4 MBl &S ED - 124,139 124,139
At 31 December 2022 BoEE+TTA
=+—H 30,366 175,475 205,841
Financial
liabilities at
amortised
cost
i B 8 B AR
w5 Al
115
HKS$’000
BT
Accounts payable JRE AT Hi 3K 4,404
Financial liabilities included in Fh A Ath B A R B % RE EEE Y
other payables and accruals & A fE 13,532
Lease liabilities GENS=R 20,423
Promissory notes LR 90,000
At 31 December 2022 W_F 4 +_H=+—H 128,359

Bison Finance Group Limited



Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Accounts receivable

Loans receivable

Loan to a related company

Amount due from a related
company

Financial assets included in
prepayments, deposits and
other receivables

Cash held on behalf of clients

Pledged deposits

Cash and cash equivalents

At 31 December 2021

Accounts payable

Financial liabilities included in
other payables and accruals

Lease liabilities

Promissory notes

At 31 December 2021

Financial

assets at
fair value
through
profit or loss Financial
— mandatorily assets at
classified amortised
as such cost
s B E
AP AT IR A
4 Rl A
(5 1 7 K1) 4 RlE
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT oo
A REEFA
s 2 &&= 75,023 .
JAEE A H R - 44,408
JEE i 5 K - 24,486
4T BB R 2 B - 5,665
JREE ok R e 2 ) TR
— 513
wh AT A RO
i 4 J At B Wi
H 1) 4 & - 6,070
REZFHFABE - 79
O KA K - 1,175
Bl B a5 EY - 147,437
AE—F+TH
=+—H 75,023 229,833
JREAST HE 3K
ah A At B A R 3K T B ST 2 R Y
A=
HE A H
AR SR
RoB=—ft+=fA=+—H

H % &

Total

HET
HK$ 000

#E T T

75,023
44,408
24,486

5,665

513

6,070
79
1,175
147,437

304,856

Financial
liabilities at
amortised
cost

e 48 8 B AR
FHE

& B A
HK$ 000
BT T
6,797
29,177
7,773
90,000

133,747

A A R A



The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s
financial instruments, other than those with carrying
amounts that reasonably approximate to fair values, are
as follows:

Carrying amounts

W i

2022
SR
HKS$’000
T

&b R

Financial assets

N R AR R
ZEMEE

Financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss 30,366

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and
cash equivalents, cash held on behalf of clients, pledged
deposits, accounts receivables, loans receivables, loan
to a related company, accounts payable, financial assets
included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables,
amount due from a related company, promissory note
and financial liabilities included in other payables and
accruals approximate to their carrying amounts largely
due to the short term maturities of these instruments.

The Group’s corporate finance team headed by the
financial controller is responsible for determining the
policies and procedures for the fair value measurement
of financial instruments. The corporate finance team
reports directly to the chief financial officer and the
audit committee. At each reporting date, the corporate
finance team analyses the movements in the values of
financial instruments and determines the major inputs
applied in the valuation. The valuation is reviewed and
approved by the chief financial officer. The valuation
process and results are discussed with the audit
committee twice a year for interim and annual financial

reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could
be exchanged in a current transaction between willing

parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

Bison Finance Group Limited

A AR 1 <l T2 (A B0 475 R T (B
2 S EAE A B B B TR ) 5
AR TAT(EL 2 A S fE(EANF

Fair values

o R R

2021 2022 2021
TR DR SR
HKS$ 000 HK$’000 HK$ 000
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The fair value of a listed equity investment is based on
the quoted share price.

The fair value of unlisted equity investments (including
the private equity fund) is based on market prices of
certain parameters as stipulated in the subscription
agreement, net assets statements and/or valuations
engaged by the independent valuer.

The following table presents the fair value of the
Group’s financial instruments measured at the end of
the reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised
into the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined
in HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The level
into which a fair value measurement is classified is
determined with reference to the observability and
significance of the inputs used in the valuation technique
as follows:

. Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only
Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities at

the measurement date.

. Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using
only Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which
fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are
inputs for which market data are not available.

. Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs.
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The following tables illustrate the fair value TRIINAEREH THMA RHE

measurement hierarchy of the Group’s financial a5 =g % -
instruments:
Assets measured at fair value: ¥% 08 fo B AR T B E
As at 31 December 2022 R_EZ__4#+"H=+—H
Fair value measurement using
1 DL IE H ot A R A
Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

HOATBE HEAAT

B A WA B A MR
(%—%) (B=%) (H=#) At
HKS’000 HK$’000 HKS'000  HKS’000
W T T EWTT ®ETT

Financial assets at fair value HAREHEF ARG
through profit or loss G RE E
— Listed equity investments — FT R E 901 - - 901
— Unlisted equity investment -k ET R ERE - - - -
- Private equity fund — 53 AL - - 29,465 29,465
901 - 29,465 30,366
As at 31 December 2021 W - —4F+_H=+—H
Fair value measurement using
AU THEFREA AMEA
Quoted

prices in Significant Significant

active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

EpNTE T BRAT]

15 B 5 4 1 WABYE B AR
(5—4) (55— (B=4) A5t
HK$’000 HKs’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000
L T i T BT BT

Financial assets at fair value T REEF ARG Z
through profit or loss SRV E

— Listed equity investment — bk TE i'd g\ 1,749 - - 1,749
— Unlisted equity investment —k LR E = - 2,000 2,000
— Private equity fund —RERERES - - 71,274 71,274

1,749 - 73,274 75,023

Bison Finance Group Limited



During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, BE X "R T —F+

there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, A=Z+—HIEFEE—HHEE
or transfers into or out of Level 3. The Group’s policy B 2 [ Slf7 40 W RS 5 S e A o L
is to recognise transfers between levels of fair value 55 = AR o A B E 1Y BUR T R s
hierarchy at the end of the reporting period in which RO FCAEAE G % 2 [ ) B RS Iy e
they occur. RO B F o

The movements in fair value measurements within Level FN RN A REER RS

3 during the year are as follows:

Equity investments at fair value
through profits or loss
At 1 January
Total (losses)/gains recognised
in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss included in other income
Purchases
Capital withdrawal

B

2022 2021
R —E T —4F
HKS$’000 HK$ 000

T BT

YN B EFE AR 2R 1)

R HE 5 &

w—H—H 73,274 95,043
AR A R RIERFIA

Hing AR (E48)

e i A8 (38,809) 2,231
i B - 2,000

Tl [m] & A (5,000) (26,000)

At 31 December wt+—_HA=+—H 29,465 73,274
Valuation technique(s) Relationship of unobservable

Fair value and Significant input(s)

Financial instruments hierarchy  key input(s) unobservable input(s) to fair value
MRBEE EEE R A L5 i A\ R

EMIR & % X3 VN 1§ RO\ Bk A fi (6L 0 B £

Private equity fund Level 3 Net asset value approach  N/A N/A

RIS £=5 B EE %l At

Other unlisted equity securities Level 3 Net asset value approach  N/A N/A

HoAt I 77 IR R F=R B FERE AR b
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The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments carried at amortised cost are not materially
different from their fair value as at 31 December 2022
and 2021.

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise
cash and cash equivalents, loans receivable, lease liabilities
and promissory note. The main purpose of these financial
instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s operations. The
Group has various other financial assets and liabilities such as
accounts receivable, other receivables, accounts payable and
other payables, which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are credit risk, liquidity risk, foreign currency risk, interest
rate risk and equity price risk. The board of directors reviews
and agrees policies for managing each of these risks and they
are summarised below.

The Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s policy that
all customers who wish to trade on credit terms are
subject to credit verification procedures. In addition,
receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis
and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant.
For transactions that are not denominated in the
functional currency of the relevant operating unit, the
Group does not offer credit terms without the specific
approval of the Head of Credit Control.

The tables below show the credit quality and the
maximum exposure to credit risk based on the
Group’s credit policy, which is mainly based on past
due information unless other information is available
without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging
classification as at 31 December 2022 and 2021. The
amounts presented are gross carrying amounts for

financial assets.

Bison Finance Group Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A o B 5 3 T R

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(Continued)
(a) Credit risk (Continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end
staging (Continued)

As at 31 December 2022

38 4l B 4% P H B R BUR

(%)

(a) fREEPE (%)

%ﬁm&?ﬁfﬁ*ﬁfﬁﬂﬁé’z‘
A

R-ZF__#H#+ZHA=+—H

Accounts receivable* JEE IS e - - - 30,175 30,175
Financial assets included in AR AT HOR - e

prepayments, deposits, ,ﬁ\:ﬁﬁyg ﬂﬁ(ﬁﬁ?ﬂ E‘J%@

other receivables EiE

~ Normal#* — I 3,823 - - - 3,823

~ Doubtful** — R e - - 3,556 - 3,556
Loans receivable*** JRE Mg B e - - 43,147 - 43,147
Loan to a related company** T B A T 2 e - - 6,571 - 6,571
Pledged deposits eI

— Not yet past due — K 800 - - - 800
Cash and cash equivalents e BB EEED

— Not yet past due — K 124,139 - - - 124,139

128,762 - 53,274 30,175 212,211

2022 4 #H

AAREmMmERARLA

213



As at 31 December 2021

12-month

ECLs

1218 A
HfE &

B

Stage 1

51 Bt
HK$ 000

Accounts receivable*
Financial assets included in
prepayments, deposits,

other reccivables

TE WO R 3
A AT SR e K
Al WSR3 1) 2l

T

For accounts reccivable to which the Group applies the
simplified approach for impairment, information based
on the provision matrix is disclosed in note 22 to the

consolidated financial statements.

The credit quality of the financial assets included in
prepayments, deposits and other receivables, amount due
from a related company and loan to a related company is
considered as “normal” when they are not past due and there
is no information indicating that the financial assets had a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.
Otherwise, the credit quality of the financial assets is

considered as “doubtful”.

For loans receivable, the credit quality information is

disclosed in note 23 to the consolidated financial statements.

Bison Finance Group Limited

— Normal** —1E 5,701

— Doubtful** — R R -
Loans receivable*#* JRE Ml B v =
Loan to a related company T B T 2 6,046
Amount due from a related R R W )

company

— Normal** —1E 513
Cash held on behalf of clients REFFHARE

— Not yet past due — K@l 79
Pledged deposits RIS

— Not yet past due — Kl 1,175
Cash and cash equivalents He kB E%EY

— Not yet past due — Kl 147,437

160,951

IS

Fo—FEF A=A

Lifetime ECLs

b3 (peRs BENORER A ERCY ap

Stage 2

Sl Bt
HKS’000
ik i

Kk

Simplified
Stage 3 approach Total
CR1 0SS (S Mt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

EHRTE  EWTT

- 64,230

799 -
47,528 -

BT

64,230

5,701
799
47,528
6,046
513

79

1,175

147,437

48,327 64,230 273,508

A AR T 25y (T M AL 7 ¥ 2 BB W
MR ST 75 > 2 R 4B A A P R I A
B P AR B k2 7R

T St 9 2 A - S e R SR <6
Z A5 B B E ) A il EE DA K R
s B FE A TE AT BROE - i KOH At
S R K < L D B o B M
ANIH B A T — [ B 2 ) 2 B 2 A
WERGAHIEW] TR & mEE
ZERHEREBR TRIR]

HE S B0 5 003 15 B A 4 S
R 230



A2 HE R AE W R L) &R # T
H B 58 8 & ok e Bt o % T B
R TR A kGRS

Bl

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds
using a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool
considers the maturity of both its financial instruments
and projected cash flows from operations.

AR £ H B AR 0 SR AT 98 50 SR
A7 B PR A i P A A B o
HY F- 1

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of
bank overdrafts and bank loans.

TR R AR AR IEBLAT 3K
A SR ] < AR S LR

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities
as at the end of the reporting period, based on the

contractual undiscounted payments, is as follows:

2022 —E 4FE
Within One to
one year five years Total
—4EN —R2HAE MGt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000

W T e

W T

W T

Accounts payable JRE AR B 3k 4,404 - 4,404
Financial liabilities included in 71 A oAt A5 B 2k K&

other payables and accruals T2 F 1 4 il B fE 13,532 - 13,532

Promissory notes TR L 96,041 - 96,041

Lease liabilities HEARE 9,075 12,045 21,120

123,052 12,045 135,097

2021 TR
Within One to

one year five years Total

—4FR —FfAE Bt

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

BT U

BT T

T T

Accounts payable JEE£+F B 3K 6,797 - 6,797

Financial liabilities included in 7 A oAt A B 3k K&
other payables and accruals FE T2 F i 4 il 29,177 - 29,1771
Promissory notes 7R L SR 92,959 - 92,959
Lease liabilities HE AR 7,834 L 7,834
136,767 - 136,767

HA&AEmMERARAA



The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such
exposures arise from provision of series by operating
units in currencies other than the units  functional
currencies. Approximately 73% (2021: 20%) of the
Group’s sales were denominated in currencies other
than the functional currencies of the operating units
making the sales.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the
end of the reporting period to a reasonably possible
change in foreign currency exchange rates, with all
other variables held constant, of the Group’s loss before
tax and the Group’s equity.

ik s W L B e B2 (E
ik s W e T (E

2022

If the Hong Kong dollar
weakens against EUR

If the Hong Kong dollar
strcngthcns against EUR

fie v 8 5 N B W B M
fie v 8 5 N B W (L

If the Hong Kong dollar
weakens against RMB

If the Hong Kong dollar
strengthens against RMB

* Excluding accumulated losses

Bison Finance Group Limited

A 5K [ 8 T B 22 5 O R B o 5% 5
JE B U A8 B A DL BE A T e B
PLAN & W SHE I &R 50 o L - AR
LER B EELT3% (F - —4F:
20% ) LAMEAT 8 B 488 B 1 T RE
BRI WS -

R R R > BT A
il 528 52 AfE Rp A B > A 4 1 R BRI
18 K HE £ 31 41 W B 4 5 L] BB 5 )
) R o

Increase/ Decrease/

(decrease) in  (increase) in Increase/

foreign loss before (decrease) in

equity*

HE 23 5 m
(WA ) *
HKS$’000
T

tax

B Bt Rl 1 48
RE R WA,
(1K) (3% m)

% HKS$’000

% T

currency

b

3% 1 -

(3%) (1) -

3% 540 -

(3%) (540) -

* 15 E 7t 1



2021 TR AR

If the Hong Kong dollar i s T 58 K T B2 (H
weakens against EUR

If the Hong Kong dollar i 5 T 58 K T TH(E

strcngthcns against EUR

If the Hong Kong dollar i 5 W b0 N R W2 (E
weakens against RMB

If the Hong Kong dollar i s s o N RS W HE

strengthens against RMB

If the Hong Kong dollar ehiski ) B
weakens against SGD e

If the Hong Kong dollar i 5 s 5L T ¥ oo
strengthens against SGD F{H

* Excluding accumulated losses

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in
market interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s
promissory note and interest-bearing borrowings with
fixed interest rates.

As at 31 December 2022, if the interest rate on
borrowings had been 100 basis points higher, which was
considered reasonably possible by management, with
all other variables held constant, the loss after tax for
the year would have been approximately HK$752,000
(2021: HK$1,345,000) higher as a result of higher
interest expenses on promissory note.

Increase/

(decrease) in Decrease/ Increase/
foreign (increase) in (decrease) in
currency  loss before tax equity*

ki

& BRELATEE M

%) Wb (s ) (P D) *
% HK$’ 000 HK$ 000
% BT ki o T

Tt

%é‘
(

g

3 590 —
3) (590) -
3 2 _
3) 2) -
3 14 -
3) (14) -

* A 15 E 7 1

7 B2 [ 1] B 1) T A5 R AR A o Je oy
AR AR ] 1Y R S SR R R T E M R
FHE A A B o

W_EZZHF+T+ZHA=+—H i
& B F E Frrooffl 2B (& 2R
LB AHE T REEE) BT A H
s mAE RN FERBIA EE
519 R 7 b, ZE 4 1 R S, B S e o 1%
i &) B s 752,000 (F ——
A i 51,345,0000C) ©

N

AEemERmARAA



Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of listed
equity investment, unlisted equity investment and
private equity fund decrease as a result of changes in
the levels of equity indices and the value of individual
securities. The Group was exposed to equity price risk
arising from individual equity investments included in
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (note
21) as at 31 December 2022 and 2021. The Group’s
listed equity investments are listed on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchanges and are valued at quoted market prices
at the end of the reporting period.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity
to every 5% change in the fair values of the equity
investments, with all other variables held constant
and before any impact on tax, based on their carrying
amounts at the end of the reporting period.

IS A JEL gt 2 9 TR e 5 i UK P K2 A
il 8 7 {8 (i 5 ) 2 5 b i S R 4
B~ OR BT B S AL B i
EZ N ABEHBED Z AR _F
SR CE T =
H o A 42 B P ) 6 2 A B e
fif) Al B HE £ & (R A 4% A B (E 5
ARG 2 B A E (M akar) - A4
) 2 L i M R 5 A A o I S T b
T Sl R S R B T 85 R A A (E

2R BRI i I OR 2 SR TN
JERE B 2 oy SO AR A S B 5% 2
RRE (P Ay H B B Al A B HLOR
AR BLES R -

Carrying Decrease/
amount (increase) Increase/
of equity in loss (decrease) in
investments before tax equity*

i B 1
BeEREZ  EEREY S RSN
W 1 i (358 m) (W) =
HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000
T T T

2022 TR T
Financial assets at fair value WA REEFAERLZZ
through profit or loss LM E 30,366 1,518 -
2021 TR T4
Financial assets at fair value WA REEFABRGZ
through profit or loss 4 Rl 75,023 3,751 -
* Excluding accumulated losses * kALY i
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The primary objectives of the Group’s capital
management are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group regards equity attributable to owners of
the Company as capital, manages its capital structure
and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in
economic conditions and the risk characteristics
of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders
or issue new shares. As at 31 December 2022, the
Group complied with the externally imposed capital
requirements and there was no indication of breach of
covenants. No changes were made in the objectives,
policies or processes for managing capital during the
years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

In addition, a licensed subsidiary within the Group
manages its liquidity position to ensure it maintains
a prudent and adequate liquidity ratio, in strict
compliance with statutory requirements. This is
achieved by the management, comprising the chief
financial officer and the licensed subsidiary’s executive
director, monitoring the liquidity position of the Group
on a daily basis to ensure the availability of sufficient
liquid funds to meet all obligations and compliance with
the statutory requirements, such as the Hong Kong
Securities and Futures (Financial Resources) Rules,

which are applicable to a licensed subsidiary.

A SR B A Y AR AR
A 55 B A RE D i R AR R A R 1S 2
A B AR DA ST 2605 I T BBOR
EE AR

A A 1 AR N ) BN RE AL RE 42
M5 B A > Sl AR K 9 A UL A AL K
A B B > A R R
AEEN - BAERF B B E ARG
ZIKEEIT“'“ B ) B RUR A Y i
B ) B AR R A B AT ORI
R ZECCFE A=t HO R
S5 ) 48 <7 A1 SR 1 B AR 2K
f7 48 B 5 BN A B2 B S A o B
EoFECCFELRSFF T A
=t —HIRFE EHEAR -
BOR SR e 7 M0 5 )

WA - A B [ A 5 R R B A D R
ST R E RS R B E SR
TR MR FEA RN RE EE T
Romlt, EHE (Y FEUEE
KA Mt g A R MATESE) B H
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Fo R BB E & B AT T A = AL
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2022 2021

RO TR AR

Note HKS$’000 HK$ 000
B 5 W T T T

Non-current assets ékﬁﬁlﬁﬁ
Property and equipment and W) 2 T B DA R
right-of-use assets ARG = 112 6,662
Investments in subsidiaries* R J&g 2 w5 % - -
Deposits ¥4 4 3,051 —
3,163 6,662
Current assets B &
Loans receivable JRE WA B K - —
Amounts due from subsidiaries JRRE AL Bf JB > ] 3K IE 39,134 230,442
Amount due from a related company JFEE Az ] B A W] 3K IR — 513
Prepayments, deposits and TE AT A ~ ¥4 F HiAth
other rececivables JRE WAz B 2K 626 4,233
Financial assets at fair value ?ﬁ/ﬁfﬁ@-ﬁ HFF A% 2
through profit or loss & A E 901 1,749
Cash and cash equivalents & KRB &5 EY 1,093 3,061
41,754 239,998
Current liabilities A IR ER
Other payables and accruals Al A B 2 % R
% M 10,922 9,859
Amounts due to subsidiaries JREASH BF JB > 7] 3K IH 94,732 72,713
Lease liabilities & B1E 7,882 5,240
Promissory notes TRk 90,000 90,000
203,536 177,812
Net current assets Ui B & A 161,782 62,186
Total assets less current B R A8 E R B £ AR
liabilities 158,619 68,848
Non-current liabilities e B R
Lease liabilities GiEN= g =E 11,419 =
NET ASSETS B 170,038 68,848
EQUITY HE £
Share capital il 31 142,184 142,184
Reserves ot A (312,222) (73,336)
TOTAL EQUITY HE 4t 2844 170,038 68,848
* This item was with an amount less than a thousand. " IEH 4R —T o
Sun Lei Zhu Dong
7 KA
Executive Director Executive Director
HITHEE HITHEH
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A summary of the Companyys reserves is as follows:

At 1 January 2021

Total comprehensive loss for the year
Placing of new shares

Vesting of shares of share award scheme
Transfer of share option reserve upon

the forfeiture of shares options

At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022

Total comprehensive loss for the year
Transfer upon termination of

share award scheme
Transfer of share option reserve upon

the forfeiture of shares options

At 31 December 2022

Note:

\4 7 — ﬁ E H
AEELTERAR

kil

Wit 8 Bt B 5

S A 0 A

RoF -+ -A=+—HEK
“Z-"F—-A—H
REELHERAHE

TS B 0 5 R 4 o e

e £ T 1

RZF-ZE+ZA=+-H

Share
premium

Tt i 1
HKS000
T

250,824

37,916

288,740

288,740

Contributed surplus comprised the excess of consolidated net assets

represented by the shares acquired over the nominal value of the

shares issued by the Company in exchange under the reorganisation

in 2001 and the transfer of the credit arising from the reduction of

share premium of the Company in 2013.

At 31 December 2022 and 2021,
available for distribution to shareholders of the Company.

there was no reserve

The consolidated financial statements were approved and

authorised for issue by the board of directors on 29 March

2023.

AR ) G fol A < A B T

Shares
held for
share Share Contributed
award option surplus - Accumulated Total
scheme reserve (note) losses Equity
Bt al  WRE  EARR
FifZ Rt fi (W) REbB# RN
HK$’000 HKS’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000
WHEL BT BMTL WETE  BETR
(10,176) 5,355 594 404 (620,918) 219,489
R B (299,968)  (299,968)
37916
(30,773) - - (30,773)
- (678) - 678 -
(40,949) 4677 594 404 (920,208) (73,336)
_ - = (238,886) (238,886)
40,949 (40,949)
- (353) - 353 -
- 4,304 54404 (1,199,690  (312,222)
(e B BEFBALA N —FEF—FRE
A T U IR TR 2 ARG B E A
AR B SR MR T AT 2 ey T (E 2 25
DA T 488 A % R A A — = AR W
Thi A P A 2 R
/- THERZEFE 4+ ZH
=+ — H ME 0 AT {2 IR T AR 4 ) R R
2 B4 -
SGAEMBBMRCR_F_=4=H

Tob U E R S RN SR T 8 o

H % & ®

A E A R

AR



Continuing operations

Revenue

Other income and other
gains/ (losses), net

Cost of services provided

Staff expenditure

Depreciation and amortisation

Provision for impairment losses
on financial assets, net

Provision for impairment loss
on non-current assets

(Loss)/ gain on disposal of
subsidiaries

Other operating expenses, net

Finance costs

(Loss)/profit before
taxation

Income tax credit/(expense)

(Loss)/profit for the year
from continuing
operations

Discontinued Operation
(Loss)/profit for the year from
Discontinued Operation

(Loss)/profit for the year

Attributable to:
— Owners of the Company
— Non-controlling interests

Bison Finance Group Limited

ERE Pt eE R

A

A A F A
fedi /(B B

AR 2 A

AL

A EE i 3

S EE

Mo 45 £

T B B
T 45 £t

6 B 2
(1) /sd

Hoth 48 2 1

il

BRBi (4 ) /Al
Frgdigs,/ (B3

FRE A R AR
(1) /Al

BLBBEH
KRB ERAREE
(ER) /li Fl

AR (BH) /Al

VSWNSN I\ E
R /NIE XN
— FREE R 4

2022
“ECE
HK$000
T

40,957

(43,905)

780
(13,504)
(9,491)

(126,732)
3,640

(123,092)

(123,092)

(123,092)

For the year ended 31 December

BET A=+ —HILEE

2021
S

>SN
HKs’000

BT

75,573
48
(31,353)
(46,474)
(22,818)
(41,790)
(92,388)
(505)

(22,493)
(10,448)

(192,648)
3,799

(188,849)

(69,911)

(258,760)

(258,760)

2020
“EFE
HKs’000

BT

78,977

82,773)
27,905)
42,174)
23,546)

NS

19
(99,643)

7,879
(28,819)
(18,603)

(236,588)
2,468

(234,120)

(109,853)

(343,973)

(343,973)

2019
o
HK$’000

BT

129,452
77,633
(31,222)
(71,948)
(19,837)
(5,583)
(10,429)
(2,527)

(25,366)
(14,846)

25,327
(5,791)

19,536

1,230

20,766

20,766

2018
~E—N\E
HKs’000

T

33,492
8,423
(2,418)
(27,700)
(1,038)
3,785
(185)
13,725

(23,145)
(150)

4,789
(630)

4,159

12,098

16,257

16,257



At 31 December

m+=H=+—H
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
RO X ZEDRE ZZNE ZF-NF
HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$’ 000 HKS$ 000 HKS$ 000

T kW ToT BT BWT EW T

Assets and liabilities Bk
Property and equipment VEY &L NI

and right-of-use assets RS E 1,055 9,199 22,783 61,330 40,751
Goodwill [ - - 78,554 178,444 217,176
Intangible assets WG E - 26,576 49,644 58,919 68,525
Prepayments, deposits and AT FE 14 J HA

other receivables JRE i B X 3,109 - 13,881 5,135 24,843
Financial assets at fair value HAREHEFARR

through profit or loss ZEMERE - 2,000 95,043 167,452 =
Loans receivable JEE I B K - 10,783 - 42,869 56,165
Deferred tax assets RALHH - - - 1,265 4,252
Net current assets BB E 87,055 157,459 142,561 276,996 350,393
Total assets less current liabilities & /& 48 (B I B) £ & 91,219 206,017 402,466 792,410 735,940
Interest-bearing borrowings EY T - = - (39,608) -
Non-current lease liabilities  JF i B L £ & f (11,810) - (1,773) (15,904) (3,289)
Deferred tax liabilities 1R S B T £ - (3,648) (7,459) (15,043) (10,557)
Net assets B A 79,409 202,369 387,234 721,855 722,094
Equity HE 25
Share capital A 142,184 142,184 118,487 118,487 118,487
Reserves b 4 (62,775) 60,185 268,747 603,368 603,607

Total equity attributable to AN A A N EAG

owners of the Company 45 A A 79,409 202,369 387,234 721,855 722,094
Non-controlling interests E el - — — — =
Total equity HE 22 AL A 79,409 202,369 387,234 721,855 722,094

HA&AEmMERARAA
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